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was one day late in filing an opposing statement of
disputed material facts (id, subd. (b)(2)). However,
plaintiff was not obligated to respond 1o a material fact
that was not in dispute. (Assad v. Southern Pacific
Transportation Co. (1996) 42 Cal.App.4th 1609, 1614, 50
CalRpir.2d 443) A summary judgment may not be
granted *162 when the moving party has failed to “refute
{a} tenable pleaded theor[yl.” (Hawkins v. Wilton (2006)
144 Cal. App 4th 936, 942, 51 Cal.Rpuw.3d 1)

Moreover, 1t was an abuse of discretion for the court 0
impose & terminating sanction for a mere viclation of a
procedural rule. (Elkins v. Superior Court (2007) 41
Caldth 1337, 1364, fn. 16, 63 Cal.Rpir.3d 483, 163 P.3d
160: Security Pacific Nai Bank. v. Bradley (1992) 4
Cal.App.4th 89, 98, 5 Cal.Rptr.2d 220.) Although plaintiff
was one day late in submitting a separale statement of
disputed material facts (§ 437c¢, subd. (b)(2)), the moving
party did tmely reply (id., subd, (b}4)), giving the trial
court adequate time to consider the matier before the
hearing on the motion.

This leaves defendants with the claim that because the
plaintiff failed to timely file an opposition statement the
court was authorized {0 exercise ifs discretion under
section 437¢, suhdivision (b)(3) to rule on the basis of the
moving party’s allegations of undisputed fact, ie., to
recharacterize plaintff’s cause of action. They argue: “If
{plaintiff] wanted to argue the alleged trust amendment
somehow made the transfer improper, [plaintiff] was
required to—but did not—offer that evidence in
opposition to [defendants’] Motion.” (Ttalics added.} We
disagree.

Defendants’ argument assumes that the discretionary
provisions of section 437¢, subdivision (b)}(3} stand alone,
umrelated to the other provisions of section 437c. The
assuraption is incorrect. As noted, section 437c,
subdivision (b}{3) is subject to subdivision (b}(1}.
Moreover, section 437¢, subdivision {p}(2) provides that
“the party moving for summary judgment bears an initial
burden of production [of evidence] t¢ make a prima facie
showing of the nonexistence of any triable issue of
material fact....” (Agutlar v. Atlantic Richfield Co. {2001)
25 Cal4th 826, 850, 107 CalRpir.2d 841, 24 P.3d 493
(Aguilar 3.)° #*¥703 This presupposes the party has
fulfilled its obligation 1o advance a material fact as
undisputed. (§ 437¢, subd. (b){(1).} Since there was no
such fact there was nothing to oppose (id., subd. (b)(3))
and consequently no need for supporting evidence.

For these reasons the wrial court abused its discretion in
granting a summary judgment to defendants.

Lastly, as to two other causes of action defendants
wrongly place the burden on plaintiff. Defendants’ burden
of production is to show that “ ‘one or more elements of®
the [plaintiff’s}] ‘cause of action’ ‘cannot  be
established’....” ( *163 § 437c, subd. (pX2)%: Aguilar,
supra, 25 Cal4th at p. 850, 107 Cal.Rptr.2d 841, 24 P.3d
493.) The burden can be satisfied by a showing that “the
plaintiff does not possess, and cannot reasonably obtain,
needed evidence....” (Aguilar, supra, at p. B854, 107
CalRptr.2d 841, 24 P3d 493.) “If a plaintiff pleads
several theories, the defendant has the burden of
demonstrating there are no material facts requiring trial on
any of them. ‘The moving defendant whose declarations
ormit facis as (o any such theory ... permits that portion of
the complaint to be unchallenged.” ” (Hufft v. Horowiiz
{1992) 4 Cal. App.4th 8, 13, 5 Cal.Rptr.2d 377 {Citation
ornitted].)

in this case plaintiff seeks evidence in the possession of
defendants o establish that they wrongfully appropriated
or retained $100,000 of receipts from the brothers’
partnership. The purpose of an accounting is to discover
evidence, and plaintiff cannot be faulted for having failed
to produce what plaintiff did not possess. As to the second
claim regarding the wrongful appropriation of $100,000
of the partnership assets, defendants produced no
evidence that they had a right to the $100,000.
Accordingly, they cannot carry their burden of negating
an element of plaintiff’s cause of action predicated upon
entitiement to the money.

I We shall reverse the judgment and direct that the trial
court deny the motion for summary judgment.7

FACTUAL AND PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND

Plaintiff is the sister of two deceased brothers, George and
Charles Besotes. Ann Besotes was mamied 1o Charles
Besotes. Yvonne McLoughlin was Charles’'s daughter.
She is married to James McLoughlin. George Besotes’s
wife predeceased him. They had no children ®

Ann and Charles were married in 1937, At that time
Charles and George were working with their father in the
produce business. Later, the brothers were in partnership
in a boat building business. The partnership also
purchased several parcels of real estate.

In late 1999, the brothers went to see their attorney for
estate planning. Part of their discussion included the
division of their real property. The trust *164 eventually
created for Charles and Ann (the Charles trust) is not a
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part of the record, but the treatment of the real property
**704 is reflected in the George trust. Article five,
paragraph C of the trust provides as follows:

“Upon the death of either the settlor
or Charles Besotes, the trusiee shall
exchange with the trustee of the
Charles Besotes and Amn G,
Besotes 2000 Revocable Trust, real
properties of each trust as follows:
The trustee of the George C.
Besotes 2000 Revocable Trust shall
deed to the trusiee of the Charles
Besotes and Ann G. Besotes 2000
Revocable Trust all of the settlor’s
interest in the real properties
located at 1937 and 1945 N,
Wilson Way .., 1936 and 1938
Auto Avenue ..., and 2603, 2615,
and 2621 Waterloo Road ..., all in
Stockton, California.
Simultaneously, and as
consideration for the transfer, the
trustee of the Charles Besotes and
Ann (G, Besotes 2000 Revocable
Trust shall deed to the trusiee of the
George C. Besotes 2000 Revocable
Trast ali of the Charles Besotes and
Ann G. Besoies Trust interest in the
real property located at 1900 N.
Wilson  Way ...,  Stockton,
California.”

George was the sole trustee of the George C. Besotes
2000 Revocable Trust. Charles was named the first
successor trustee, and plaintiff the second successor
trustee. The trust provided that on the death of either
brother, the estate would be distributed to varicus nieces
and nephews, with the largest share, 20 percent, going to
plaintiff.

On June 26, 2002, George executed the First Amendment

1o the George trust. It provides in pertinent part:
“Agticle Five, paragraph C., is amended to delete any
reference therein to Seitlor’s interest in property
commonly known as 2603, 2615, and 2621 Waterloo
Road, Stockion, California ... due to Settlor’s desire to
sell said property. All other terms of Asticle Five,
paragraph C. shall remain unchanged except for this
deletion and modification.”

Charles died on August 24, 2002.7° A few days later, on
September 6, 2002, plainiff and defendants met 0
accomplish the property transfer described in the trusts.”

Notwithstanding the amendment removing the Waterloo
Road property from the George trust, plaintiff signed a
deed 1o the Waterloo Road property to the Charles trust as
if the property were still subject to the unamended tust
provisions.

Plaintiff filed an action as successor frustee to the George
trust, seeking to recover a one-half interest in the
Waterloo Road property for George’s heirs, *165 as well
as approximately $100,000 that plaintff alleged was
transferred by Charles from George’s bank account io
Charles’s bank account in June 2001. The trial court
sustained defendants’ demurrer 1o five of plaintiff’s eight
causes of action,

Adfter the case was consolidated with another action, filed
by plaintiff individually and in her capacities as successor
trustee and personal representative of George Besoies,
plaintiff filed a consolidated and amended complaint. The
consolidated complaint alleged inter glia that Charles had
unduly influenced George with respect 10 the property
transfers contained in the George trust, and had taken,
secreted, appropriated, and/or retained the $100,000 sum
“to a wrongful use or with an intent to defraud, or both.”

**705 Defendants again demurred on the ground that
plaintiff’s complaint based upon Charles’s conduct
violated the one year statute of limitations measured from
the date of Charles’s death. The trial court sustained the
demurer without leave 10 amend as o the cause of action
for fraud and vnfair business practices, as well as o ail
claims based on Charles’s conduct. The trial court also
granted defendants’ motion to strike the portions of the
complaint based on the actions of Charles or based on the
derivative liability for his actions.

Plaintiff then filed a second amended and consolidated
complaint, which is the complaint to which the summary
judgment motion is addressed. As is relevant to this
appeal, the complaint alleged: (1) that Aon, with
assistance from Yvonne and James, “iook, secreted,
appropriated, andfor retained” the $100,000 sum from
George “to a wrongful use or with an intent to defraud, or
both{:]” that defendanis took and concealed George's
interest in real property; (3) that George amended his trust
on June 26, 2002, 1o delete from Asticle Five, paragraph
C of the trust any reference 0 the Waterloo Road
property; (4) that plaingff deeded the George trust’s 50
percent interest in the Waterloo Road property to the
Charles trust without knowing about the June 26, 2002,
amendment;'® and {4} that defendants were aware of the
trust amendment. Plaingff aiso alleged that before the
death of Charles, and continuing to0 November 2003,
defendants “took control of the assets and operations of a
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business known as the Besotes Brothers Partnershipf,]”
that defendants did so to the detrirnent of George and his
heirs, and requested an accounting.

The second amended and consclidated complaint alleges
nine claims for relief, characterized as follows: (1) abuse
of elder and/or dependent adult, *166 (2) breach of
confidential relationship, (3) undue influence, (4)
declaratory relief, (5) cancellation of deeds, (6) quiet title,
(7) accounting, (8) constructive trust, and (9)
conspiracy.'

As noted, George amended his trust on June 26, 2002 (the
First Amendment), to delete from Article Five, paragraph
C of the trust any reference to the Waterloo Road
property. The First Amendment is set forth in full in
paragraph 18.15 of the second amended and consolidated
complaint, the subject of the summary judgment motion,
and a copy of the Fiust Amendment is attached to
plaintiff’s initial complaint as part of Exhibit A (the
George C. Besotes 2000 Revocable Trust).'® The
complaint alleges, in the second paragraph of paragraph
18.15, that “fals a result of the First Amendment, the
Waterloo Road property was no longer subject to the
exchange ‘agreement’ confained in Asticle Five,
Paragraph C” of the original George trust.

Defendants answered the allegations as follows:
“Answering Paragraph 18.15 of Plaintiff’s Complaint,
Defendants lack sufficient information or belief as to
admit or **706 deny the allegation when the First
Amendment 1o George C. Besotes Revocable Trust was
signed by George Besotes and, on that basis, denies those
allegations. As for the second paragraph of Paragraph
18.15, that as a result of the First Amendment ... the
Waterloo Road property was no longer subject to the
exchange agreement contained in Article Five, Paragraph
C of the George C. Besotes 2000 Revocable Trust, it
contains & legal conclusion to which no response is
needed.”

The answer does not deny the existence of the First
Amendment, rather implies its existence. Moreover, the
declaration of John Cammack, the attorney who prepared
the trusts for George and Charles Besotes, in support of
defendants’ reply to opposition to motion for summary
judgment, avers that he “prepared [the] amendment to the
George C. Besotes 2000 Revocable Trust removing one
piece of real property from Asticle 5 of the trust ... {iln
order to effectuate the sale [of] the property....” Although,
he further averred that the property was not sold and it
was the intent of the brothers that it would remain subject
to the exchange provision of the George trust if the
Waterloo Road property did not sell, there is no claim or

record of a *167 rescission of the amendment to the
George trust. It thus remains subject to the remaining
provisions of the George trust.””

Defendants moved for summary judgment, ot in the
alternative, summary adjudication and filed a statement of
undisputed facts on July 21, 2006, and sct a hearing on
the motion for October 5, 2006. In their points and
authorities in support of the motion, defendants ignored
plaintiff’s claim on behalf of the George trust heirs to 2
one-half interest in the Waterloo Road property and
placed the entire burden of proof on plaintiff on the
remaining causes. They say: “This case is the prime
example of why courts have the power {0 grant summary
judgment because after two and a half years of litigation
Plaintiff has not, and cannot, offer any evidence to
support any of her allegations,” Rather, defendants’ sole
reliaz}ge is on the unamended provisions of the George
frust.

Plaintiff filed her response to defendants™ separate
statement of undisputed facts and her evidentiary
declarations on September 22, 2606, one day late, without
points and authoritics. Her points and authoritics were
filed four days late on September 25, 2006. It informed
the court that the Waterloo Road property “had been
amended out of the ‘trust administration” provision of the
George C. Besotes 2000 Trust as of June 26, 2002 (see
Plaintiff’s Second Amended Complaint f 18.15, 18.22;
Plaintiff’ s Separate Undisputed Facts No. 23 ...)"

In ruling on the summary judgment motion, the trial court
found that plaintiff's opposition did not comply with
section 437¢ and that subdivision (b)(3) allowed the court
discretion to grant the motion. The court chose o exercise
its discretion “because, now that opposing parties are
given 75 days notice of a summary judgment motion, the
couwrt can find no excuse for late or incomplete filings,
and none was offered by plaintiff’s counsel” (Fn.
omitted.) The court also stated that “[dlefendants **707
set forth 2 prima facie case for judgment with their
moving papers and evidence,” without, however, setting
forth support for the claim.

Following the rial court’s order gramting summary

judgment, plaintiff filed a motion for relief from the
order, which the trial court denied. This appeal followed.

*168 DISCUSSION

Plaintiff argues on appeal infer alia that the wial court was
in error in granting the summary judgment motion, and
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that the heirs of the George trust are entitled to a ene-half
interest in the Waterloo Road property by virtue of the
amendment to the Trust removing the property from ifs
exchange provisions. Plaintiff also argues that plaintiff
had no duty to assert the facts entitling her o an
accounting of the brothers’ partnership assets and that
defendants failed to claim an entitlement to the $100,000
in partnership assets.

The court’s discretion under section 437¢, subdivision
{b}(3} is subject to subdivision (b)(1)

) The trial court granted defendants’ summary judgment
motion by exercise of its discretion to grant a summary
judgment under section 437¢, subdivision (b)(3). But that
discretion applies only to the failure 10 support with
evidence each material fact contended to be disputed."” If
there is no such fact, as required by subdivision (b)(1), no
evidence is required and there is nothing to which the
opposing party must respond.

811 “The purpose of a summary judgment proceeding is
to permit a party to show that marerigl factual claims
arising from the pleadings need not be tried because they
are not in dispute.” (Andalon v. Superior Court {1984)
162 Cal.App.3d 600, 604605, 208 Cal.Rptr. 839, italics
added; § 437¢, subd. (a).) The purpose is carried out in
section 437¢, subdivision (b)(1) by requiring the moving
party to include in the moving papers “a separaie
statement setting forth plainly and concisely all material
facts which the moving party contends are undisputed
[together with] a reference to the supporting evidence.”
“The complaint measures the materiality of the facts
tendered in a defendant’s challenge to the plaintiff’s cause
of action” (FPI Development, Inc. v. Nakashima {1991}
231 Cal.App.3d 367, 381, 282 Cal.Rpir. 508), hence the
moving party’s separate statement must address the
material facts set forth in the complaint.

®1 Under section 437c, subdivision (a), a sumunary
judgment may be granted “if it is contended that the
action has no merit....” Under *169 subdivision (p}(2), a
moving party defendant has the “burden of showing that a
cause of action has no merit {and] that one or more
elements of the cause of action, even if not separately
pleaded, cannot be established....” “Once the defendant ...
has met that burden, the burden shifts to the plaintiff ... to
siow that a triable issue of one or more material facts

exists...” (Ibid) *¥708 The Supreme Coust has
interpreted this provision to require that “the party
moving for summary judgment bear{ ] an initial burden of
production to make a prima facie showing of the
nonexistence of any triable issue of material fact..”
(Aguilar, supra, 25 Caldth at p. 850, 107 Ca.l.Rgtr.Qd
841, 24 P.3d 493; § 437¢c, subd, (0 } [now (p)(2).] )" It is
only when this burden is satisfied that “the opposing party
is ... subjected to a burden of production of his own to
make a prima facie showing of the existence of a triable
issue of material fact.” (fbid )

61 1 “yyhile subdivision (b) of section 437c allows the
court, in its discretion, to grant summary judgment if the
opposing party fails to file a proper separate statement,
this provision does not authorize doing so without first
determining that the moving party has met its initial
burden of proof.” (Thatcher v. Lucky Stores (2000) 79
Cal.App.4th 1081, 1086, 94 CalRptr.2d 575; see also
Bovyle v. CertainTeed Corp. (2006) 137 Cal.App.4th 645,
654, 40 CalRpte.3d 501, Quintilligni v. Mannerino
{1998) 62 Cal.App.4th 54, 59, 72 Cal.Rpix.2d 359.) This
presupposes that the moving party has addressed the
material facts of the complaint. I not, the moving party
cannot meet its burden of persuasion. “[{Glenerally, from
commencement to conclusion, the party moving for
summary judgment bears the burden of persuasion that
there is no triable issue of material fact and that he is
entitled to judgment as a matter of law.” (Aguilar, supra,
25 Cal4th at p. 850, 107 Cal.Rpir.2d 841, 24 P.3d 493,
fn. omitted.) In this case the material fact of the George
trust amendment was set forth in the complaint, and a
copy of the amendment was incorporated in the initial
complaint and was referred to in the operative complaint.

The procedures for implementing the burdens of section
437¢c, subdivision (p)(2) are set forth in subdivision {(b).
As noted, the moving party must file a separate statement
setting forth all material facts contended to be undisputed
together with supporting evidence. (fd., subd. (b)(1).) If
the moving party complies with this provision, the burden
shifts to the opposing party (o provide a separate
statement of the material facts in dispute together with
supporting evidence. {{d., subds. (p}2), (b)(3).)

‘The timing requirements for the filing of these documents
are set forth in section 437¢, subdivisions (a) and (b}). The
moving party must file a notice of *17¢ motion and
supporting papers “at least 75 days before the time
appointed for hearing” (Subd. (a).) “IOipposition to the
motion shall be served and filed not less than 14 days
preceding the noticed ... date of hearing” (subd. (b)(2)),
and any reply thereto must be served and filed not less
than five days before the noticed hearing (subd. (b){4).)
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The statutory provisions providing for shifting burdens
became effective in 1993 as section 437¢, subdivision (¢ )
[now subd. (p).]. (Aguilar, supra, 25 Cal4th at p. 850,
107 CalRpu2d 841, 24 P.3d 493, Union Bank v
Superior Court (1995) 31 Cal. App.4th 573, 589590, 37
CalRptr.2d 653.) Nonetheless, “[ijt was a well
established rule under the pre-January 1, 1993, versions of
section 437c that unless the moving party meets its
burden, summary judgment could not be ordered, even
though the opposing party has not respended sufficienily
or at gll” **789 (Villa v. McFerren, supra, 35
Cal.App.4th at pp. 743-744, 41 CalRptr.2d 719, italics
added;” Quintilliani v. Mannerino, supra, 62 Cal.App.4th
at pp. 59-60, 72 CalRpir.2d 359, Thatcher v. Lucky
Stores, Inc., supra, 79 CalApp.dth at p. 1086, %4
Cal.Rpir.2d 575; Boyie v. CertainTeed Corp., supra, 137
Cal.App.dth at p. 654, 40 CalRpw.3d 501; see also
(Baldwin v. State (1972) 6 Cal.3d 424, 439, 99 Cal.Rptr,
145, 491 P.2d 1121 [“The movant’s affidavits must state
facts sufficient to establish each element necessary to
sustain a judgment in his favor. Unless they de, summary
judgment should be denied, even though the opposing
party files no affidavits whatsoever™]; accord Booska v.
FPatel (1994) 24 Cal.App.4th 1786, 1788, 30 CalRpir.2d
241; Valdez v. City of Los Angeles (1991) 231 Cal.App.3d
1043, 1050, 282 Cal.Rptr. 726; Estate of Fisher (1988)
198 Cal.App.3d 418, 425, 244 Cal.Rptr. 5; Lowry v
Henry Maye Newhall Memorial Hesp. (1986) 185
Cal.App.3d 188, 195, 229 Cal.Rptr, 620.)

Although we have found three cases that say the
discretion provision in section 437¢, subdivision (b}3) is
subject only to a general test of abuse of discretion
(Whitehead v. Habig (2008) 163 Cal.App.4th 896, 802, 77
Cal.Rpr3d 679, Blackman v. Burrows (1987) 193
Cal.App.3d 889, 893, 238 CalRptr. 642; Reid v. State
Farm Mut. Auto. Ins. Co. (1985) 173 CalApp.3d 557,
572, 218 CalRptr. 913),” and others have said so in
dictum, they do not examine the shifting burdens imposed
by subdivision (pX2). *171 Moreover, in every other case
of which we are aware the court has determined whether
the moving party has established a prima facie case of
entitlement to a judgment. (See e.g., Hawkins v. Wilton,
supra, 144 Cal App4th at p. 946, 51 Cal Rptr.3d 1; Lewis
v. County of Sacramento {2001) 93 Cal. App.4th 107, 116,
113 Cal Rptr.2d 90; Tharcher v. Lucky Stores, Inc., supra,
79 CalApp.dth 1081, 94 CalRpwr.2d 575; Kaplan v.
LaBarberg (1997} 58 Cal.App.4th 175, 67 CalRptr.2d
903; Kulesa v. Casdeberry (1996) 47 Cal. App.dth 103,
112, 54 Cal.Rptr.2d 669; Security Pacific Nat. Bank v.
Bradley, supra, 4 Cal. App 4th at p. 95, 5 Cal Rpir 2d 220;
Sacksv. FSR Brokerage, Inc. (1992) 7 Cal.App.4th 950, 9
CalRptr.2d 306; United Community Church v. Garcin

(1991) 231 Cal.App.3d 327, 335, 282 (Cal.Rptr. 368;
Buehler v. Alpha Beta Co. (1990) 224 Cal.App.3d 729,
274 Cal Rptr. 14.)

I 1t is within the trial court’s discrstion in a proper case
under section 437c, subdivision (b)}3) to refuse to
consider evidence not referenced in the opposition papers
(San Diego Watercrafis, Inc. v. Wells Fargo Bank (2002)
102 Cal.App.4th 308, 318, 125 Cal Rptr.2d 499; Parkview
Villas Assn., Inc. v. State Farm Fire & Casuaity (2005)
133 Cal.App.dth 1197, 1208, 35 Cal.Rptr.3d 411.) That,
of course, may affect the evidence which the court
considers and may elevate the significance of the
evidence **719 asserted in the moving pariy’s separate
statement. Nonetheless, the moving party must comply
with the provisions of subdivision {(b) 1) and ifs separate
statement must address the allegations of materal fact in
the complaint. If, as here, the moving parties fail to do so,
the motion for summary judgment must be denied.

]

Defendants did not Address a Material Allegation of
the Complaint, the Leorge Trust Amendment

B} plaintiff argues that the summary judgment must be
reversed because defendants did not address the
amendment to the George trust in their motion for
summary judgment. We agree.

Defendants argue that they presented evidence the
Waterloo Road property was transferred pursuant to the
terms of the George trust, and the fact that they “did not
specifically mention the alleged amendment o the George
Besotes Trust ... does not defeat their Motion.” They
claim that “[i}f [plaintiff] wanted t0 argue the alleged trust
amendment somehow made the *172 transfer improper,
{plaintiff] was reguired to—but did not—ofifer that
evidence in opposition to [defendants’] Motion.” (Italics
added.) We disagree.

U6} 11 0% pofendants assume they may evade a response
to plaintiff’s cause of action by ignoring a key allegation
of the complaint that establishes the materiality of the
claim and may ignore the evidence of the amendment
incorporated in the complaint. However, a summary
judgment motion necessarily is addressed to  the
pleadings. (§ 437¢, subd. (b)1).) “The purpose of a
summary judgment proceeding is fo permii a party ©
show that material facwal claims arising from the
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pleadings need not be tried because they are not in
dispute.” (Andalon v. Superior Couri, suprg, 162
CalApp.3d at pp. 604-603, 208 CalRpw. 899%)
Materiality depends on the issues in the case, and what
maiters are at issue is determined by the pleadings, the
rules of pleadings, and the substantive law. (Id. at p. 605,
fn. 3, 208 Cal.Rptr. 899.) “The complaint measures the
materiality of the facts tendered in a defendant’s
challenge to the plaintff's cause of action.” (FPI
Development, Inc. v. Nakashima, supra, 231 Cal. App.3d
at p. 381, 282 Cal.Rptr. 508.) The distinction between a
material fact and its supporting evidence lies in the
difference between an ultimate fact, an element of a cause
of action, and an evidentiary fact which supports the
existence of the element. ™

As noted, the operative complaini recites the provisions of
the trust amendment and alleges that as a result George's
interest in the Waterloo Road property “was no longer
subject to the exchange ‘agreement’...” A copy of the
trust amendment was incorporated in plaintff’s initial
complaint and is part of defendants’ moving papers.
Defendants’ answer did not deny the existence of the wust
amendment or deny “that as a resuit ... the Waterloo Road
property was no longer subject to the exchange
agreement....” Rather, it said the later allegation
“contains a legal conclusion to which no response is
needed.” On appeal the defendants do not contest the fact
of the amendment or challenge its legal effect.

As noted, the moving papers include the second amended
and consclidated complaint, to which the motion for
summary **711 judgment was directed, and a copy of the
amended trust was incorporated in the initial complaint
and is contained in the record as part of the moving
papers.” The complaint recites the provisions of the
George tust amendment and alleges that as a result
George’s one-half interest in the Waterloo Road property
“was no longer *173 subject to the exchange
‘agreement’....” It further alleges that plaintiff, as trustee,
mistakenly deeded the property to the Charles trast
because plaintiff was unaware of the amendment. Thus,
the fact of the amendment was adduced at the outset of
the pleading and no responsive statement and
accompanying reference to the supporting evidence was
required to establish it

Defendants failed to address the allegation and supposting
evidence. Rather, they set forth the unamended provision
of the George trust as an undisputed material fact and
support that assertion with a reference to 2 copy of the
unamended tust. As a result the defendants failed to
comply with the requirement of section 437c, subdivision
{b)}(1) that the moving party’s separate statement set forth

the material facts which it contends are undisputed
together with a reference to the supporiing facts (subd.
(b)Y} and failed to comply with the requirement thas
the moving party set forth evidence “establish{ing]” a
prima facie case (§ 437¢, subd. (p)(2).).

O Citing Lyons v. Secarity Pacific Nat. Bank (1995) 40
Cal.App.4th 1001, 1014, 48 Cal.Rptr.2d 174, defendants
argue that the allegations in the complaint are insufficient
to create a conflict in the evidence. Defendants miss the
point. A complaint measures the materiality of the facts
asserted as a cause of action. It ordinarily does not assert
an evidentiary fact™ Lyons is inapposite because there the
defendant presented evidence that contradicted the
allegations of a nonverified complaint. (/4. at p. 1012, 48
CalRptr.2d 174.) Here, there was no evidence
contradicting the allegations regarding the trust
amendment. The allegations were simply ignored, a fatal
flaw, in the motion for summary judgment,

[

Elder Financial Abuse

Plaintiff claims the wial court improperly granted
summary adjudication of her cause of action for elder
financial abuse with respect to two items, the *174
5100,000 and certain unnamed partnership property. Her
complaint also alleged elder financial abuse with respect
to George’s interests in real property, but plainiff does
not pursue this on appeal.

84 A5 noted. the issues are determined by the pleadings,
the rules of pleadings, *#712 and the substantive law. The
substantive law of elder abuse provides that financial
abuse of an elder occurs when any person or entity takes,
secretes, appropriates, or retains real or personal property
of an elder adult to a wrongful use or with an intent to
defraud, or both. A wrongful use is defined as taking,
secreting, appropriating, or retaining property in bad faith.
Bad faith occurs where the person or entity kaew or
should have known that the elder had the right to have the
property transferred or made readily available to the elder
or to his or her representative. (Welf. & Inst.Code, §
15610.30.)

A. 8160000
B With respect to the $100,000 transfer to the Charles
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trust, plaindff alleged that in June 2001 {when both
brothers were alive), $100,029.39 was transferred from
the George trust bank account o the Charles trust bank
account, that Ann was a co-trustee of the Charles trus,
that Yvonne was a successor trustee of the Charles trust,
and that Ann, with assistance from the other defendants,
“wook, secreted, appropriated, and/or retained  this
$100,029.3% from {George] and from Plaintiff, to a
wrongful use or with an intent to defraud, or both.”

Defendants denied these allegations. Thus, the complaint
alleged four ways in which George was wrongfully
deprived of the money, whether defendants took, secreted,
appropriated or retained the money with knowledge that
George had the right to have the money transferred or
made readily availabie to him.

U€ Defendants’ summary judgment motion asserts that
plaintiff had no evidence that defendants were involved in
the transfer of funds. However, financial abuse of an elder
can be stated not only against the person who takes the
property, but also against the person who secretes,
appropriates, or retains the property in bad faith.
Defendants adduced no evidence regarding the reason for
the alleged transfer of funds or defendants’ knowledge of
the transfer.” These facts would have been relevant to the
issues of George's *i75 right to the money and
defendanis” bad faith. A summary judgment may not be
granted when the moving party has failed to “refute {a]
tenable pleaded theor[y].” (Hawkins v. Wilton, supra, 144
Cal.App.dth at p. 942, 51 Cal.Rptr.3d 1.}

Having failed to adduce facts as to these elements of the
cause of action, defendants’ motion for summary
adjudication of this cause of action was insufficient.

B. Partnership Property

B7) With respect 10 the unnamed partnership property,
plaintiff alleged that defendants took coniral of the assets
and operation of the Besotes Brothers partnership after the
death of Charles. Defendants denied this allegation.
Plaintiff further alleged that defendants operated the
partnership to George’s detriment, and that defendants
received partnership money and failed to pay or account
for such money to George. Defendants denied these
allegations,

The issue presented is whether defendants took, retained,
secreted, or appropriated **713 George’s partnership
assets with knowledge that George had the right to such
assets.

partnership assets were: {1) that plaintiff had not offered
any evidence, facts, or details regarding what assets were
wrken from the partnership, when they were taken, how
they were taken, and whether they belonged to George,;
and (2} that Ann was never responsible for the finances of
the parinership, and knew very litile aboui the partnership.

U8 Since we are reviewing a summary judgment, “the
relevant facts are limited to those set forth in the parties’
statements of undisputed facts, supported by affidavits
and declarations, filed in support of and opposition to the
motion in the present case, to the extent those facts have
evidentiary support. {Citations.] Facts not contained in the
separate statements do not exist.” (Lewis v. County of
Sacramento, supra, 93 CalApp4dth at p. 112, 113
Cal.Rptr.2d 90, disapproved on another ground, Kaufman
& Broad Communities, Inc. v. Performance Flastering,
Inc. (2005) 133 Cal.App.4th 26, 41-42, 34 Cal.Rpir3d
520.)

The facts set forth in defendants” statement of undisputed
facts are insufficient to meet their burden of production of
a prima facie showing that one or more clements of
plaintiff’s cause of action cannot be established. The
undisputed facts are insufficient in at least two respects.
First, while they *176 purport to cover partnership asseis
that were taken, they do not account for assets that were
secreted, appropriated, or retained by defendants. In fact
the allegations of the complaint are that defendants
received money that they failed to turn over to George,
not that they took any assets from him.

Second, there is a bad faith element of the cause of action,
and while the undisputed facts state that Ann was never
responsible for the parmership’s finances, they do not rule
out the responsibility of the other defendants for the
partnership operations, or that any of the defendants knew
George had a right to his share of partnership money.

U1 A defendant moving for summary judgment is entitled
to summary judgment if he or she either conclusively
negates an element of the plaintiff’s cause of action. or
shows that the plaintiff cannot establish at least one
element of the cause of action. (Aguilar, supra, 25 Cal 4th
at p. 853, 107 Cal.Rpir.2d 841, 24 P.3d 493.) In this case,
defendants have not conclusively negated an element of
the cause of action, They could have done so by adducing
evidence that showed that none of them had taken,
secreted, appropriated, or retained any parinership assets,
or that if they did they did not do so in bad faith or with
an intent 1o defraud.

B 1nstead, they have attempied to show that plaintiff
cannot establish af least one element of the cause of action

Defendants” undisputed facts with respect 10 the
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by showing that plaintiff does not possess, and cannot
reasonably obtain, the needed evidence. (Aguilar, supra,
25 Cal4th at p. 854, 107 Cal.Rptr.2d 841, 24 P.3d 493.)
Such a showing may be made by presenting “evidence
that the plaintiff does not possess, and cannot reasonably
obtain, needed evidence” because she has been provided
with extensive discovery and has discovered nothing.
(Aguilar, supra, 25 Caldth at p. 855, 107 CalRptr.2d
841, 24 P.3d 493.)

In this case, one of plaintiff’s discovery responses states
that defendants have the partnership books and records,
and that plaintiff has requested, but not been given access
to them. Defendants, on the other hand, have not
affirmatively shown that they have provided plaintiff with
the partnership **714 books and records. Under these
circumstances, defendants have not met their burden of
producing evidence that plaintiff cannot reasonably obtain
the needed evidence. {Aguilar, supra, 25 Caldth at p.
854, 107 Cal.Rpir.2d 841, 24 P.3d 493.)

Summary adjudication was improperly granted on this
cause of acuon.

v

Constructive Trust

Plaintiff claims the wial court improperly granted
defendants’ motion for summary adjudication with
respect to the cause of action for a constructive trust
relating 1o the Waterloo Road property, the $100,000, and
the partnership assets.

*177 Civil Code section 2224 sets forth the basis for the
imposition of a constructive trust: “One who gains a thing
by fraud, accident, mistake, undue influence, the violation
of a trust, or other wrongful act, is, unless he or she has
some other and better right thereto, an involuntary trustee
of the thing gained, for the benefit of the person who
would otherwise have had it.”

The provision is broad enough to encompass this action
regardless of defendants’ knowledge.

A. Waterloo Road Property
21 The constructive trust issues with respect to the
Waterloo Road property are whether defendants obtained

George’s interest in the Waterloo Road property through
fraud, accident, mistake, or other wrongful act, and
whether plaintiff had a better right to this propeny.”

Defendants adduced evidence in the summary judgment
proceeding that before Charles’s death, none of them had
knowledge of the terms of the George trust and that the
deed for the Waterloo Road property was transferred
pursnant 10 the terms of the unamended trust. Nor did
they address the 2002 amendment to the trust, their
kmowledge of the trust amendment, or their knowledge
that the property had been wransferred after Charles’s
death in contravention of the trust amendment. Even if
defendants were unaware of the trust amendment, plaintiff
could establish a cause of action for constructive trust
based upon the transfer of the Waterloo Road property by
mistake.

For these reasons summary adjudication was improperly
granied as to this cause of action.

B. $100,000

22} with regard to the $100,000, the facts alleged in the
complaint were again the same as those alleged with
respect to the financial abuse cause of action. The issues
are whether defendants gained the $100.000 by fraud,
accident, mistake, undue influence, the violation of a
trust, or other wrongful act, and whether plaintiff would
have a right to the money if defendants did not have it.

As with the partnership assets, defendants’ summary
judgment motion with respect to the money does not
attempt to conclusively negate an element of the cause of
action. This could have been done with evidence that
defendants *178 never possessed the money, or that they
possessed the money and had a superior right to it
Instead, defendants attempted to show that plaintiff does
not possess and cannot reasonably obtain the evidence
plaintiff needs to prove her claim.

*%718 This they attempied w do by the following
statement of undisputed fact: “Plaintiff has no evidence
that any of the Defendants were involved in the alleged
$100,020.39  transfer.” This statement does not
conclusively negate an element of the cause of action,
because plaintiff could be entitied o a constructive trust
with respect to the $100,000 if plaintiff can establish that
any defendant gained the money by accident, mistake,
fraud, undue influence, the violation of a frust, or other
wrongful act. Thus, defendants could have gained
possession of the money by mistake, even if they were not
involved in the original transfer of the money. Because a

constructive frust could be imposed upon the money even
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though none of the defendants were involved in the
transfer of the money, summary judgment was improperly
granted.

Moreover, the evidence supporting the undisputed
statement of fact does not prove what defendants say it
proves. The evidence is from plainiff’s deposition.
Plaintiff stated she had learned about the $100,000 within
the past two weeks. Plainiiff stated she had never
discussed the transfer with Yvonne, Ann, or James, and
she did not know if Yvonne or Ann had been involved in
the withdrawal of the money. Plaintff stated Charles and
Ann established the account (presumably the account to
which the money was transferred) and that both Charles
and Ann signed on the account. She knew of no
discussions between any of the defendants regarding the
money.

This evidence shows only that plaintiff had never
discussed the money transfer with any of the defendanis.
It established plaintiff had no evidence of Yvonne or
Ann’s involvement in the transfer, but it did not establish
her possession of evidence with regard to James's
involvement in the transfer.

C. Partnership Assels

™3 The issues with respect to the unnamed partnership
assets are whether defendants gained the assets by fraud,
accident, mistake, undue influence, violation of trust, or
other wrongful act, and whether plaintiff had a superior
right to the assets.

As with the cause of action for financial abuse,
defendants’ undisputed facts showing plaintiff had no
evidence they “took” assets from the partnership fails to
address the possibility that without taking the assets, they
*179 nevertheless gained assets by fraud, accident,
mistake, undue influence, violation of trust, or other
wrongful act. As noted, plaintiff’s discovery responses
stated plaintiff was not given access to the partnership
books and records: thus defendants have not shown that
plaintiff cannot reasonably obtain the evidence.

Accounting

24 A cause of action for an accounting requires a showing

that a relationship exists between the plaintff and
defendant that requires an accounting, and that some
halance is due the plaintiff that can only be ascertained by
an accounting, (Brea v. McGlashan (1934) 3 Cal. App.2d
454, 460, 39 P.2d 877; 5 Witkin, Cal. Procedure (5th ed.
2008) Fleading, § 819, p. 236.)

BST 26 pq action for accounting is not available where the
plaintiff alleges the right to recover a sum certain or a
sum that can be made certain by calculation. (51 James
Church of Christ Holiness v. Superior Court (1955} 135
Cal.App.2d 352, 359, 287 P.2d 387.) A plaintiff need not
state facts that are peculiarly within the knowledge of the
opposing party. (Brea v. McGlashan, supra, 3 Cal. App.2d
atp. 460,39 P.2d 877)

**T16 A. Partnership Assefs

Plaintiff alleged that defendants “took control of the
assets of the Besotes Brothers Partnership™ after Charles
died, to the demriment of Georgs, and demanded an
accounting of partnership assets. Defendants denied these
allegations.

B Defendants argue there was no relationship between
the parties that would reguire an accounting. They argue
they were never partners with George and that they were
never in a fiduciary relationship with George and that,
without either of these, there was no predicate
relationship entitling plaintiff to an accounting.

@8 B yowever, a fiduciary relaionship between the
parties is not required to state a cause of action for
accounting. All that is required is that some relationship
exists that requires an accounting. (Krirzer v. Lancaster
(1950) 96 Cal.App.2d 1, 7, 214 P.2d 407.) The right to an
accounting can arise from the possession by the defendant
of money or property which, because of the *180
defendant’s relationship with the plaintiff, the defendant
is obliged o surrender. (1A Corpus Juris Secundum
(2005) Accounting, § 6, p. 7.) If defendants took over the
business and assets of the partnership, they would have a
sufficient relationship to George, or to the executor of his
estate and trustee of his revocable trust, (0 require an
accounting of the parinership business. Defendants
produced no evidence to show they did not take over the
partnership assets after Charles’s death; therefore this
material fact is stili at issue.

B9 Defendants claim they pointed to plaintifi’s discovery
responses to show that plaintiff was unable to identify any
partnership assets “taken” by defendants. As stated above,
a defendant moving for summary judgment may shift the

irin Mo gl o

LA Brns B8 e BRI TN Y T b e ooy, o
R’a’x‘?_",z-{:f}’:‘;";\ﬁ.-\"ﬁ St <:3‘.,.> b B ERIYRRY Y

burden of proof to the plaintiff by relying on the

i Governrent Waorke, b

JA003058



Teselle v. McLoughlin, 173 Cal. App.dth 156 {(2008)

92 Cal.Rptr.3d 698, 09 Cal. Daily Op. Serv. 4913, 2008 Daily Joumnal D.AR. 5745

plaintiffs factuaily insufficient discovery responses to
show the plaintiff cannot establish an essential element of
the cause of action. (Bramiley v. Pisaro (1998) 42
Cal.App.4th 1591, 1598, 50 Cal.Rptr.2d 431.)

1 B4 However, the nature of a cause of action in
accounting is unigue in that it is a means of discovery. An
accounting is a “species of disclosure, predicated upon the
plaintiff’s legal inability to determine how much money,
if any, is due” (1A Corpus Juris Secundum, supre,
Accounting, § 6, pp. 7-8, fn. omitted.) Thaus, the purpose
of the accounting is, in part, to discover what, if any,
sums are owed to the plaintiff, and an accounting may be
used as a discovery device. (1A Corpus Juris Secundum,
supra, Accounting, § 26, p. 26.) An action for accounting
is not amenable t0 a motion for summary judgment or
sammary adjudication upon a showing that plaintiff does
not possess and cannot reasonably obtain the evidence
needed to compel the accounting, because the very
purpose of the accounting is ¢ obtain such evidence.

We therefore hold that defendants may not, as they have
atierapted 10 do. obtain summary adjudicaton of the
accounting cause of action on the basis of plaintiff’s
insufficient discovery answers.

B. Waterloo Road Property and $100,000

B3 With one exception, any amounts to which plaintiff is
entitled because of the transfer of the Waterloo Road
property, or the appropriation or retention of the

Footnotes

$100,000, consist of a sum certain or a sum that can be
made certain by calculation, and plaintiff cannot state a
cause of action for accounting as to these claims. The
exception is plaintiff’s claim that plaintiff is eatitled to an
accounting of any profits made by defendants on account
of the **717 Waterloo Road property after plaintff
transferred the property to them, but before they sold the
property. The summary adjudication with respect to such
sums is reversed for the same reasons stated with respect
to the partnership assets.

*181 DISPOSITION
The judgment is reversed. The trial court is directed to

deny the motion for summary judgment. Plaintiff shall
recover her costs on appeal.

We concur: SCOTLAND, P.I, and ROBIE, L

Parallel Citations

173 Cal.App.4th 156, 09 Cal. Daily Op. Serv. 4913, 2009
Daily Journal D.AR, 5745

t All further references to an unspecified code section are to the Code of Civil Procedure.
Subdivision (b}1} provides in relevant part that the motion “shall include a separate statement setting forth plainly and concisely
all material facts which the moving party contends are undisputed.”

2 Subdivision (b)(2} provides in relevant part that “opposition to the motion shall be served and filed not less than 14 days preceding
the noticed ... date of hearing, uniess the court for good cause orders otherwise.”

3 See footnote 17, infra, and accompanying text.

4 Subdivision (p)(2} provides in relevant part that the moving party “defendant ... has met his or her burden of showing that a cause

of action has no mexit if that party has shown that one or more elements of the cause of action, even if not separately pleaded,
cannot be established....”

George Besotes died a few weeks later, on October 1, 2002.

Section 437¢, subdivision (p)(2) is a renumbered subdivision (o ¥(2), at issue in Aguilar. (Aguilar, supra, 25 Cal.4th at p. 854, 107
Cal.Rptr.2d 841, 24 P.3d 493; Villa v. McFerren (1995) 35 Cal.App.4ih 733, 742 and 742, fn. 6, 41 Cal.Rptr.2d 719.)

Plaintiff has alleged other causes of action subject to the tral court’s granting of a summary judgment. Because we reverse the
summary judgment on three of the causes of action we have no cccasion to consider the remaining claims. “A defendant is entitled
to summary judgment [only] if the record establishes as matter of law that nore of the plaintiff’s asseried causes of action can
prevail. [Citation].” (Melko v. Hely Spirit Assn. (1988) 46 Cal.3d 1092, 1107, 252 Cal. Rptr, 122, 762 P.2d 46, italics added.)
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We refer to various Besotes and McoLoughlins by their first names for clarity and intend no disrespect thereby,

The provision does not provide that, if the propenty was not sold, it would be restored to the trust and made subject to the exchange
agreement, Nor does the record show it was amended to do so,

Although the record does not contain the brothers” partnership agreement, its provision of a fifiy-fifiy split of the partnership
property is the assumed basis for plaintiff’s claim.

As noted, George Besotes died a few weeks later, on October 1, 2002.

The second amended complaint avers that the deed 1o the Watedoo Road propenty was signed by plaintiff "at the insistence of
DEFENDANTS” and that the deed “should never have been executed [and the property} should have [bean] distribuied pursuant o
the terms of {the] Trust and the First Amendment thereto.”

We distill from the factual allegations of the pleadings the three claims that are dispositive of the motion for summary judgment
pursuant te Pomeroy’s primary night theory, (See 4 Witkin, Cal. Procedure (5th ed. 2008) Pleading, § 34, p. 98.) “ ‘[ Tlhe existence
of a legal right in an absiract form is never alleged by the plaintiff; but instead thereof, the facts from which that right arises arve sel
forth, and the right itself is inferved therefrom.” " (#hid.)

A copy of the First Amendment is {o be found at numerous places in the record.

The immediate effect of the amendment was to retain George's one-half interest in the Waterloo Road propenty in the George
Besotes irust, subject to the provision that “[ujpon the death of settlor ., the trusiee shall distribute the remaining trust estate to the
foliowing persons and in the portions shown....”

The reference to supporting evidence is to the “George O, Besotes 2000 Revocable Trust, attached as Tab 17 to DEMSL” That
reference is to the unamended trust.

Section 437¢, subdivision (b)3), in relevant part provides: “Failure to comply with this requirement of a separate statement may
constitute 2 sufficient ground, 1n the court’s discretion. for graniing the motion.” (ltalics added.}

Head grammatically, “this requirement” refers in the singular to the preceding sentence since there is more than one requirernent
in suhdivision (b){3). The sentence reads: “Each material fact contended by the opposing party to be disputed shall be followed
by a reference fo the supporting evidence.” That is the only failure to which the court’s express discretion applies,

As applicable here, section 437¢, subdivision (p}(2) provides in relevant part that the maoving party “defendant ... has met his or her
burden of showing that a cause of action has no rerit if that panty has shown that one or more elements of the cause of action, even
if not separately pleaded, cannot be established....”

Viila cites to 29 cases in support of this proposition. (35 Cal. App.4th at pp. 743-744, 41 Cal Rptr.2d 719.)

Security Pacific Nat. Bank v. Bradley, supra, 4 Cal.App.dih at page 95, fooinote 4, 5 Cal Rptr.2d 220, asserts that “these cases

cannot be interpreted to mean granting the motion on this ground is not subject to review for abuse of discretion.”
Moreover, unlike either Blackman or Security Pacific, where no responsive separate siaternents were filed at all, in this case,
plaintiffs separate statement was filed one day late. Neither Blackman, where the court indicated there was no abuse of
discretion because the responding party had been given two opportunities {o file the separate statemnent and had failed to do so,
nor Secarity Pacific, where the court indicated it was an abuse of discretion to grant the motion without aliowing the respouding
party an opporunity to file a separate staternent, is authority for the trial court's actions in this case, where the separate
siatement was filed one day late.

“The law and facts of a case bear a chicken and egg relationship. The law identifies the kinds of facts which are material to the
case. The facts delimit the applicable propositions of law.” (Andalon, supra, 162 Cal App.3d at pp. 604605, 208 CalRptr. 899, fu.
and citations omitted.)

Defendants’ reference in their statement of undisputed facts is to “Tab 13 to DEMSIL” "Tab 13 to DEMSI” is plaintiff's initial
compiaint, to which is atiached Exhibit A. Exhibit A is the George Besotes trust instrument iogether with its amendment removing
the Watedoo Road propenty from its provisions.

Subdivision (b)}(1} provides in relevant pari: “The supporting papers shall include a separate statement setting forth plainly and
concisely all roaterial facts which the moving party contends are undisputed. Each of the material facts stated shali be followed by
a reference to the supporting evidence.”

This too is subject to the court’s discretion. “The failure to comply with this requirement of a separate statement [t.e., the
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supporting evidence] may, in the court’s discretion constitute a sufficient ground for denial of the motion.” (Subd. (M){11}

As noted, 3 copy of the amenduent 1o the George Trust was attached to and incerporated in the complaint. In the absence, as here,
of a challenge o s evidentiary sufficlency it satisfies the requirement that a claim of disputed matenal fact be supported by
evidence. (§ 437c, subd. (b)3).}

Defendants claim in their bref that they were never nformed by plaintiff, or anyous, that they had money belonging to George.
However the svidence cited does not prove this fact. Plaintiff testified that she nevey discussed the transfer of funds with any of the
defendants, but that does not rule out defendants having leamed of the transfer in some other way, Yvonne declared she was not
aware of any misappropriation of fands by Ann, but this does not rule out any knowledge that Charles transferred the money, and
that defendants failed 10 repay the money, knowing that George had a right to the money.

Plaintiff alleged the Waterloo Road property has been sold, and that the parties have stipulated that the funds from the sale will be
deposited into a bark account until the litigation is resolved.
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2010 WL 3257033
Only the Westlaw citation is currently available.
United States District Court,
D. Nevada.

ORACLE USA, INC,, a Colorado corporation;
QOracle America, Inc., a Delaware corporation; and
Oracle International Corporation, a California
corporation, Plaintiffs,

V.

RIMINI STREET, INC., a Nevada corporation;
Seth Ravin, an individual, Defendants.

No. 2:10~-CV-00106~LRH~PAL. | Aug. 13, 2010.

West KeySummary

1 Telecommunications
“=fraud; Unauthorized Access or Transmission

Software company sufficiently pled a violaton
of the Computer Fraud and Abuse act. Software
company alleged that competitor used software
company’s customers’ login credentials (o
download at least 100,000 files in excess of
those customers’ license agreements.
Competitor allegedly auvtomated its massive
downloading with search “crawlers” which
allowed for unauthorized information gathering.
18 U.S.C.A. § 1030(a)(2)(C).

Opinion

ORDER

LARRY R. HICKS, District Judge.

*1 Before the conrt is Defendant Seth RBavin's (“Ravin™)
Muotion to Dismiss (# 49%). Plainidffs Oracle USA, Inc.,
Oracle America, Inc, and Oracle  International
Corporation {coliectively “Plainiiffs™) filed an opposition

{# 58) to which Ravin rephied (#f 64).

Also before the court is Defendant Rimind Street, Inc.’s
Motion to Dismiss (# 48).

i. Facts and Procedural History

On Febroary 15, 2010, Plaintiff Oracle USA, Inc. merged
with Sun Microsystems, Inc. (Am.Comply 15.) The
surviving corporation was renamed Oracle America, Inc.
(“Oracle America”). (fd.} Oracle America develops and
licenses intellectual property and provides related
services. (Id.) Plaintiff Oracle International Corporation
(“OIC") also owns and licenses intellectual property.
{(Am.Complj 16.)

Defendant Ravin is the founder, president, and CEQ of
Rimini Street. (Am.Comply 17.) Rimini Street is a
company that provides suppoit to companies that license
Oracle’s software applications. (Am.ComplLg{ 5, 18.)

On January 25, 2010, Plaintiffs filed a2 complaint against
Defendants (# 1).7 Plaintiffs allege that Rimini Street
iliegally downloaded Oracle’s software and support
materials by logging on to Oracle’s password protected
websites using a customer’s individual login credentials,
and downloading materials in excess of that customer’s
authorized license agreement. (Am.Compl J{ 5, 6.)
Further, Rimini Street ailegedly copied this software, in
order to offer low-cost support to other Oracle customers
and induce them to cancel their support contracts with
Oracle in favor of Rimini Street. (Am.Compl g 9.)

On April 4, 2010, Plaintiffs filed an amended complaint
against defendants (# 36) alleging thirtieen causes of
action: (1) copyright infringement; (2) viclation of the
federal Computer Fraud and Abuse Act, 18 US.C. §§
1030(a)(2XC), (a4 & (a)5) (3) violation of the
California Computer Data Access and Fraud Act,
California Penal Code § 502; (4) violation of Nevada
Revised Statute 205.4763; (5) breach of contract; (6)
inducing breach of contract; (7) intentional interference
with prospective ecconomic advantage; (8) negligent
interference with prospective economic advaniage; (9)
unfair competition, as defined by California Business &
Professions Code §§ 17200, er seq., (10} wespass w
chatiels; {11} unjust enrichment/restitution; (12} unfair
practices, as defined by California Business & Professions
Code §§ 17000, ef seq.; and (13) an accounting,

Thereafter, Defendants filed the present motions (o
dismiss (48, 49).
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Oracle USA, Inc. v. Rimini Sivest, Inc., Not Heported in F.Supp.2d (3010}

Bl Legal Standard

Defendants seek dismissal pursuant to Federal Rule of
Civil Procedure 12(b}6). To survive a motion to dismiss
for failure to state a claim, a complaint must satisfy the
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 8(a)(2) notice pleading
standard. See Mendiondo v. Centinela Hosp. Med. Cir.,
521 F.3d 1097, 1103 (9th Cir.2008). That is, a complaint
must contain “a short and plain statement of the claim
showing that the pleader is entided tw relief”
Fed.R.Civ.P. 8(a){(2). The Rule &(a){2) pleading standard
does not require detailed factual allegations: however, a
pleading that offers only “labels and conclusions” or “a
formulaic recitation of the elements of a cause of action”
will not suffice. Asheroft v. Ighal, — U.8, ——v, )
129 S.Ct. 1937, 1949, 173 L.Ed.2d 868 (2009) (quoring
Bell Atlantic Corp. v. Twombly, 550 U.S. 544, 555, 127
8.Ct. 1955, 167 L.Ed.2d 929 (2007)).

*2 Furthermore, Rule 8(a}2) requires a complaint to
“contain sufficient factual matter, accepted as irue, 1o
state a claim to relef that is plausible on its face.” Id. at
1949 (internal quotation marks omitted). A claim has
facial plausibility when the pleaded factual content allows
the court to draw the reasonable inference, based on the
court’s judicial experience and common sense, that the
defendant is Hable for the misconduct alleged. See id. at
1949-50. “The plausibility standard is not akin to a
probability requirement, but it asks for more than a sheer
possibility that a defendant has acted unlawfully. Where a
complaint pleads facts that are merely consistent with a
defendant’s Hability, it stops short of the line betwsen
possibility and plausibility of entitlement to relief.” Id. at
1949 (internal quotation marks and citation omitted).

In reviewing a motion to dismiss, the court accepts the
facts alleged in the complaint as true. Id. (citation
omitted). However, “bare assertions ... amountfing] to
nothing more than a formulaic recitation of the elements
of a ... claim ... are not entitled to an assumption of wuth.”
Moss v. US. Secret Serv., 572 F3d 962, 969 (Gih
Cir.2009) (guoting Igbal, 129 8.Ct. at 1951) (alteration in
original} (internal quotation marks omitted). The court
discounts these aliegations because they do “nothing more
than state a legal conclusion—even if that conclusion is
cast in the form of a factmal aliegation.” Id (citing Igbal,
129 8.Ct. at 1951.) “In sum, for a complaint to survive a
motion to dismiss, the non-conclusory ‘factual content,’
and reasonable inferences from that comtent, roust be
plausibly suggestive of a claim entitling the plaintiff to
relief” Id. (guoting Igbal, 129 §.Ct. at 1949).

1. Discussion

Defendant Ravin seeks to dismiss the following claims:
claim six (6} for inducing breach of contract; claim seven
{7) for intentional interference with prospective economic
advantage; claim eight (8) for negligent interference with
prospeciive economic advantage; claim nine (9) for unfair
competition, as defined by California Business &
Professions Code §§ 17200, ef seq.; claim eleven (11) for
unjust enrichment/restitution; claim twelve (12) for unfair
practices, as defined by California Business & Professions
Code §8 17000, of seq.; and claim thirteen {13) for an
accounting (# 49). Defendant Rimini Street also secks
dismissal of claims six, seven, eight, nine, eleven, twelve,
and thirteen, as well as claim two (2) for violation of the
federal Computer Fraud and Abuse Act, 18 U.S.C. §¢
1030()(2H0C), (a}4y & (a)5) claim three (3) for
violation of the California Computer Data Access and
Fraud Act, California Penal Code § 502; claim four (4)
for violation of Nevada Revised Statute 205.4765; and
claim ten (10} for wespass w0 chattels (# 48). The court
shall address each of the claims below.

A. Claim 2—Computer Fraud and Abuse Act

*3 In Count Two, Plaintiffs allege that Defendants
violated the Computer Fraud and Abuse Act, 18 U.S.C. §
1030. Under the act, it is a crime to intentionally access a
computer without authorization and thereby obtain
information. 18 U.S.C. § 1030(a)(2X(c).

Here, Plaintiffs allege that Defendant Rimini Street
violated § 1030(a)(2)(C) by using Oracle customers’ login
credentials to download at least 100,000 files in excess of
those customers’ license agreements. {Am.Comply] 3.
44) Moreover, Plaintiffs allege that Rimini Street
automated its massive downloading with search
“crawlers” which allow for unauthorized information
gathering. (Am.ComplL{ 6.) Taking the allegations in the
light most favorable to Plaintiffs, the court finds that
Plaintiffs have sufficiently pled a violation of the
Computer Fraud and Abuse Act.

B. Cisim 3—California Computer Data Access and
Fraud Act

In Count Three, Plaintiffs allege that Defendants have
violated the Computer Data Access and Fraud Act,
California Penal Code § 502. Under § 502{c}2). it is a
crime to knowingly access and without permission, take
data from a computer network. CALPENAL CODE §
S02(cH2).

Here, Plaintiffs sufficiently allege that Defendants have
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violated California Penal Code § 502(c)(2) by knowingly
accessing and without permission, taking, copying, and
making use of Oracle’s materials and other data from
Oracle’s Technical Support website, including at least
100,000 unauthorized files. (Am.Complg§ 44, 92.)
Accordingly, the court will not dismiss this claim.

C. Claim 4—Nevada Revised Statute 2065.4765

Under Nevada Revised Statute 2054765, it is a
misdemeanor for a person® 1© gain unauthorized access o
data or supporting documents that exist inside or outside 2
computer, systern, or network. NRS 205.476S.

As above, Plaintiffs allege that Defendants violated
Nevada Revised Statute 205.4765 by kanowingly, and
without authorization, obtaining or attempting to obtain
access 0 Oracle’s software and support materials,
including at least 100,000 unauthorized files by using
automated search crawlers to cull restricted and
unauthorized information. (Am.Compld 44, 102)
Therefore, the court finds that Plaintiffs have likewise
pled a claim for violation of asserted facts Nevada
Revised Statute 205.4765.

D, Claim 6—Inducing Breach of Contract

Plaintiffs allege that Defendants induced Plaintiffs’
customers to breach their contracts with Plaintiffs,
(Am.Comply 118.) Intentional interference with
contractual relations has its roots in the tort of inducing
breach of contract. Seaman’s Direct Buving Serv. v. Std.
0il. Co., 36 Cal.3d 752, 206 Cal.Rpir. 354, 686 P.2d 1158
{Cal.1984). To state a claim for intentional interference
with contractual relations, Plaintiffs must establish the
following elements: (1) a valid and existing contract; (2)
the defendant’s knowledge of the contract; (3) intentional
acts intended or designed to disrupt the contractual
relationship; (4) actual disruption of the contract; and (5)
resulting damage. Sutheriand v. Gross, 105 Nev. 192,
772 P.2d 1287, 1290 (Nev.1989).

#4 Here, Plaintiffs assert the existence of valid contracts
with their customers through the Temms of Use on
Oracle’s customer support website. (See Am. Compl. §
116.) Further, Plaintiffs allege that Defendants bad
knowledge of Oracle’s contracts through Ravin's
admissions, and therefore intentionaily disrupted those
contracts through their use of customer credentials to
download materials that were not licensed by Defendants
or the customer. (See Am. Compl. 9§ 5-7, 46.) Finally,
Plaintiffs  argue that Defendants”  “large-scale
downloading”™ has damaged Oracle’s servers and resulied
in “loss of profits from sales to current and potential

customers.” (See Am. Compl. §§ 7, 65.)

In opposition, Defendants argue that the claim should be
dismissed because Defendants acted on behalf of their
customers and thus cannct be held liable for inducing
breach of contract. (See Ravin Mot Dismiss (# 49)
4:8-10; see also Rimini Street Mot. Dismiss (# 48)
11:21-12:16.) However, the court finds that Plaintffs
have sufficiently pled that Defendants used Oracle’s
customers’ support passwords which Defendants did not
have authorized access to, to force their customers fo
violate the terms and use agreement by accessing
unauthorized information, Therefore, the court finds that
Plaintiffs have alleged facts establishing a claim for
intentional interference with contractual relations.

E. Claim 7—Intentional Interference with Prospective
Economic Advantage

A cause of action for interference with prospective
economic advantage requires: (1) a prospective
contractual relationship between the plaintiff and a third
party; {2) knowledge by the defendant of the prospective
relationship; {3) intent to harm plaintiff by preventing the
relationship; (4) the absence of privilege or jusiification
by the defendant; and (3 actual harm to the plaintiff as a
resuit of the defendant’s conduct. Leavitt v. Leisure
Sports, Inc., 103 Nev. 81, 734 P.2d 1221, 1225
{Nev.1987).

Here, Plaintiffs allege that they had expectations in
continuing economic relationships with prospective
purchasers and licensees by providing increased support
services and sofiware updates to its cusiomers. (See Am.
Compl. § 121.) Further, Plaintiffs allege that Defendants
intended o harmn Plaintiffs’ business by luring customers
with promotional statemenis regarding Defendants’
ability to provide support services for Oracle software
which Defendants were not privileged in offering because
they could only offer these services through improper
access to Oracle America’s computer systems. (See Am.
Compl. 9 124.) Therefore, taking the allegations in the
complaint in the light most favorable to Plaintiffs, the
court finds that Plaintiffs have sufficiently pled a claim
for interference with prospective economic advantage.
Accordingly, the court shall not dismiss this claim.

F. Claim B—Negligent Interference with Prospective
Economic Advantage

#5 In Count Eight of the amended complaint, Plaintiffs
assert a claim of negligent interference with prospective
economic advaniage against Defendanis {(Am.Compl§i
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of M. Toping, and also restraining the defendant
Goldfield Consolidated Mines Company from transferring
any part of said 30,000 shares of the capital stock of said
company, for which certificates were issued in the name
of M. Toping, or from doing any other act that would
render ineffectual any judgment that may be rendered in
this action. At or about the time the plaintiffs and the
defendant Botsford secured an option upon the stock of
the Combination Mines Company, an agreement was
made and entered into by and between the defendant
Botsford and C. J. Moore wherein and whereby it was
agreed that the said Moore, in consideration of services
rendered or to be rendered by him in and about the
premises, should receive a share of whatever profits the
defendant Botsford might make out of said proposed
merger, but this agreement was thereafter modified by
said parties, and, in lieu of an interest in the profits, said
Muoore was paid the sum of $25,000 in cash, and said sum
of $25,000 was accepted by said Moore in full payment of
any and all services rendered or performed by him in the
premises, and in satisfaction of any claim that he might
have to an interest in said profits under the terms of the
agreement made and entered into with him as aforesaid.
That the defendant Botsford did not expend any moneys
of his own in the securing of said option or in the
effecting of said merger, but that all moneys necessary for
that purpose were secured from other parties, and that said
partics were repaid and compensated for the moneys
advanced by them out of the 100,000 shares of the capital
stock of the Goldfield Consolidated Mines Company.,
which was received as a gross profit, commission, and
compensaton for the securing and assignment of said
option. That the plaintiffs have fully performed each and
all of the terms, covenants, and conditions of said
agreement to be by them kept and performed, and they
have during all of the negotiations which resulted in the
securing of said option and the effecting of said merger
furnished the defendant Botsford with such information
and money and have performed such services as were
required of them. That the agreement made and entered
into between the defendant Botsford and the plaintiffs was
acted upon by all of the parties thereto.

On these findings of fact the lower court awarded a
judgment to each of the plaintiffs of 15,000 shares of the
capital stock of the Goldfield Consolidated Mines
Company as their portion of the commission in stock and
$6,000 accrued dividends on said 30,000 shares of stock,
less one-third each of $25,000 in cash which was paid to
Mr. Moore by appeliant. From this judgment and order of
the lower court denying appellant’s motion for a new trial,
this appeal is taken.

1t is strenuously argued by the able and eloquent counsel

who represent the appellant in this case that the whole
agreement, as alleged *719 in the complaint, never in fact
existed, and from start to finish there was a conspiracy on
the part of the respondents 10 defraud the appellant out of
the two-thirds of the profits of this deal, which he
contends was conducted solely by him and without any
agreement whatever between the respondents L. C. Van
Riper and Joseph Hutchinson and himself, and that they
were not in any way interested or concerned. The lower
court, in its opinion, in speaking of this conspiracy fo
deprive Botsford out of a substantial portion of his
commission, says: “It is very earnesily and eloquently
contended in Mr, Botsford’s behalf that a conspiracy was
entered into by the plainiiffs and Webster Bishop to
defraud Botsford of a substantial pact of the fruits of his
labors. There is absolutely no evidence in this case which
would warrant the court, even by the remotest inference,
in concluding that a conspiracy was enfered into. A
conspiracy must be established by clear and convincing
proofs, and not by the tenuous inferences or exsufflicate
surmises of counsel, however cunningly awakened or
eloquently depicted.” A very careful review of the
testimony in this case convinces us, also, that such a
conspiracy has not been proven. Neither do we feel
warranted in saving, after a most thorough examination of
the entire record, that there is not such sufficient
substantial evidence introduced to have warranted the
lower court in its findings on which it predicated the
judgment in this case against the appellant. Further, we
are of the opinion that there is such a substantial conflict
of testimony on all the material points and issues raised
that we would not be justified or authorized to depart
from the well-established iaw in this state that, where
there is a substantial conflict in the testimony on material
issues, this court will not disturb the findings of fact in the
lower court.

The main point in this whole controversy is, as we view
the case, whether or not such a legal enforceable
agreement has been pleaded under the doctrine of joint
adventure in the complaint of respondents as to justify the
lower court, if such an agreement as pleaded is proven, to
have rendered the judgment and decree that it did in
behalf of plaintiffs. We are of the opinion that the
complaint states a good cause of action under the doctrine
of joint adventure, and the findings of fact on which the
judgment of the lower court was found are sufficiently
broad to maintain that judgment.

Counsel for the appellant contend that no legal agreement
is pleaded, in that there is no consideration on the part of
respondents sufficiently plead or proven to warrant the
court in enforcing the contract alieged in the complaint,
even conceding that such an agreement as pleaded was
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eniered into. Counsel seem to be of the impression by
reason of the fact that appellant did most of the
negotiations and work of putiing through the deal that the
small part played by respondents, even if their testimony
granted be true, would not be sufficient consideration on
which to create a valid coniract that could be enforced. In
this respect we totally disagree. If the respondents entered
into a mutual agreement with appellant, as alleged in the
complaint, to secure the option in question for the purpose
of making the deal, and did no more than to make the
suggestion by advice and counsel, and pointed out to
appellant the status of the properties in controversy and
the scheme which led up to the deal, and placed the
appellant in touch with the situation, and the appeliant
agreed to do all the other work in consummating the idea
and plan of merging the properties into the deal, and
agreed with respondents to divide equally the profits of
the deal, this mutual agreement, founded on mutual
promise of aid, assistance, counsel, and effort, would be a
sufficient consideration to support the contract under the
doctrine of joint adventure. 23 Cyc. p. 454; Alderton v,
Williams, 139 Mich, 296, 102 N. W. 753 (1805}); King v.
Bames, 109 N. Y. 267, 16 N. E. 332; O’Hara v. Harman,
14 App. Div. 167, 43 N. Y. Supp. 556; Bogua v.
Marshall, 88 Ark. 373, 114 5. W. 714 (1908); Gorham v.
Heiman, 90 Cal. 346, 27 Pac. 289; Jones v. Patrick (C. C.)
140 Fed. 403; Shea v. Nilima, 133 Fed. 209, 66 C. C. A,
263. We do not wish to be undersiood, however, from
what we have stated, that we doubt respondents did rot do
a great deal more than appellant gives them credit for in
bringing to a successful termination this mining deal from
which the profits of the commission sued upon originated.
The lower court, in commenting on this point, very
properly says: “Common honesty requires that every
person who makes an agreement should effectually live
up to it, whether the agreement involves a merger of large
mining interests or is simply an ordinary transaction, and
the mere fact that one of the parties may have contributed
more than his quota of talent and energy to the
consummation of the deal does not justify bim in
disavowing his promise, or of refusing to give to his
associates what he agreed should be theirs.” The law is
well established that property purchased or acquired in
connection with a joint adventure or profits realized from
a joimt adventure of the joint property of the parties
interested, where one party bolds title to the same, that
such property is held in law to be the property of his
associates, and the party holding the same is holding their
proportionate share as trustee for them. 23 Cyc. pp.
455-459; Hayden v. Eagleson, 15 N. Y. St. Rep. 200;
Fueschsel v. Bellesheim, 14 N. Y. St. Rep. 610;
Richardson v. McLean, 80 Fed. 854, 26 C. C. A. 190,
Morris v. Wood (Tenn. Ch. App.) 35 5. W. 1013; Lyles v.
Styles, 15 Fed. Cas. p. 1143, No. 8,625; Cunningham v.

Davis (Tenn. Ch. App.) 47 S. W. 140; Matthews v.
Kerfoot, 64 Iil. App. 571, Jones v. Davis, 48 N. J. Eq.
493, 21 Atl. 1035 (1891); Spier v. Hyde, 92 App. Div.
467, 87 N. Y. Supp. 285; *711 Calkins v. Worth, 215 Il
78, 74 N. E. 81; Putnam v. Bumill, 62 Me. 44;
McCuicheon v. Smith, 173 Pa. 101, 33 Atl. 881; Getty v.
Devlin, 54 N. Y. 403; Church v. Odell, 100 Minn. 98, 110
N. W. 346 (1907); Knapp v. Hanley, 108 Mo. App. 353,
83 S. W, 1005 (1904); Hancock v, Tharpe, 129 Ga. 812,
60 8. E. 168 (1908); Reilly v. Freeman, 1 App. Div. 560,
37 N. Y. Supp. 570; Marston v. Gould, 6% N. Y. 220;
Humburg v. Lotz, 4 Cal. App. 438, 88 Pac. 510; Williams
v. Love, 2 Head (Tean.) 80, 73 Am. Dec. 191; King v.
Wise, 43 Cal. 628. We further find that the law is well
established that the relation between joint adventurers is
fiduciary in its character, and the utmost good faith is
required of the trustee, to whom the deal or property may
be intrusted, and that such trustee will be held strictly to
account {o his co-adventurers, and that he will not be
permitted by reason of the possession of the property or
profits, whichever the case may be, to enjoy an unfair
advantage, or have any greater rights in the property by
reason of the fact that he is in possession of the property
or profits as trustee than his co-adventurers are entitled to.
The mere fact that he is intrusted with the rights of his
co-adventurers imposes upon him the sacred duty of
guarding their rights equally with his own, and he is
required to account strictly to his co-adventurers, and, if
e is recreant to his trust, any rights they may be denied
are recoverable. 23 Cye. p. 455; Cole v. Bacon, 63 Cal
571; Hambleton v. Rhind, 84 Md. 456, 36 Atl. 597,40 L.
R. A, 216; Seehorn v, Hall, 130 Mo. 257, 32 8. W. 643,
51 Am. St. Rep. 562; Scudder v. Budd, 52 N. I. Eq. 320,
26 Atl. 904; Getty v. Devlin, 54 N. Y. 403; Hollister v.
Simonson, 18 App. Div. 73,45 N. Y. Supp. 426; Reilly v.
Freeman, 1 App. Div. 560, 37 N. Y. Supp. 570;
Delmonico v. Roudebush (C. C) 5 Fed. 165; Morris v,
Wood (Tenn. Ch. App.) 35 8. W. 1013; Knapp v. Hanley,
108 Mo. App. 353, 83 S. W. 1005; O'Hara v. Harman, 14
App. Div. 167, 43 N. Y. Supp. 556; Calkins v. Worth, 215
1il. 78, 74 N. E. 81; King v. Wise, 43 Cal. 628,

Counsel for appellant seem to lay stress on the fact that by
reason of the appellant putting up most of the costs in
putting through this deal, and the fact that the respondents
were financially embarrassed, that this is further proof
indicative of the weakness of or lack of the consideration
of the agreement sought to be enforced. As before stated,
the mere mutual promise of the parties furthering and
rendering their aid, advices, and suggestions, if agreed to
was sufficient consideration to support the contract under
joint adventure; but the law is well established that the
furnishing of capital by the parties to a joint adventure is
not necessary fo the validity of the contract, so long as the
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original agreement on which the contract was entered into
was carried out. Bogua v. Marshall, 88 Ark. 373, 114 S.
W. 714; Van Tine v. Hilands (C. C.) 131 Fed. 124, The
evidence discloses, and the findings of the lower court are
to the effect, that the respondents performed their part of
the contract entered into, and stood ready at all times to
further aid, as far as laid in their power, pursuant to their
agreement, the consummation of the deal originally
agreed upon. That they were not called upon to do so by
appellant is not a sufficient reason in law or equity t©
invalidate their right to share in the profits of the deal,
because the appellant saw fit to take the reins and do most
or all of the work himself after the original agreement was
made and entered into.

The fact that it required jarge sums of mongy to carry the
deal through, counsel for appellant seem to believe
vitiates the consideration of the agreement alleged, for the
reason it is admitted respondents were practically
penniless. We fail 1o see any merit in this contention.
Appellant himself did not possess the mezans to carry the
transaction through, and, in order {0 acquire means o do
so, appellant bartered away 50,000 shares of the
commission which belonged jointly to the parties to the
agreement and which was valued at $500,000 for the use
of $50,000 in cash from Mr. Davis, and bartered away
another 5,000 shares of the commission to result from the
deal in consideration of $25,000 cash advanced by Mr.
Haskell. Money was not the consideration of the
agreement advanced on the part of the respondents, nor is
it so pleaded nor contended. but it was the scheme,
claimed to have originated in the brain of Hutchinson, and
supplemented by advice and aid of Hutchinson and Van
Riper. and bringing to the attention of Botsford the
possibilities of the deal, which are the very good and
sufficient considerations advanced by respondents, as
against the camying out of the plan of the deal by
Botsford, to the exclusion of seeking or accepting less and
less aid and advice ex industria from the respondents, as
the success of the venture became more apparent and
effected. Money advanced by one party to a joint
adventure is held to be a loan to the venture, for which the
party is entitled to be reimbursed out of the proceeds of
the venture; but, by reason of the advancing of such
money, it does not entitle the party so advancing to any
superior right as against his co-adventurers. 23 Cyc. pp.
457, 458, Boqua v. Marshall, 88 Ark. 373, 114 5. W. 714;
Thurston v. Hamblin, 199 Mass, 151, 85 N. E. 82; Stone
v. Wright Wire Co., 199 Mass. 306, 85 N. E. 471,
Burhans v. Jfefferson, 76 Fed. 25, 22 C. C. A. 25;
Sanguinett v. Webster, 153 Mo. 343, 54 § W. 563;
Woodward v. Holmes, 67 N. H. 494, 41 Atl. 72; Leamy v.
Fisler (N. J. Ch.) 52 Atl. 703; Rankin v. Black, 1 Head
{Tenn.) 650; Crenshaw v. Crenshaw, 61 S. W. 366, 22

Ky. Law Rep. 1782; Williams v. Love, 2 Head (Tenn.}
80, 73 Am. Dec. 191; Gee v. Gee, 2 Sneed (Tenn.) 395;
Withers v. Pemberon, 3 Cold. (Tenn.) 56; Furman v,
McMillian, 2 #*712 Lea (Tenn.) 121; Finlay v. Stewart, 56
Pa. 183; Stover v. Flack, 30 N. Y. 64, Doane v. Adams,
15 La. Ann. 350; Bell v. McAboy, 3 Brewst. (Pa.) 81. The
law is also well established that, in the absence of an
express agreement, the law implies an equal division of
the profits of a joint adventure without regard to any
inequality of contribution. 23 Cyc. p. 439; Wetmore v.
Crouch, 150 Mo. 671, 51 §. W. 738; Knapp v. Hanley,
108 Mo. App. 353, 83 5. W. 1005; Van Tine v. Hilands
(C. C.) 131 Ped. 124; Jones v. Davis, 48 N, 1. Eq. 493, 21
Ath 1035 (1891).

Counsel for the appellant assign as error the decree of the
lower court, in that it awards plaintiffs a share of the stock
rather than a money judgment, and that in this action the
court, under the pleadings, was not authorized to have
made an accounting between the parties. The law,
however, is well established that a party to a joint
adventure holding the profits of the venture may be held
to account 0 his co-adventurers for their share of the
property representing such profits in kind, and we see no
error in the court giving respondents their share of the
stock. In the case of Delmonico v. Roudebush (C. C.) 5
Fed. 165, the plaintiff demanded that he be declared the
owner of a one-sixteenth interest in a certain mine. The
court found that the defendant held a one-fifth interest in
the mine as the net compensation for negotiating the
purchase and sale of a certain option and gave the
defendant a one-sixteenth interest of the one-fifth interest
found to represent the net profits of the transaction. In the
case of Reilly v. Freeman, 1 App. Div. 560, 37 N. Y.
Supp. 570, a certain proportion of stock held by the
defendant as net profits of a joint adventure was awarded
to the plaintiff. The profits of a joint adventure may
consist, not alone of money, but of the unsold portion of
the property which was the subject of the venture, or of
property received as compensation for services rendered
in connection with the venture. 23 Cyc. p. 460: Jones v.
Davis, 48 N. J. Eq. 493, 21 Ad. 1035; Scott v. Clark, 1
Ohio St. 382; Delmonico v, Roudebush (C. C) § Fed.
165; Reilly v. Freeman, 1 App. Div. 560, 37 N. Y. Supp.
570; Marston v. Gould, 69 N. Y. 220. It is also well
settled in law that one party (© a joint adventure may sug
the other at law for the breach of the contract, or share of
the profits or losses, or a contribution for advances made
in excess of his share, but the remedy at law does not
preclude a suit in equity for an accounting. In this state,
under our Code of Procedure, the district court in proper
cases may administer both legal and equitable relief. 23
Cyc. pp. 453-461; Bogua v. Marshall, 88 Ark. 373, 114 S.
W. 714, Reilly v. Freeman, 1 App. Div. 560, 37 N. Y.
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Supp. 570; Petrie v. Torrent, 88 Mich. 43, 49 N. W. 1076,
Spier v. Hyde, 92 App. Div. 467, 87 N. Y. Supp. 285;
McElroy v. Swope {C. C) 47 Fed. 380; Van Tine v.
Hilands (C. C.) 131 Fed. 124; Edson v. Gates, 44 Mich.
253, 6 N. W. 645; King v. Barnes, 109 N. Y. 267, 16 N,
E. 332; Bradley v. Wolff, 40 Misc. Rep, 592, 83 N. Y.
Supp. 13; Marston v. Gould, 69 N. Y. 220; Kirkwood v.
Smith, 47 Misc. Rep. 301, 95 N. Y. Supp. 926-929; Jones
v. Davis, 48 N. J. Eq. 493, 21 Atl. 1035 (1891); Scudder
v. Budd, 52 N. J. Eq. 320, 26 Atl. 904 (1894); Humburg
v. Lotz, 4 Cal. App. 438, 88 Pac. 510 (1906); Flower v.
Barnekoff, 20 Or. 132, 25 Pac. 370, 11 L. R. A. 149;
Corhin v. Holmes, 154 Fed. 593, 83 C. C. A. 367,
McMaullen v. Hoffman (C. C.) 75 Fed. 547. One party to a
joint adventure may set off against the demand of another
amounts advanced by him toward the venture or payments
made by him in behalf of the plaintiffs; and in this respect
the court was justified in so deducting the amount
expended by the appellant in behalf of Moore from the
judgment given in favor of respondents. 23 Cyc. p. 461;
Armstrong v. Henderson, 99 Va. 234, 37 S. E. 839; Bogua
v. Marshatl, 88 Ark. 373, 114 8. W. 714,

We do not believe there is any merit in the contention of
the appellant that the court erred in making an accounting
of the amount expended, and in deducting the same from
the amount found to be due plaintiffs, as the law
applicable to the rules of partnership apply to joint
adventures, and in suits between partners for amounts due
them accountings are always allowed in an action of this
character. The rules and principles of the doctine of
partnership apply generally to the relation of joint
adventure, Church v, Odell, 100 Minn. 98, 110 N. W. 346
(1907); O’Hara v. Harman, 14 App. Div. 167, 43 N. Y.
Supp. 556, Marston v. Gould, 69 N. Y. 220; Wilcox v.
Prait, 125 N. Y. 688, 25 N, E. 1091; Kirkwood v. Smith,
47 Misc. Rep. 301, 95 N. Y. Supp. 926, Stone v. Wright
Wire Co., 199 Mass. 206, 85 N, E. 471; Calkins v. Worth,
215 0L 78, 74 N. E. 81 (1905); Bradley v. Wolff, 40
Misc. Rep. 592, 83 N. Y. Supp. 13; Flower v. Barnekoff,
20 Or. 132, 25 Pac, 370 (1890); Scudder v. Budd, 52 N.J.
BEq. 320, 26 Atl. 904 (1894); Humburg v. Lotz, 4 Cal
App. 438, 88 Pac. 510; McMaullen v. Hoffman (C. C) 75
Fed. 547, Van Tine v. Hilands (C. C) 131 Fed. 124;
McElroy v. Swope (C. C) 47 Fed. 380; Bogua v.
Marshall, 88 Ark. 373, 114 S, W, 714; Delmonico v.

Roudebush (C. C.) 5 Fed. 165; Spier v. Hyde, 92 App.
Div. 467, 87 N. Y. Supp. 285; Reilly v. Freeman, 1 App.
Div. 560, 37 N. Y. Supp. 570.

In conclusion it is proper to observe, as the pleadings
allege, and as the testimony discloses and findings of the
lower court set forth, that these three co-adventurers
jointly entered into an agreement, as alleged in the
complaint, and which the court has found was entered into
to consummate this deal, which resulied in so great an
amount of good to the Goldfield mining district, and
which paid so handsomely in profits to the parties
padertaking the task of bringing the *713 interests
together and thereby avoiding the litigation, which
threatened to paralyze the diswrict. The whole case, it
appears to us, resolves itself into a pure question of fact,
as to whether or not the agreement pleaded in the
complaint was entered inio by the respective parties, and
the lower court having so found that such an agreement
was entered into, after a careful, thorough, and exhaustive
examination of the evidence in this case, we do not feel
justified or warranted on this appeal in setting aside or
disturbing the judgment of the lower court based on iis
findings, heretofore referred to, where the material
testimony is so conflicting on the material issues.

Under the pleadings and the principles governing the
doctrine of joint adventure, which we have herein
discussed, we believe the judgment is amply sustained by
the pleadings, evidence, and findings, and we sare
therefore of the opinion that the judgment of the lower
court must be affirmed. ¥t is so ordered.

TALBOT, ., concars, NORCROSS, C. 1., concurs in the
judgment.
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Mitche!l v, O'Nesle, 4 Nev. 504 {1888)

4 Nev. 504
Supreme Court of Nevada.

HENRY K. MITCHELL, APPELLANT,
\Z
WILLIAM T. O'NEALE, RESPONDENT.

January Term, 186¢.

West Headnoies {5}

{1l Account
=Issues, Proof, and Variance
Parinership

{2}

{31

s=Issues, Proof, and Variance

Though the testimony does not establish the
contract of partnership which forms the
foundation of plaintiff’s cause of action for an
accounting, yet, if the pleadings and evidence
satisfactorily make out a case entitling plaintiff
to an accounting by reason of the reiation of the
parties as tenants in common, relief will be
granted.

Contracis
w=Mutuality of Obligation

Anp agreement by which one, without furnishing
any means or labor o further a common
enterprise, is to share equally in the profits and
property acquired by the labor and means of the
other, is without mutuality.

Contracis
aMutuality

An agreement by which one, without furnishing
any means or labor to further a common

property required by the labor and means of the
other, is without consideration, and void.

2 Cases that cite this headnote

(4] Partnership
w»Consideration

A copartnership agreement, in which one of the
partners promises to give the other partner an
equal interest in the profits of the enterprise,
without anything being furnished by the latter to
accomplish the object of the copartnership, is
without mutoality, and accordingly is void.

51 Trusts
«Weight and Sufficiency

A person who, claiming an interest in property,
vet allows another to take the title in his own
name, and to treat it as his own for years, cannot
complain if, when he seeks to establish his right
to such property, he is required to make out a
strong and satisfactory case.

1 Cases that cite this headnote

*365 APPEAL from the District Court of the First
Tudicial District, Storey County.

The material facts are stated in the opinion.
Attorneys and Law Firms

Williams & Bixier and Aldrich & De Long, for Appellant:

Argued that Mitchell was a sub-partner with O’Neale,
{Coll. Part., sec. 184), and that on a bill for settlement of
such parinership the general pariners were not reguired 1o
be made parties. (Coll. Part., sec. 365; 1 Dan. Ch. Pr.
1865, 211.) They claimed that for the above reason Hall

enterprise, is to share equally in the profits and
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fitehell v. O'Neals, 4 Nev, 504 (1838}

and Clark were not required to be made parties, that
moreover they had been settled with, {1 Dan. Ch. Pr. 209;
Towle v. Pierce, 12 Met. 329}, and that the plaintff was
only secking an account of the profits which the
defendant received out of the transactions on joint
account.

*506 C. J. Hillyer & Mesick and Seely, for Respondent:

This suit can settle the affairs of no other partnership than
the one alleged. {Tryon v. Sutton, 13 Cal. 494} The
complaint charges a parinership, describes its character,
and sets forth the terms of the contract upon which it iy
based. It was necessary to do this distinctly and with legal
certainty, or the bill would have been defective and
insufficient fo support a judgment. (Story’s Eg. PL, sec.
241.) Tt is equally clear that the proofs must sustain the
coniract as stated, or the plaintiff must fail. (I Chit. PL
304 et seq.)

David Bixler, for Appellant, in reply:

Where a bill calls for an account of partnership
transactions, and its whole frame i3 adapted and confined
to that object, the defendant may plead in bar that he is no
partner. (Coll. on Part., §§ 368, 370.) So far as the Crown
Point stock transaction is concemed, the fact that no
allegation was contained in the bill that Hall and Clark
bad been settled with could certainly not have prevented
the plaintiff from obtaining an account of it (I3 Cal
494

The prominent points in the evidence were discussed at
great length by the respective counsel.

Opinion
*514 By the Court, LEWIS, C. J.:

The examination of this case has conducied us to these
conclusions: First. That the evidence is not sufficient to
establish a copartnership between the plaintiff and
defendant of the general character alleged in the bill;
Second. Whether a partnership of any kind were proven
or not. the plaintiff made out a case entitling him to an
accounting with respect 10 the operations of the
Marysville mill, and therefore that his bill should not have
been dismissed.

As it is desirable to dispose of this case upon its merits,
we will proceed to give the reasons which have conducted
us to these conclusions. Whether a general partnership
between the parties existed or not is a proposition not by
any means relieved from doubt, for the plaintff testifies

positively, as aileged in the bill, that a partnership was
entered info which was 0 exiend to the business of
milling and crushing metalliferous rock, and generally to
all matters and things which the said defendant might see
proper (o engage in; but the testimony of the defendant is
direct, positive and unqualified that no parmership
agreement of any kind was ever entered into between
himself and the plaintiff. Such conilict in the testimony of
two persons of unguestioned veracity must necessarily
involve the first conclusion arrived at in considerable
doubt. The burden of proof, however, is on the plaintiff,
and in a case of this kind where it is sought to obtain the
legal title to, and possession of, a large amount of
property, both real and personal, all the outward evidence
of right and tide to which is in the defendant, the proof
should be very satisfactory indeed to justify a decree such
as that sought by this bill. He who claiming an interest in
property, yet allows another to take the title in his own
name and to treat it as his own for years, cannot complain
if when he seeks {0 establish his right to such property he
is reguired to make out a strong and satisfactory case. The
courts have ever been averse to disturbing the title of the
ostensible owner of real property, except upon clear and
weighty proof. The inclination is always to favor the legal
title and maintain it in hkim who holds it. But the
testimony on behalf of the plaintiff in support of the
partnership falls far short of being satisfactory or
convincing. Indeed, upon a candid weighing *515 of all
the testimony, and placing upon it the most favorable
construction possible for the plaintiff, still, whether such
general partnership as that atternpted to be proven was in
fact entered into remains exceedingly doubtful. The very
inequality of the original agreement of partnership,
accepting it as explained by Mitchell, at once creates the
impression that he must bave been mistaken as to its
character. It appears that all the work and labor were to be
performed by O’Neale, whilst the only obligation which
the agreement seems to have imposed upon the plaintiff
was that of sharing the profits and accepting an equal
interest in the property acquited by the efforts of the
defendant. The latter was 10 emigrate 10 Nevada, where he
was to enter into any and all kinds of speculations and
business which he might deem proper, and without being
obliged to furnish any means or doing anything to further
the common enterprise, the plaintff was tw have an
interest in every transaction entered into, and all property
obtained by the defendant. This copartnership agreement,
in short, appears to have been nothing more than a
promise on the part of O’Neale to give to the plainGff an
equal interest in all the propeity which he might secure in
the State of Nevada. Upon the showing thus made by the
plaintiff himself, the contract or agreement was entirely
without mutuality, founded upon no consideration and
hence entirely void. Let it be supposed that such a
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promise was made, and the defendant with the intention
of fuifilling it came to Nevada and acquired property,
taking the title in his own name, can it be said that upon
such a promise the plaintiff could secure a half interest in
all such property? We think not; and yet there is little, if
anything, else than such a promise upon which the
plaintiff can claim an interest in the property held by the
defendant, except the Marysville mill and the Crown
Point stack. He advanced money for the purchase of the
mill, and it is acknowledged that he was admitted to, or
interested in, the stock. But it is not claimed that he
furnished any money whatever for the purchase or
acquisition of the balance of the property in which he
claims to be interested, and hence his interest in it must
rest solely upon the agreement testified (o as having been
entered into in the State of California.

It seems to us the plaintiff’s own testimony fails to make
out his *516 case, establishing as it does only a naked
promise by O’Neale founded upon no consideration. As,
however, this point is not made by counsel, we will not
rest our decision upon if, but proceed with the
consideration of the guestion as to whether any contract
or agreement of copartnership whatever is established by
evidence sufficient to justify a recovery by the plaintiff.

Mitcheil’s testimony, as has already been stated, is
positive and explicit that a contract of partnership, as
above described, was entered into, and the defendant as
positively denies it--and so there is a direct conflict
between the parties as to the existence of any contract of
partership whatever. So far as the plaintiff’s interest in
the Marysville mill is concemed, there is no conflict in
the evidence--O'Neale himself testifying that he
purchased a guarter interest in the mill, and afterwards
sold one-half of such interest to Mitchell for a
consideration, a part of which was paid before the mill
was completed. And this acknowledged interest in the
mill will serve to explain many of the expressions
empioyed by the defendant in the letters to which
reference will hereafter be made. The very nature of the
contract, as stated by Mitchell himself, would doubtless
make the evidence thus far preponderate in favor of the
defendant; for it is very improbable that any person would
enter into a contract 5o burdensome to himself, and yet
yielding him no advantage. There is, however, some other
evidence, which it is claimed tends to establish the
copartnership, and thus to corroborate the plaintiffs
testimony. But in our opinion counsel attach more weight
to that evidence tham it is entitled to. McGowan's
testimony does not go beyond showing a joint interest or
partnership in the Marysville mill. So too, with Barbour’s,
He states explicitly that in the conversation between
himself and O’Neale the admission of partnership was
confined to the mill. And in the papers and pleadings in

the case of Reilly v. O'Neale and others, not 2 syilable
appears indicating any community of interest beyond that.
Hall’s testimony is confined exclusively to the transaction
of the purchase of the Crown Point stock, and there is
nothing tending to show any partnership connection
between the parties in any matter beyond that particular
transaction.

In the letters written by the defendant to Mitchell there are
some *517 fugitive expressions which may be construed
as a recognition of a general partnership, but they admit
of s0 many natural and rational explanations and are so
vague in themselves that they cannot be accepted as proof
entitled to much, if any, weight. In the letter of March 28,
A. D. 1863, this portion is referred to in support of the
plaintiff’s case: “I made a purchase yesterday of sixty feet
of Crown Point stock, in which Joe Clark is equally
imerested. The cost is $5,000, being about $83 per foot. It
cannot be had for anything like those figures to-day. I
think it an admirable investment, and candidly believe
that in less than sixty days we will be able to realize from
our half of it $15,000. The purchase is not connected with
the mill, which I consider at the present time an
advantage. The ground adjoining it on the south (which
by the way is known 10 be good) cannot be had for less
than $300 per foot. The same ground sold one week ago
for $80. I am now negotiating for sixty feet more, and am
willing © pay $100 per foot. Will know to-momow
whether or not 1 can get it. None of the incorporated
Crown Point is for sale at any price. The Yellow Jacket
claim, bounding it on the south, is selling now for $375
per foot, and not much in the market at that price. The
purchase 1s not a company matter,”

That O'Neale would not write o the plainiff so minutely
with respect 1o business matters in which the latter had no
perscnal interest, is entirely without weight, when it is
remembered that these parties were, at the time this letter
was written, connected by the most intimate and friendly
relations. The employment of the pronoun “we” and the
pronominal-adjective “our™ is refeived to as a recognition
by the defendant that Mitchell was interested with him in
the stock, counsel arguing that these words, being in the
plurai form, could not possibly refer 10 any but the writer
of the letter and the plaintiff to whom it was written. If
such were admitted to be the case, still it would not, even
unexplained, be a very strong circumstance in favor of a
general partnership between the parties, for it does not
follow that such relation existed between them simply
because they were jointly interested in one fransaction
*518 of this kind. But the inference deduced by counsel
from the letter is not by any means necessary or
exclusive. In the first place, the assumption that the
defendant would not have used the words “we” and “our”
in the connection in which they are employed unless some
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ihtchell v, O'Neale, 4 Nov, 584 {1888}

one was interested with him in the stock spoken of, has
but the barest probability to rest upen. Although incorrect,
it is not unfrequently the case that the plural pronoun is
used for the first person singular, and so with the
pronominal-adjective “our.” It may be admitted that it is
improbable that they were so used by the defendant. What
then? We have simply a bare probability that some one
was interested with the defendant in the Crown Point
stock written about. But then comes the inguiry: Who was
that person? What evidence is there that it was the
plaintiff? As a matter of fact, the person actually
interested with the defendant, whoever he might be, was
the person referred to. Who that person was does not
appear from the letter. Let it be supposed that in this letter
the defendant had mentioned Hall as being interested with
him in the stock, it would not here be contended that the
expressions referred to by counsel could indicate that the
plaintiff had any interest. Hall and the defendant could
alone be considered as the persons represented by the
personal pronoun employed. We do not see how the
failure to state who the interested person was can indicate
that the plaintiff was that person, any more than if it had
been stated that Hall was interested. Without such
statement or explanation, it is frue, the letter would would
not convey to the plaindff the information who the person
interested with the défendant was, nor the extent of
(O’Neale’s personal interest. It may, however, have been
deemed unnecessary to give that information.

It is argued that as no person was mentioned in the letter
by the defendant as being interested with him, and that as
the letier was addressed to the plaintiff, it is a patwral
inference that he was the person interested. If the plaintiff
did not in fact know who was interested with O'Neale, it
is possible that such an inference might be deduced from
the language. Suppose, however, Mitchell, by a previous
letter or in some other way, had been informed that Hall
had made the purchase of the stock with the defendant,
the *519 expression in the letter would not certainly have
authorized any such inference. Why? Because the plural
pronoun used could and would not then have conveyed to
him the impression that any on¢ but Hall was interested
with the writer of the leiter. The language, of itself,
therefore, contains no positive admission that the plaintiff
was interested with the defendant. If it be an admission of
anything at all, it is a sirnple admission that some one not
mentioned was interested with him. Who that person was
does not appear from the letter, but when the facis are
brought to light, it appears to have been Hall. It is shown
that the defendant, Hall, and Clark purchased sixty feet of
stock:; Clark to have thirty feet, one-half, and the
defendant and Hall to be equally interested in the other
half. This fact being known, it is seen the plural pronouns
were very properly employed as referring to Hall and the

the whole letter perfectly intelligible was the mention of
the name of the persons referred to by the words “we” and
“our.” With the impressions which Mitchell rnay have had
about this matter we have nothing to do. The inquiry here
is whether O’Neale, in the letter referred (o, admitted that
the plaintiff had an interest in the stock. As the
employment of the expressions referred to is explained by
the fact that Hall was interested with him, to say that he
did not refer to Hall, but to the plaintiff, simply because
the letter was addressed to the latter, and no explanation is
made as to who the third party was, is the assumption of a
fact upon the weakest probability imaginable. An
accasional use of a plural pronoun by the defendant when
writing with respect to the mill, the stock above referred
to, and the mining interests in Humboldt county, is all that
is found in the many letters produced by the plaintiff and
introduced in evidence in support of his testimony that an
unlimited partnership existed between himself and
(J'Neale. We doubt whether any persons occupying the
social relations existing between these parties could very
well exchange the number of letters upon business matters
here introduced and employ fewer expressions tending to
establish some joint interest between them, than can be
found in those presented in this record.

A paper is then produced purporting to be a statement of
*520 the liabilities and assets of the partnership, furnished
by the defendant to the plaintiff, the history of which is
thus, in substance, related by the plaintiffi Being
somewhat dissatisfied with (F’Neale. becanse of some
business transaction, he demanded a statement of the
coadition of their affairs. In compliance with this request
a paper was made out which contains a staternent of debts
amounting to about $32,000, and also of property, or
assets, the value of which., however, is not mentioned.
This, plaintiff testifies, was given him as a statement of
the assets and liabilities of the partnership. But the
defendant testifies, with respect to it, in this manner: In
the month of January, A.D. 1866, “Mir. Mitchell came to
me, and wanted to borrow money, He had done so
repeatedly before, and T had stated to him my condition
and inability to let him bave it. I thought from his manner
he doubted the correctness of my statement. This was on
Friday or Saturday. I told him to come to the Marysville
mill on the next Sunday. and that I would give him an
exhibit of my affairs, and convince hirn of the correctness
of what I had told him, and I gave him the staternent for
that purpose.”

As a satement of the condition of a partnership it is
admitted this paper is deficient and imperfect in many
particulars, The name of the plaintiff nowhere appears
upon it, nor is there anything in it indicating that he was
in any wise interested in the property described. It is,
however, argued that such a statement could only have

writer of the letter; and the only thing necessary to render
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Aditchell v. O'Neals, 4 Nev. 504 {1888}

been intended as an exhibit of partnership affairs; that itis
not probable the defendant would have made out such an
exhibit simply for the purpose of showing that he was not
able to loan the plaintiff money. But why not probable?
These parties were very intimate and had been so for
years. That the defendant should desire to satisfy his
friend that he was really unable, rather than unwilling, to
accommodate him, surely bears nothing improbable about
it. That 1s of daily occurrence, and is prompted by the
most nataral feeling of our namwe. Why, it is asked,
should an exhibit of the assets or property be made, if the
only purpose were as stated by the defendant? Surely that
was necessary even for that purpose. An exhibit of the
defendant’s indebtedness only, without *521 his assets,
would surely not satisfy the plaintiff that the defendant
was not able to Ioan him money. It will not be denied, we
presume, that it was necessary even for the purpose stated
by the defendant to make an exhibit of his labilities. Why
not equally necessary to make a showing of his assets
which were to meet such liabilities? His assets might have
greatly exceeded his liabilities, and been of a character
which might be readily convertible into money. Hence it
was certainly necessary for the defendant, if he wished
fully to satisfy the plaintiff that he was not in a condition
to loan money, to make an exhibit not only of his
fiabilities, but also of his assets. O'Neale’s explanation of
this statement is not then so improbable as it appears to be
to counsel for appellant. We see nothing in it either
unreasonable or improbable.

And this is substangiaily all of the plaintiff’s testimony to
establish the contract of copartnership claimed to have
been entered into between himself and the defendant. The
plaintiff, it must be admitted, testifies with certainty and
clearness, but is corroborated only by the expressions
used in the letters, and the exhibit above referred 0. On
the other hand the defendant as distinctly and positively
denies that any contract of partnership was ever entered
into between himself and the plaintiff, and his testimony
is corroborated by circurnstances, not perhaps of any great
weight, yet not entrely unworthy of consideration.
Although the defendant was constantly engaged in
speculations and business transactions of various kinds,
and this too with the knowledge of Mitchell, yet no
inquiry seems to have been made as to the condition of
matters during all that time. So, too, when the plaintiff
desired 10 obtain money from the defendant, without any
mention of other property, or inquiry as to the condition
of affairs, be morigaged his interest in the Marysville mill
10 obtain it of him. Although it is conceded there was no
motive for concealing the partnership, yet during the
entire period of about siz years the plaintiff has failed to
show that the defendant either directly admitted, or did
any act bevond what we have referred (o, recognizing any

inguiries with respect to the Marysville mill, he seems
never to have given the other business or transactions in
which he *522 now claims to have been interested a
single thought. Such circumstances, although not leading
directly to the door of truth, are inconsistent with the
existence of the general partnership claimed to be existing
between these parties. It is not natural that man should be
so utterly indifferent about matters of this kind, and by his
frequent inguiries about the Marysville mill property, it is
at least rather evident that such indifference is not a
characteristic of the plaintiff. The direct testimony of the
defendant, corroborated in some degree by these and
many other circumstances of like character, which are
found in the record, to say the least, renders the existence
of the general partnership, testified to by the plaintiff, a
matter of doubt. So much so certainly that it cannot very
well be held that the plaintiff, upon whom the burden of
proof tests, has established it by such a preponderance of
evidence as to authorize the reversal of the judgment and
finding which were against him in the lower court.

But notwithstanding the testimony does not establish the
contract of partnership which forms the foundation of the
plaintiff’s cause of action, yet the evidence, very
satisfactorily to our mind, makes out a case entitling him
to an accounting, not by reason of any partnership, for
that could only be created as between the parties
themselves by an agreement or uaderstanding to that
effect, (and that we conclude is not sufficiently shown
here) but by reason of their relations as tenants in
common, and the necessity of an accounting before relief
can be granted. It appears that for a period of six or seven
years the parties have been interested together in the
Marysville mill and its earnings, O’Neale having the
entire management of the concern, receiving all the
profits, and occasionally paying money to the plainff,
But no settlement seems ever o have taken place between
them. Under such circumstances an accounting will
always be decreed, although no partnership be proven, for
the establishment of that relation is not always essential 0
the right to have an accounting. (Post v. Kimberly, 9 1. R.
470.}

Willard in his work on Equity, 92, observes: “On the
whole, it may be laid down as the general rule, deducible
from what has been said, that equity entertains 2 general
jurisdiction in rmatters *523 of account growing out of
privity of contract. Where there are mutual accounts;
where the accounts are all on one side, and a discovery or
a writ ne exear is prayed and granted; where the taking of
an account of several estales is necessary, where
multiplicity of suits renders the trial difficult, expensive
and unsatisfactory at law.” (See also Id. 91; Garr v
Redman, 6 Cal. 574.) It is evident, then, that the existence

such partnership. And while Mitchell made freguent
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an accounting. But it may be objected that as his bill
charges a partnership, and the account is prayed of
partaership transactions, he is not entitled to a decree for
an account of matters growing out of other relations.
Perhaps, as a general rule, upon a bill for the adjustment
of copartnership affairs, an account would not be decreed
with respect to matters not connected with such
partnership. Here, however, the answer obviates all such
questions, for it is distinctly admitted that the plainuff
had, or has, an interest in the Marysville mill, and shows a
state of affairs certainly entitling the plaintiff to an
account to that extent, and goes on to state that the
accounts between plaintiff and defendant, relating to the
transactions of the Marysville mill, have never been
settled, and defendant is at present unable to state
precisely how the same do stand; but he is ready and
willing to have a fair, full and just settlement of the same,
and of ail other matters between him and the plaintiff, and
to pay him any and all sums found due him upon such
settlernent. Upon this answer the plaintiff was surely
entitled 10 an accounting with respect to the affairs of this
mill. To that relief he was entitled upon the pleadings
themselves. The court below, therefore, emed in
dismissing the bill.

As a decree is sought only against the defendant. it is not
essential o the plaintiffs case that any of the other
tenants in common in the mill, or the persons interested
with himself and the plaintiff in the stock enterprise,

should be parties to this bill; if, however, the court should
find that full adjustment cannot be had without bringing
them into court, it may order them brought in.

‘We are further of the opinion that the plaintiff, upon an
amendment of his bill, showing the facts respecting the
second Crown Point stock transaction, will be entitled to
an account of that also.

#524 The judgment dismissing the bill is reversed, with
leave granted to plaintiff w amend, should he choose to
do so; and the court below will decree an accounting of
all matiers touching the Marysville mill; and, should the
bill be amended, also of the second Crown Point stock
transaction.

Tt is so ordered.

WHITMAN, §., did not participate in the foregoing
decision.

Parallel Citations

1868 WL 2011 (Nev.)

Enst of Document

@ 2012 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U8, Government Warks.
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e KeyCite Yellow Flag - Negative Treatment
Distinguished by Mendoza v. Countrywide Home Loans, Inc.,
N.D.Cal., December 3, 2009

173 Cal.App.4th 156
Court of Appeal, Third District, California.

Helen Besotes TESELLE, As SBuccessor Trustes,
ete., Plaintiff and Appellant,

V.
Yvonne McLOUGHLIN, Individually, and as
Suecessor Trustee, ete., et al., Defendants and
Respondents.

No. Co54919. | April 22, 2009. | Rehearing Denied
May 12, 2009.

Synopsis

Background: Decedent’s sister, individuaily and in her
capacities as successor trustee and personal representative
of decedent’s estate, brought action against defendants
who had interests in trust, seeking to recover decedent’s
interest in property for his heirs on the ground that sister
had mistakenly conveyed it t0 pariner’s trust because she
was unaware that decedent’s trust, which previously
provided for an exchange of interests between decedent
and partmer upon death of either, had been amended to
exclude that property. Defendants filed motion for
summary judgment, and sister filed late response and later
filed points and authoritics. The Superior Court, San
Joaquin County, No. CV022732, Carter P. Holly, 1.,
granted defendants” motion for summary judgment, and
sister appealed.

Holdings: The Court of Appesl, Blease, 1., held that:

U faiture of defendants’ summary judgment motion to
address material allegation of complaint that trost was
amended to remove property from exchange agreement
preciuded defendants from obtaining summary judgment
on claim that sister had mistakenly conveyed the property;

2 penuine issues of material fact as o reasons for alleged
wransfer of funds to second wust and a8 10 knowledge of
the transfer precluded summary judgment on claim for
eider financial abuse;

Bl defendants who did not affirmatively show that they
provided sister with parinership books and records did not

meet summary judgment burden of producing evidence
that sister could not reasomably obtain the needed
evidence to show that partnership assets were secreted,
appropriated, or retained by defendants or that they acted
in bad faith;

¥ sister could establish cause of action for a constructive
trust based on wansfer of tust property by mistake
regardless of whether defendants were award of the trust
amendment;

Bl genuine issues of material fact as to whether any
defendant gained $100,000 sum by accident, mistake,
fraud, undue influence, the violation of a frust, or other
wrongful act precluded summary judgment for defendants
on claim for constructive trust;

© defendants did not show that sister could not
reasonably obtain evidence that defendants pained
unnamed partnership assets by fraud, accident, mistake,
undue influence, violation of trust, or other wrongful act
as required to prevail on motion for summary judgment as
to sister’s claim for constructive trust over the partnership
assets; and

7 defendants could not obtain summary adjudication of
accounting cause of action on the basis that sister did not
possess and could not reasonably obtain the evidence
needed to compel the accounting,

Reversed with directions.

West Headnotes (33}

i Judgment

A defendant is entitled to summary judgment
only if the record establishes as matter of law
that none of the plaintiff’s asserted causes of
action can prevail.

1 Judgment
“wMotion or Other Application

Dhommon Megizrs Mo claim o
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13

%

Judgment
wwEffect of faiture to file affidavit

The tial court’s discretion to grant summary
judgment based on the opposition’s failure to
respond with a separate statement of facts
applics only to the failure to support with
evidence each material fact contended to be
disputed; if there is no such fact, no evidence is
required and there is nothing to which the
opposing  party must respond.  West's
Aan.Cal.C.CP. § 437¢c(b)(3).

Judgment
=Nature of summary judgment

The purpose of a summary judgment proceeding
is to permit a party to show that material factual
claims arising from the pleadings need not be
tried because they are not in dispute. West’s
Ann.Cal.C.CP. § 437c.

& Cases that cite this headnote

Judgment
w=Ahsence of issue of fact

The complaint measures the materiality of the
facts tendered im a defendant’s summary
judgment challenge to the plaindff’s cause of
action, West’s Ann. Cal. C.C.P. § 437c.

6 Cases that cite this headnote

Judgment
wPresamptions and borden of proof

Once a moving paity defendant has met the
burden of showing that a cause of action has no
merit and that one or more ¢lernents canaot
established, the summary judgment burden
shifts 1o the plaintff 1o show that a triable issue
of one or more material facts exists. West's

[7

183

Amn.Cal. C.CP. § 437¢c(p)(2).

6 Cases that cite this headnote

Judgment

swMotion or Other Application
Judgment

w~Effect of failure to file affidavit

While the court may, in its discretion, grant
summary judgment if the opposing party fails to
file a proper separate statement, the court is not
authorized o do so without first determining
that the moving party has met its initial burden
of proof. West’s Ann.Cal.C.C.P. § 437¢(b).

Judgment
<Presumptions and burden of proof

Generally, from commencement to conclusion,
the party moving for summary judgment bears
the burden of persuasion that there is no triable
issue of material fact and that he is entitled to
judgment as a matter of law. Wests
Ann.Cal. C.C.P. § 437¢.

2 Cases that cite this headnote

Judgment

w=Motion or Other Application
Judgment

#«Evidence in General

Judgment

= Presumptions and burden of proof

It is within the trial court’s discretion in a proper
case to refuse to consider evidence not
referenced in the opposition papers 10 a
summary judgment motion, which may affect
the evidence which the court considers and may
elevate the significance of the evidence asserted
in the moving party’s separaie statement;
nonetheless, the moving party must support its
motion with supporting papers and its separate
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9

{203

staternent must address the allegations of
material fact in the complaint, and if the moving
party fails to do so, the motion for summary
judgment  must be  denied. West's
Amm.Cal.C.CP. § 437c.

1 Cases that cite this headnote

Judgment

$=Trust cases

Judgment

&=Motion or Other Application

Failure of defendants’ summary judgment
motion to address material allegation of
complaint, which alleged that trust was amended
to remove property from exchange agreement,
precluded defendants from obtaining summary
judgment on successor trusiee’s claim that she
had mistakenly conveyed the property that was
subject to the amendment; while defendants set
forth the unamended provision of the trust as an
undisputed material fact and supported the
assertion with a reference to a copy of the
unamended trusy, defendants failed to address
the allegation in the complaint that the rust was
amended, and, as the fact of the amendment was
adduced at the outset of the pleading, no
responsive  statement and  accompanying
reference to the supporting evidence by
successor trustee was reguired to establish it
West's Ann.Cal.C.C.P. § 437c(b)(L. 3), (p}2).

1 Cases that cite this headnote

Judgment
s=Nature of summary judgment

The purpose of a summary judgment proceeding
is to permit a party to show that material factual
claims arising from the pleadings need not be
tried because they are not in dispute. West's
Ann.Cal.C.C.P. § 437c.

8 Cases that cite this headnote

{1

11z

13}

{14

Judgment
w=Absence of issue of fact

Materiality of factual claims for summary
judgment purposes depends on the issues in the
case, and what matters are at issue is determined
by the pleadings, the rules of pleadings, and the
substantive law. West's Ann.Cal. C.C.P. § 437¢c.

1 Cases that cite this headnote

Judgment
s=Absence of issue of fact

The complaint measures the materiality of the
facts tendered in a defendant’s summary
judgment challenge to the plaintiff’s canse of
action, West’s Ann.Cal. C.C.P, § 437c¢.

2 Cases that cite this headnote

Pleading

swMatters of evidence
Pleading

w~Natare and office

A complaint measures the materiality of the
facts asserted as a cause of action; it ordinarily
does not assert an evidentiary fact,

1 Cases that cite this headnote

Protection of Endangered Persons
w=Property and finances

Financial abuse of an elder occars when any
person or entity takes, seCretes, appropriates, or
retains real or personal property of an elder adult
10 a wrongful use or with an intent 1o defrand, or
both; a “wronghul use” is defined as taking,
secreting, appropriating, or retaining property in
bad faith, which occurs where the person or
entity knew or should have known that the elder
had the right to have the property transferred or
made readily available to the elder or to his or
her representative. West’s Amn.CalWelf, &
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i15]

(151

i

Inst.Code § 15610.30.

8 Cases that cite this headnote

Judgment
w+Trust cases

(enuine issues of material fact as to reasons for
alleged wansfer of funds from first trust w
second trust and as to knowledge of the fransfer
precluded summary judgment for second trust
defendants on claim for elder financial abuse by
successor trustee of first tust.  West’s
Ann.Cal Welf, & Inst.Code § 15610.30.

4 Cases that cite this headnote

Protection of Endangered Persons
s=Property and finances

Financial abuse of an elder can be stated not
only against the person who takes the property,
but alsc against the person who secretes,
appropriates, or retains the property in bad faith.
West’s Ann,Cal. Welf. & Inst.Code § 15610.30.

8 Cases that cite this beadnote

Judgment
w«Bvidence and Affidavits in Particular (ases

Second trust defendants did not affirmatively
show that they provided plaintiff with
partnership books and records as required to
meet summary judgment burden of producing
evidence that plaintiff could not reasonably
obtain the needed evidence to show that
partnership assets were secreted, appropriated,
or retained by defendants or that they acted in
bad faith; one of plaintff’s discovery responses
stated that defendants had the partnership books
and records, and that plaintiff had requested but
had not been given access to them. West’s
Ann.Cal. Welf, & Inst.Code § 15610.30.

18}

i

293

Appeal and Error
w=Extent of Review Dependent on Nature of
Decision Appealed from

On review of a summary judgment, the relevant
facts are limited to those set forth in the parties’
staternents of undisputed facts, supported by
affidavits and declarations, filed in support of
and opposition 10 the metion in the present case,
to the extent those facits have evidentiary
support; facts not contained in the separate
statements do not exist. West’s Ann.Cal.C.C.P.
§ 437c.

2 Cases that cite this headnote

Judgment

w=Weight and sufficiency

Judgment

@=Existence or non-existence of fact issue

A defendant moving for summary judgment is
entitied to summary judgment if he or che either
conclusively nepates an element of the
plaintiff’s cause of action, or shows that the
plaintff cannot establish at least one element of
the cause of action. West's Ann.CalC.C.P. §
437¢.

1 Cases that cite this headnote

Judgment
s Weight and sufficiency

A summary judgment showing that a plaingfl
does not possess, and cannot reasonably obtain,
the needed evidence may be made by presenting
evidence that the plaintiff does not possess, and
cannot  reasonably obtain, needed evidence
because she has been provided with extensive
discovery and has discovered nothing. West’s
Ann CalC.CP. §437c.
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21]

{22}

Trusts
weMistake in conveyance

Decedent’s sister, individually and in ber
capacities as successor trustee and personal
represenative  of decedent’s estate, could
establish cause of action for a constructive trust
based on wansfer of trust property by mistake
after discovering tust amendment which
excluded property from exchange agreement,
regardiess of whether defendants, who were
assaciated with other trust which received the
property, were aware of the trust amendment.
West's Ann.Cal.Civ.Code § 2224,

See Cal. Jur. 3d, Trusts, §§ 343, 347, 353; Cal.
Civil Practice (Thomson Reuters/West 2008)
Probate and Trust Proceedings, § 24:9; 12
Miller & Starr, Cal. Real Estate (3d ed. 2001} §
34:114; 13 Witkin, Summary of Cal. Law {10th
ed. 2005) Trusts, § 319: Ahart, Cal. Practice
Guide: Enforcing Judgments and Debts {The
Rutter Group 2008) § 3:379 (CADEBT Ch
3-C).

Judgment
@=Trust cases

CGenuine issues of material fact as to whether
any defendant gained $100,000 sum by accident,
mistake, fraud, undue influence, the violation of
a trost, or other wrongful act precluded
summary judgment for defendants on
constructive frust claim brought by decedent's
sister, individually and in her capacities as
successor frustee and personal representative of
decedent’s estate, regarding $100,000 in funds
transferred from decedent’s bank account to his
brother’s bank account, West’s
Ann.Cal.Civ.Code § 2224,

1231

4]

25}

[26}

Judgment
e~Fyidence and Affidavits in Particular Cases

Defendants did not show that decedent’s sister,
individually and in her capacities as successor
trustee and personal representative of decedent’s
estate, could not reasonably obtain evidence that
defendants gained unnamed partnership assets
by fraud, accident, mistake, undue influence,
violation of trust, or other wrongful act, as
required for defendants to prevail on motion for
summary judgment as to sister’s claim for
coastructive trust over the partnership assets, in
light of sister’s discovery responses which stated
she was not given access to the partnership
books and records. West’s Ann.Cal.Civ.Code §
2224,

Account
#~Nature and grounds of right to an account

A cause of action for an accounting requires a
showing that a relationship exists between the
plaintiff and defendant that requires an
accounting, and that some balance is due the
plaintff that can only be ascertained by an
accounting.

68 Cases that cite this headnote

Account
w=Nature and scope of remedy

An action for accounting is not available where
the plaintiff alleges the right o recover a sum
certain or 2 sum that can be made certain by
calculation.

21 Cases that cite this headnote

Account
<=Bill, complaint, or petition
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(28]

29

{391

A plaintiff seeking an accounting need not staie
facts that are peculiarly within the knowledge of
the opposing party.

Judgment
seParticular Cases

Genuine issue of material fact as to whether
defendants took over partnership assets after
partner’s death precluded summary judgment on
accounting claim brought by decedent’s sister,
individually and in her capacities as successor
trustee and personal representative of decedent’s
estate.

Account
sweFiduciary relations

A fiduciary relationship between the parties is
not required to state a cause of action for
accounting; all that is required is that some
relationship exists that requires an accounting.

35 Cases that cite this headnote

Account
w=Nature and grounds of right to an account

The right to an accounting can arise from the
possession by the defendant of money or
property which, because of the defendant’s
reladonship with the plaintiff, the defendant is
obliged to surrender.

4 Cases that cite this headnote

Judgment
“eActons in which summary judgment is
authorized
Judgment

34

@

333

wwAccounting and accounts

Defendants  could not  obtain  summary
adjudication of plaintiff’s accounting cause of
action on the basis that plaintiff did not possess
and couid not reasonably obtain the evidence
needed to compel the accounting, as the very
purpose of the accounting was to obtain such
evidence.

3 Cases that cite this headnote

Account
wNature and grounds of right ¢ an account

An accounting is a species of disclosure,
predicated upon the plainiff’s legal inability o
determine how much money, if any, is due; thus,
the purpose of the accounting is, in part, 0
discover what, if any, sums are owed io the
plaintiff, and an accounting may be used as a
discovery device.

9 Cases that cite this headnote

Judgment

“=Actions in which summary judgment is
authorized

Judgment

“Accounting and accounts

An action for accounting is not amenable to a
motion for summary jedgment or Ssummary
adjudication upon a showing that plaintiff does
not possess and cannot reasonably obtain the
evidence needed to compel the accounting,
because the very purpose of the accounting is to
obtain such evidence.

Account
weMature and scope of remedy

Any amounts to which plaintiff was estitled
ecause of the fansfer of property, or the
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appropriation or retention of $100,000, consisted
of a sum certain or a sum that can be made
certain by calculation such that plaintff could
not state a cause of action for accounting as to
those claims; the exception was plaintif{’s claim
that plaintdff was entitled to an accounting of
any profits made by defendants on account of
the property after plaintiff transferred the
property to them, but before they sold the
property.

30 Cases that cite this headnote

Attorneys and Law Firms

**706 Freeman, D’ Aiuto, Plerce, Gurev, Keeling & Wolf,
Thomas H. Keeling, Stockton & Franklin J. Brummet,
for Plaintff and Appellant.

Downey, Brand, M, Max Steinheimer, Mathew J. Weber,
Stockton, for Defendants and Respondents.

Opinion
*+701 BLEASE, J.

*160 This case illusiraies the primacy of the complaint in
measuring the materiality of the facts which a motion for
summary judgment must address. It involves the
relationships of af least four subdivisions of the summary
judgment statute, (Code Civ. Proc., § 437¢, subds. (b)(1),!
(bX2),2 (03’ and (pX(2).")

The trial court granted defendants’ motion for summary
judgment on the ground that plaintiff failed by one day to
file a rimely opposition statement of disputed material
facts. (§ 437¢, subd. (b)2).) It said the failure was “a
sufficient: ground, in the court’s discretion, for granting
the motion” pursuant to subdivision (b)(3). The court
further found that defendants set forth a prima facie case
for judgment with their moving papers and evidence. (See
§437c, subd. (pX2).)

We shail conclude that the late filing of an opposition
statement does not violate the policies of subdivisions
(bX(2) or (b)(3) of section 437¢ and that, because the
moving parties’ separate statement (§ 437¢, subd. (B)(1))
did not address a material fact in the complaint, it did not
assert a prima facie case of entitiement {0 a summary
judgment and did not shift the burden to plaintiff to file an

The parties have interests in or control of the properties of
the partnership of two brothers, George and Charles
Besotes. As part of their estate planning, *161 the
brothers established separate trusts that provided for an
exchange of the brothers’ interests in four real properties
owned by the partnership on the death of either partner.
One of the properties is known as the Waterloo Road
property. It was removed from the exchange provisions
by amendment of the George C. Besotes 2000 Revocable
Trust (the George trust). Charles died in August of 2002°
and plaintiff, as trustes of the George trust, conveyed the
Waterloo property to the Charles Besotes and Ann G.
Besotes 2000 Revocable Trust (the Charles trust) pursuant
to the exchange provisions of the unamended George
trust.

Plaintiff brought this action against defendants, who have
interests in the Charles trust, to recover George's interest
in the Waterloo Road property for his heirs on the ground
plaintiff mistakenly conveyed it because plaintiff was
unaware the George trust had been amended. The
operative complaint recites the provisions of the trust
amendment and alleges that, as a result, George’s interest
in the Waierloc Road property “no longer [was] subject to
the exchange ‘agreement’..” A copy of the trust
amendment is attached to plaintiff's initial compiaint and
is part of defendants® moving papers.

**702 Defendants’ answer did not deny the existence of
the trusi amendment nor deny “that as a result ... the
Waterloo Road property was no longer subject to the
exchange agreement...” Rather, it said the latter
allegation “contains a legal conclusion to which no
response is needed.”

On appeal, defendants do not contest the fact of the trust
amendment or challenge its legal effect. They base their
summary judgment motion on the ¥n amended provisions
of the George trust. This violates the fundamental rule
that the moving papers shall respond to the “material
facts” of the complaint. (8 437c, subd. (B)(1).) “The
purpose of a summary judgment proceeding is fo permit a
party to show that material factual claims arising from the
pleadings need not be tried because they are not in
dispute.” (Andalon v. Superior Court (1984) 162
Cal.App.3d 600, 604-605, 208 CalRpu. 899.) “The
cornplaint measores the materiality of the facts tendered
in a defendant’s challenge to the plaintiff’s cause of
action.” (FPI Development, Inc. v. Nakashima (1991) 231
Cal App.3d 367, 381, 282 Cal.Rptr. S08.)

The trial court granted the motion for summary judgment
under section 437¢, subdivision (b)(3) because plaintiff

opposing separate statement (§ 437¢, subd, (p)(2)).
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| hereby certify that service of a true and correct copy PLAINTIFFS’ SUPPLEMENT TO
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JUDGMENT was made on the 27" day of September, 2013, as indicated below:

X __ By first class mail, postage prepaid from Las Vegas, Nevada pursuant
to N.R.C.P. 5(b) addressed as follows below

By facsimile, pursuant to EDCR 7.26 (as amended)

By receipt of copy as indicated below
Pat Lundvall, Esq.
Aaron D. Shipley, Esq.
MCDONALD CARANO WILSON, LLP
2300 W. Sahara Ave., Suite 1000
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Esmeraida Water Co. v, Mackiey, 86 Nev. 261 {1849}

208 P.2d 821

66 Nev. 261
Supreme Court of Nevada.

ESMERALDA WATER CO.
V.
MACKLEY et al.

No. 3569. i July 25, 1946. | Rehearing Denied Sept.
20, 1949.

Appeal from Fifth Judicial District Court, Mineral
County; Taylor H. Wines, Judge.

Action by Esmeralda Water Company against Martin
Mackley and others involving question of ownership of
tailings. From adverse judgment, the plaintiff appeals.

Judgment affirmed in part and in part reversed, and cause
remanded with instructions.

West Headnotes (3)

1 Mines and Minerals
«=Tifle in General

Tailings from treatment of ore by customn mill
becomes property of the custom mill in absence
of contract or other showing to contrary.
561877, p. 90; N.CL.1931-1941 Sopp. §
9047.07, subds. 11, 12.

¥ Mines and Minerals
+-Fights in General Under Valid Location

Tailings deposited by a milling company from
its own and custom ores upon upen and
unappropriated public domain  and  there
impounded in a tailings pond by a dam or
retaining wall remained property of mill, in
absence of evidence of an abandonment, as
against a subsequent placer locaior of ground
including the tailings pond. N.C.L.1929, § 8026;
N.CIL1931-1941 Supp. § 9047.07, subds. 11,

12; SL.1877. p. 90.

B Quieting Title
sSufficiency in General

Plaintiff’s possession of tailings deposited by
milling company, from its own and custom ores,
upon open and unappropriated public domain
and there impounded in a tailings pond by dam
or retaining wall under color of title for some 20
years, unless abandoned, afforded plaintiff
sufficient warrant to maintain action o establish
its title to the tailings as against a subsequent
placer locator of ground, including the tailings
pond, even if there was a break in plaintiff’s
chain of iitle from milling company.
N.CIL.1929, § 9026, N.CL.1931-1941 Supp. §
9047.G7, subds. 11, 12; St.1877, p. 90.

Attorneys and Law Firms

#+821 *#262 Cooke & Cooke and Oliver C. Custer, all of
Reno, for appellant.

Carville & Carville, of Reno, for responderts.
Opinien
BADT, Justice,

This appeal presenis for our chief consideration the
question of the ownership of tailings deposited by a
mining and milling company, from its own and custom
ores, or from cusiom ores alons, upon open and
unappropriated public domain and there impounded in a
tailings pond by a dam or retaining wall, as against a
subsequent placer locator of ground including the raifings
pond. Lest this seem over simple in view of the well
recognized rule sustaining the title to and possession of
such tailings (unless abandoned) as against a subseguent
location, we must add that the irial couwrt hmited this
protection 1o the operator of the mill, ‘who alse supplied
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Esmeraida Water Co. v. Mackiay, 68 Nev, 261 (1948}

208 P.2d 821

the ore from the mine owned by him,” in the absence of
allegation and proof of a ‘custom’ in the district that ttle
to the tailings should vest in the mill. The wial court’s
application of this limitation resulted in a judgment for
the subsequent locators, the defendants below, which we
are called upon o review. Other questions of importance
are presented, but they are all incidental to such main
question.

Appellant Esmeralda Water Company filed its complaint
in the court below, alleging that about 1870 its
predecessors in interest engaged in the mining and *263
extraction of ores from certain lode mining claims owned
and possessed by them, and milled and reduced the same
in a quartz reduction mill owned by them dituate adjacent
to its mining claims; that the tailings from said operations,
at the price and under conditions then existing., were not
of sufficient value to warrant further treaiment, but 10
keep and conserve them for future treatment under more
favorable conditions the tailings were deposited upon
open and unoccupied mineral land of the United States in
a tailings pond in Columbus mining district in what was
then Esreralda county: that its predecessors built a stone
wall or embankment around the same and that at the close
of its mining and milling operations the pond contained
*#¥822 about 7,000 tons of said tailings; that the plaintiff
and its predecessors had thereafter maintained continuous
peaceful possession of the tailings pond, repairing the
stone wall from time to time to keep the tailings from
being washed down the canvon and lost, and that for
rnany vears prior to 1947 plaintiff and its predecessors
continually kept 3 watchman on the mine, mill and
tailings premises to guard and conserve the same, and
paid all taxes levied and assessed thereon; that about 1929
plaintiff acquired title and ownership of the said tailings
and of the Dorris and Lake placer claims located by its
predecessors in 1896, which placer claims embraced the
tailings pond; that the land is valuable only for the
tailings, alleged o be of a gross value of about $15 a ton
and of a net value of from $2.50 to $3; that on January 23,
1947 the defendants wrongfully entered upon the tailings
reservoir, locating certain placer claims named the
Victory and the Victory Fraction over the same for the
sole purpose of appropriating the tailings, and removed
and marketed about 1,000 tons and threatened to remove
the remainder. Plaintif prayed for an injunction and that
its title be quieted to the tailings and reservoir premises,
for the value of the tailings removed and for costs and
further relief.

*264 The defendants answered and denied the material
allegations of the complaint and alleged that if plaintff
had any titie to the ground it had forfeited the same for
failure to perform assessment work or to file notice of its
desire to hold its claims under the acts of congress

refieving the owner from such assessment work.
Defendants then alleged their location of the ground as
the Victory and Victory Fraction placers, and prayed that
plainiff take nothing, that the temporary restraining crder
theretofore issued be set aside, and for costs and further
relief.

Plaintiff replied and denied the forfeiture, denied the
relocations asserted by defendants, and as new matter
alleged that for a period of seventy-five years prior to
1946 ‘the custom existed with ore reduction mills,
operating in the State of Nevada and more particularly in
what is now Mineral county, a and including the adjoining
round-about area, of the custom mill crushing or
otherwise reducing ores delivered to it by divers persons,
deducting its charges, and the tailings and slimes being
carried out by the custom mill operator, and the
ownership thereof vested in such custom mill operator;’
and that the title w the tailings became vested in
plaintiff’s predecessors and later in plaintff. The trial
court sustained a dermurrer to such new matter saying:
“The two basic facts which must appear in such a pleading
are the existence of a custom and the facts which would
entitie the pleader to claim under such a custom so as to
vest in that person certain property or other rights. These,
I think, have not been alleged and 1 hold, therefore, that
the reply is not good as against the demurrer filed by the
defendanis.” The learned wial judge further explained that
the reply received no aid from the complaint because the
theory of the complaint was that plaintiff’s predecessors
reated in the mill the ores produced from their own
mines, resulting in the tailings in question, while the reply
was concerned ‘with the idea of ores being delivered to
plaintiff’s predecessor in interest as a custom mill.”

#2165 Appellant claims that the record is devoid of any
testimony to the effect that the tailings resulted from any
ores mined by third persons and reduced by the mill ag
custom ores. Respondents, on the other hand, claim that
advertisements in local papers published at the time and
admitted in evidence in the case show clearly that the mill
owner al the fime was operating a custom mill and
advertising for ores to be treated. The sustaining of the
demurrer to the reply is one of the errors assigned by the
appeliant.

Respondents insist that the tailings lost their character of
personally and became part of the real estate occupied by
the tailings pond; that the public domain upon which the
tailings pond was situate was subject to placer location
after appellant had forfeited the ground by failing to
perform its assessment work or to file notices of desire to
hold; that the relocations of the defendants were lawfully
made and entitled them to the tailings, as well as the
ground embraced within the exterior ¥¥823 boundaries of
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their relocations; that in any event plaintff had failed to
prove that the tailings were deposited as a result of the
treatment of ores mined and owned by plaintiff’s
predecessors; that such tailings were the property of the
original person who mined the ore; that they were milled
by plainiff's predecessors (although the deraignment of
title to plaintiff is denied) as custom ores; that in the
absence of proper pleading and proof of a custom that title
to tailings from custom ores vested in the mill, such title
remained in the original mine owners.

The trial court found (1) the plaintiff’s corporate status
since 1929; (2) that commencing about 1870 sundry
persons were engaged in mining in the district; “that a
custorn milling process was located upon the above
described premises, and custom ores from several mining
properties were milled in said custom mill and the tailings
therefrom were by the mine operators permitted to flow
from said mill into a gulch which is situated on the north
side of the mining camp known as *266 Candelaria in
said Columbus Mining District, and which gulch is
embraced within the above described legal subdivisions;
that in said gulch at a point some 1500 to 1000 feet below
said milling operations above referred to, there was
constructed a rock wall of some 8 or 10 feet in depth at
the deepest point which followed the contour of the
ground across said gulch; that this rock wall was
constructed some time prior to the year 1896. apparently
for the purpose of retaining the tailings from said mill.
Evidence does not disclogse by whom said rock wall was
constructed. Overflow and driftings from said tailings,
due to wind and storm. was checked by a smaller rock
wall from 70 to 100 feet below the main rock wall, which
also followed the contour of said land at this last
mentioned point; that said lower rock wall had been
constructed some time prior to the year 1896.

“That during the years between 1870 and the early years
of 1880 the town of Candelatia came into existence and
was occupied in connection with an active mining camp
which embraced several large and a few small mining
operations in this area. A spur railroad line extended from
the nearest main line railroad into Candelaria which spuar
railroad had a schedule of regular runs; that a water line
extended for a distance of some 27 miles, heading in the
White Mountains area and furnished water for the mining
and milling operations in said Candelaria mining district,
as well as for the town of Candelaria; that by the year
1900, and not later than the year 1903, the said mining
camp had become inactive; that at this time the mill was
not aperating, nor was there any evidence that the mines
were gperating in said mining camp, and the mining camp
o a great extent had been closed down.” (3) that J. A,
Corkill located the Dorris placer, and Fred Corkill located
the Lake placer in 1896 and that ‘no conmection was

shown to exist beiween any of the producers of said
tailings and the above named locators’ (by ‘producers of
said tailings’ the court was referring to the miners and not
t0 the mill); that proofs of labor *267 were filed on the
Doexis and Lake placers each vear from 1901 to 1908 ‘by
varicus claimants of said mining claims; that for 1910
proof of labor was filed by Esmeralda Water and Milling
Company, which same company filed a notice of desire to
hold the same in 1917, that one Jarmouth filed such notice
in 1918 for the Candelaria Mines Company; that from
1922 to 1926, inclusive, similar proofs were filed on
behalf of Bsmeralda Water and Milling Company and the
Candelaria Mines Co.; (4) that the Corkiils in 1899
conveyed the Lake and Dorris to one Sutherland, who in
1900 conveyed to one Bonbright, who in 1907 conveyed
to Bsmeralda Water and Milling Cornpany, which
company, through its wustees in 1929, conveyed to
plaintiff; that no assessment work was performed or
proofs of labor or notices of intention to hold filed after
1926, by reason whereof they became subject to
relocation; (5) that Mackley and Hammock validly
relocated the ground in 1946 and 1947 as the Victory and
Victory Fraction placers; (6) that the plaintiff had
forfeited its rights to the Dorris and Lake loag prior to the
time that the Victory and Victory Fraction were located,
and that the latter relocations ‘were and are valid and
subsisting relocations **824 of portions of the Dorris and
Lake placer mining claims forieited by the plaintif
herein’; (7) ‘that plaintff failed to substantiate by proof
the allegations of its complaint and defendants have
shown by proof the relocation of valid and subsisting
mining claims known as the Victory Placer Mining Claim
and the Victory Fraction Placer Mining Claim.’

Appellant insists that the evidence is insufficient to show
a forfeiture. We feel it unnecessary to review the
testimony on this point. It is quite lengthy and contains
many contoverted facts. There was however ample
restimony to justify the court’s conclusion that the land
upon which the tailings pond was situate had become
forfeited by appellant, was subject to reentry and was
properly relocated by defendants.

It will be noted from the findings quoted above that *268
this is the only issue upon which the court made findings,
except for the single finding that plaintiff had failed to
prove the allegations of its complaint. Such blanket
finding is of little assistance.

As hereinafter indicated plaintiff undoubtedly stated a
cause of action for the recovery of the tailings irrespective
of the ownership of the ground.'

The only conclusion of law drawn by the court from the
foregoing findings was ‘that the defendants must prevail
in this action, and it is ordered that the plaintiff take
nothing by reason of its claim.” The court made no
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findings on the question of the ownership of the tailings,
or whether the title thereto, if vested in plaintiff and its
predecessor, had been retained, disposed of or abandoned.
It did not find that there had been any abandonment, nor
did it conclude that there had been an abandonment. In
nuling on objections to the proposed findings, it stuck out
the statement that the tailings had been abandoned. The
reasons for this appear in the twenty page ‘Decision on
the Merits’ filed by the learmed district judge. After
recognizing the rule of Ritter v. Lynch, C.C., 123 F. 930,
and Goldfield Consolidated Milling & Transportation Co.
v. Old Sandstorm Amnex Gold Mining Co., 38 Nev. 426,
150 P. 313, that title to tailings is not lost by their deposit
upon open and unoccupied public domain if the owner
mainfests an intention 1o retain {itle and control of the
tailings, the learned district judge restricts this principle to
a case in which a miner extracts ores from his own mines
and treats such ores in his own mill, and holds that the
proper application of the principle of such ownership of
tailings ‘requires a showing in this instance at least, of
production of the tailings from the operation of the *269
mill owned by the mine owner, who also supplied the ore
from the mine owned by him.” After finding that there
was no proof of custom in the district which would make
the mill the owner of the tailings, the learned district
judge repeated: ‘The plaintiff must in some manner
conaect itself with the producer of these tailings in order
to succeed on the theory that these tailings are personal
property which bas not been abandoned.” As we bave
seen, the court did not pass on any issue of abandonment.
Respondents likewise imsist that ‘The question of
abandonment does not **825 enter into this case.” This is
later emphatically repeated, and it is again stated by
respondents: “The lower court eliminated the theory of
abandonment on the evidence taken as a whole and
rendered its decision upon the theory of forfeiture for
failure to protect the Dorris and Lake claims through
proper assessment work.” We agree that this is a proper
analysis of the lower court’s theory in its written opinion,
its findings, iis conclusion, its judgment, and its order
denying the motion for a new trial. With this theory
however we are unable to agree.”

In Ritter v. Lynch, C.C,, 123 F. 930, 932, plaintiff laid
claim to certain tailings on the basis of his location of
*276 the land on which the tailings had been impounded.
The defendants claimed that the tailings were their
personal property at the time of plaintiff’s attempted
location. Judge Hawley said: ‘Did the defendants, or those
under whom they claim, prior o and at the time of the
location of the ground by plaintiff as a placer mining
claim, have any valid right of ownership and possession,
or right of possession, 10 the railings sitnate on the land in
controversy, and, if they acquired any such right, has it
been mainiained, and was it valid at the time the plaintff

atternpted o acquire the title o the ground, and at the
time he was ousted therefrom? The defendants were not
seised in fee of the title to the land. Their ownership and
right to the tailings and possession of the land covered by
the reservoir in which the tilings were impounded is not
necessarily dependent upon their having the legal title to
the land. Tt rests upon other grounds. It appears from the
testimony on behalf of defendants that Michael Lynch,
prior to 1868, obtained the title to about six acres of land
known as the ‘Hoosier State Millsite,’ situate above the
land in controversy in this action; that he was the owner
of a mill upon said land, and operated the same for the
crushing and reduction of cre from the Comstock lode;
that in the natural working of said mill the tailings
therefrom, unless restrained, would run down the canyon,
and become lost to the owner thereof, that, in order o
impound the same, he constructed a reservoir or bulkhead,
situate in the canyon or ravine a short distance below the
mill on the ground in controversy, of such size and
dimensions and in such manner as to confine the tailings
conducted by him from said mill, and enable him to keep
and preserve the same from waste or destruction until
such time as they could profitably be worked or sold. The
reservoir was principally built of the tailings, banking
them up in 2 wet state at the lower end $o as 1 become
solid encugh to keep the tailings running dows the ravine
in the reservoir. This reservoir was built upon vacant,
unoccupied public land of the United States.”

*271 The learned district judge for the District of Nevada
then quoted with approval Jones v. Jackson, 9 Cal. 237, 10
the effect that when a place of deposit for tailings is
necessary for the fair working of a mine, there can be no
doubt of the miner’s right to appropriate such ground as
may be reasonably necessary for this purpose, provided
he does not interfere with pre-existing rights, It is true that
in Johnes v. Jackson reference is made to the deposit of
the tailings by ‘the miner,” but the Ritter case is patently
not so restricted, as it is stated definitely that the Lynch
mill was operated “for the crushing and reduction of ore
from the Comstock lode.” If there is any indication in the
case one way or the other, it is that the ores of various
mines on the Comstock lode were treated in the Lynch
mill. It is interesting 10 nofe that in the Ritter case, as in
the present case, two distinct issues were raised, ome
growing out of the possessory right 1o the ground, the
other growing out of the ownership of the tailings. In the
Ritter case however the court {(inversing the order of the
instant operation} disposed of the issue of the possessory
right to the ground and decided the case upon the issue of
the ownership of the tailings, holding that such ownership
persisted unless there had been an abandonment The
court then reviews the factual siteation at length, which is
*%826 astonishingly similar to the state of facts in the
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the construction of a bulkhead; the solidifying of the
tailings, which maintained them fairly intact even without
the bulkhead; the employment of an agent to look after
the property ‘including the ground in controversy’; the
testimony of the agent as 1o aclivities 1o prevent the
tailings from being washed away; the doing of some work
on the reservoir; the granting of permission to other
parties to sample the tailings with a view to lease or
purchase: the occurrence of a high freshet which washed
away a portion of the tailings; the location of the tailings
pond below the mill site, etc. There was a total absence of
any reference to a custom as to the *272 ownership of the
tailings. The placer location over the tailings pond was
ostensibly to obtain the tailings, although the ground itseif
may have been otherwise somewhat mineralized. The
court then devotes itself to the guestion of abandonment
and, in holding there was no abandonment, says:
‘Abandonment is a question of intent, to be determined by
the special facts in any given case. In order to constitute
abandonment of the right of possession which the
defendants had acquired, there would have to be shown a
clear and unequivocal act or acts of the parties, showing a
determination on their part to surrender their right to the
property. There must be the concurrence of the intention
o abandon and the actual relinquishment of the property,
and of their right, dominion, and control over it. The
record clearly shows-independent of the testimony of
Mrs. Lynch that she had never in any manner, shape, or
form intended to abandon or release her claim to the
tailings-that the property was never azbandomed by the
defendants. The facts disclosed by the record are, in my
opinion, sufficient to show that the defendants have
preserved their ownership of the tailings and possession
of the land upon which they were impounded, and that
plaintiff did not, by his acts, acquire any right or title
thereto as against the defendants.’

In Goldfield Consolidated Milling & Transportation Co.
v. Old Sandstorm Annext Gold Mining Co., 38 Nev. 426,
150 P, 313, 315, we are left with no uncertainty as to the
fact that the tailings resulted from ores milled by a custom
mill. Said this court, through Coleman. J.: “The
respondent alleges in its complaint that it is organized for
the purpose of milling, and reducing by other methods,
gold, silver and other ores, and that it now is, and for a
long time past has been, engaged in the carrying on of the
said business of milling and reducing ores; * * * that in
the operation of the said mill there are discharged
therefrom large quantities of pulverized rock and earth,
commonly known as ‘tailings,” * * * *273 valuable and
are being conserved by respondent for re-reatment.” The
tailings were deposited within retaining dams on the
respondent’s own property, but had overflowed the same
and respondent sought to condemn a portion of
appellant’s property for the storage of tailings. Among

other defenses, the appeliant alleged that respondent had
abandoned the tailings and that the same had become the
property of appellant. This court said: “* * * the lower
court found it necessary to determine also the question of
the ownership of the tailings deposited thereon. It appears
from the evidence that respondent, after treating the ores
which it had purchased, deposited the tailings upon a
portion of its own land which lies in a gulch, through
which water flows at times in great volume and with great
force. It also appears from the evidence that it was
necessary for respondent to keep a man employed at all
times to dam up the tailings so that they would not wash
away and be lost, and as a consequence of this damming
process the tailings eventually were forced upon the land
of appellants. It also appears that these tailings are
valuable and can be re-treated profitably. Respondent
seeks to re-treat these tailings, and to do so finds it
necessary to erect a fram to convey them to iis mill
Appellants claim that they are now the owners of the
taitings. Having purchased the ores from which the
tailings came, respondent was the owner of them at the
time they were deposited upon the lands of appellants.”
{Emphasis supplied.)

The court then quotes at some length from **827 Mallett
v. Uncle Sam Gold & Silver Min. Co., 1 Nev. 188, 90
AmDec. 484, to show that there has been no
abandonment-‘the intention is the first and paramount
object of inquiry; for there can be no strict abandonment
of property without the intention to do s0.” See cases
therein cited, including Ritter v. Lynch, supra. Deciding
then that the lower court had properly held that *274 there
was no abandonment,' the court in introducing its
discussion of the question of the right to condemn the
land in guestion, says: ‘Being, them, the owner of the
tailings, * * *' There was no proof of custom as 1o
ownership of the tailings. They were the property of the
custom mmill, although they were the direct result of the
weatment of ores supplied to the mill by the mine
operators. The milling company was apparently not even
authorized by its charter to engage in mining. See also
Rhodes Min, Co. v. Belleville Placer Min. Co., 32 Nev.
230, 106 P. 561, 118 P. 813, in which, as in the present
case, conflicting claims were asserted to certain tailings,
and the titles asserted grew both out of ownership or
possessory right to the land and out of ownership of the
tailings as personal property. Ritter v. Lynch is there
characterized by this court as upholding the title t
tailings in the owner, who had retained them in a reservoir
against the locator of the placer claim. The ‘owner,” as we
have seen, was the owner of the mill.

In Guild Gold Min. Co. v. Mason, 115 Cal. 93, 46 P. 504,
the plaintiff nine owner sued the chlorination works on
an alleged contract to reduce plaintiff’s ore for $17 a ton

) " 2

At oDt O IO T iaosevorenis Tdenistare R eolndrs e oovdesiensd P S Slsuorromant s
AT RN D AT DR O PR LTS B iy T i WHEE L0, LEermEnenl ¥

&

JA003019



Esmeralda Water Co. v. Mackiey, 66 Nev, 281 (1848)

208 P.2d 821

and to return to plaintiff at least 90%. Plaindff maintained
that less than 90% was recovered and estimated that there
was stili $3530 in the tailings. After holding that the
plaintff could possibly recover if a large amount had
been lost in the tailings by reason of fraud, lack of skill,
carelessness or neglect (which was not pleaded by the
plaintiff) the court siad: ‘Nor is there any allegation or
evidence of any custom or agreement *275 that the
tailings should belong to or be delivered to the plaintiff’
The intimation to the confrary would seem 10 be clear,
namely, that without such allegation or evidence the
tailings would be the property of the reduction plant. In
O’Keiffe v. Conningham, 9 Cal. 589, it was recognized
that open ground used as a place of deposit for tailings by
another was subject to location, but that such sabsequent
location would be subject to the prior right of deposit.

In 1939 most of the important guestions raised in the
present appeal and discussed in the foregoing authorities
were brought before the Supreme Court of Montana in
Conway v, Fabian, 108 Mont. 287, 89 P.2d 1022, 1024,
Conway and another sued Fabian and others ‘to try title to
mill tailings deposited on placer mining ground claimed
by defendants, recover damages for entry on, removal of,
and waste of, such tailings, and enjoin trespasses on
plaintiffs’ property by defendants, who filed a
cross-complaint to quiet title to placer mining claims on
which the tilings were situated.” It will be noted that in
general this was the issue presented by the plaintiff's
complaint here. Conway and bis predecessors were the
owners both of the mining properties and of the mill that
concentrated the ores, for which reason respondents insist
that the case is not in point. It is bowever not so lightly
disposed of. As in the present case, the tailings contained
mineral values, which fact was known to the owners, but
the metallurgical processes and primative milling
machinery of the time (1881 to 1898} did not permit
recovery of such values, and the tailings were impounded
for possible future working, bulkheads being constructed
and maintained for the purpose. The trial court found that
since the depositing and impounding of the tailings,
plaintiffs and their predecessors had been in actual open,
continuous and exclusive possession, and that they had
not at any time abandoned *¥828 the same. As in the
present case, some had been washed away by rain and
storm but were otherwise intact. The claim of the *276
defendants to the tailings was predicated upon their
location of certain placer claims embracing the tailings
dump. These placers had been regularly located and the
annual representation work kept up. The Supreme Court
of Montana approved the finding of the trial court that,
although the placers of the defendants were their property,
the defendants were nonetheless ‘not the owners nor in
possession of the tailings * * * impounded on the claims #

retained possession and ownership thereof at all times ag
personal property.” Recognizing the fact that some o [the
tailings, not included in the tailings pond proper, had
spread over the ground or had become imbedded in the
soil, such part of the tailings was held to have become a
part of the real estate included within the defendanis’
placer claims, citing Rogers v. Cooney, 7 Nev. 213. The
Montana court stated: “The most important guestion in
this suit is undoubtedly the property classification to be
given to the tailings * * * and holds definitely that
tailings placed on the ground from milling operations by
their owner prior to a placer location and which have not
been abandoned are not within the rule or principle of
Rogers v. Cooney; but that the owner of a subsequent
location takes subject to the right of this prior deposit.
Throughout the opinion it is emphasized that the
ownership or right of possession of the tailings maintains
unless abandoned. The building of the barriers, the
subsequent repair thereof, the exhibiting of the dump to
prospective purchasers or lessees, the taking of samples,
are all cited as evidence that the dump was personal
property and that it had not been abandoned. The
Montana court cites as authority (’Keiffe v,
Cunningham, 9 Cal. 589; Jones v. Jackson, 9 Cal. 237,
Ritter v, Lynch, C.C., 123 F. 930; and Goldfield
Copsolidated Milling & Transportation Co. v. Old
Sandstorm Gold Mining Co., 38 Nev. 426, 150 P, 313, all
of which we have discussed, supra.

#277 ¥ If Rier v. Lynch and Goldfield Consolidated
Milling & Transp. Co. v. Old Sandstorm Gold Mining Co.
are not enough to establish the conclusion that in this state
at least the tailings from the treatment of ore become the
property of the custom mill (in the absence of contract of
other showing to the contrary}, other things strengthen
this conclusion, The construction and maintenance of the
impounding dam, negotiations for sale or lease, the
sampling and other acts appearing in the record, some of
which are referred to herein, all were, as we have
indicated, sufficient to show possession in appellant. They
undoubtedly show the exercising of acts of ownership.
Such possession and acts of ownership are by our statute
presumptive evidence of title. Among the disputable
presumptions provided by our statute are: “That things
which a person possesses are owned by him: that a person
is the owner of property from exercising acts of
ownership over it, or from common reputation of his
ownership.” Stats. of Nevada 1931, p. 61, § 558g, subds.
11 and 12, N.C.L.1931-1941 Supp. § 9047.07, subds. 11,
12. In effect since its enactment in 1877 has been the
following provision in this state;

‘Preferred Lien on Ore.

*Sec. 1. Where ore is delivered to a custom mill or

it

= *_the plaintiffs and their predecessors in interest having
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reduction works, and either sold to said mill or reduction
works, or worked at a percentage, the party or parties so
furnishing ore to mill or reduction works shall have a
preferred lien upon the bullion product and upon the ore
not reduced, as against attachment and other creditors.’
Stats.1877, p. 0.

The preservation of such a lien in the miner furnishing the
ore to the mill is inconsistent with any theory other than
that the title passes to the mill. ¥ still further evidence is
needed on this point, it is supplied by the record itself.

The learned district judge’s writien opinion referred o the
ownership of the water as well as the ownership *278 of
the mill by Candelaria Water Works & Milling Company,
Lid., which in 1886 and in 1881 advertised in local
papers, seeking business in the reduction of ores. There
were introduced in evidence contracts entered into in
those years by such Candelaria Company with the
Georgene Mining Company of New York *#829 and with
the Holmes Mining Company of San Francisco.” In these
contracis we find that the mining companies agieed to
‘deliver’ at the mill daily certain specified tonnages of
ore; that none of their ore would be ‘sold or disposed of to
any other person.” The mill agreed 1o reduce the ore on a
sliding scale of charges depending upon the assay value
of the ore. The mining companies agreed that none of the
ore should ‘be reduced or otherwise treated elsewhere.
The agreement provided for arbitration ‘on any question
or difference as to the construction or meaning’ of any
terms of the agreements or the rights, duties or Habilities
of the parties thereunder. The apparent interchangeable
use of words in these contracts whereunder the miners
‘delivered’ their ore to the mill and agreed that no ores
should be ‘sold or disposed of to any other person and
should not be ‘reduced or otherwise wreated eisewhere,
with no reservation of any interest in the tailings, with no
claim ever made by these or any other mining companies
to any part of the tailings, with no application for
arbitration of any claim to ownership of any part of the
tailings, with the long lapse of time without any such
claim, with the impounding and comtinuous possession of
the tailings by the mill, the ownership of such tailings by
the mill would seem well and substantially indicated. This
is strengthened by the advertisements themselves
published in 1886 and 1891, introduced by the
defendants, entitled *279 ‘Custom Ores’” and advertising
that the mill would ‘pay for silver ores’ under a specified
sliding scale and that the silver would be ‘settled for’ at
New York quotations. Further the defendants themselves
also introduced their report of ‘net proceeds of mines’
under which they were required 1o pay taxes on the
proceeds of the tailings they had shipped. This repait,
submitted on a printed form supplied by the Nevada Tax

Commission showed, among other things, that the tailings

were ‘sold” to the American Smelting & Refining
Company. This recails, to all who have bad occasion o
look, pictures of the vast slag and tailings dumps,
embracing hundreds of thousands of tons, resulting from
the treatment by the large smelting and refining
companies of ores from mines scattered throughout the
west.

This appareatly unmiversal custom, considered in
connection with the physical and realistic aspect of
transactions between the miner and the mill, may account
for the total lack of any adjudicated cases dealing with the
ownership of tailings in any controversy that raised the
question as to whether the producer or the mill owned the
tailings. In all cases, as in the present case, the tailings
resulting from the reduction by the custom mill of the ores
of the various producers are hopelessly confused,
Segregation of the tailings for return to the various
producers would be virtually impossible. Instead of a sale
to the mill, each transaction would involve a most
complicated bailment. The confusion and commingling of
the tailings would be both in lateral layers or strata and
also in distribution over the area of the tailings pond. Nor
would the statement of one of defendants’ witnesses that
different colors of the tailings indicated the reduction of
ores from different mines be of much assistance in
segregating portions of the intermingled mass.

As a matter of fact during the period from 1940 1o 1942
plaintiff leased the tailings pond 0 people who were
interested in extracting only the quicksilver. This *280
quicksiiver was not the product of any ores supplied to the
mill for treatment, was apparently not mined at all in the
district, but was purchased, furnished and used by the mill
itself in the process of recovering values from the ores
that it treated.

I Respondents contend, and it was apparently the holding
of the trial court, that because the Corkill locations of the
Dowis and Lake placers were not contested and the
Corkills and their successors in inferest (eventually the
plaintiff herein) filed proofs of labor thereon for many
#*830 years, this is in some way a recognition by plaintiff
and its predecessors that the tailings, embraced within the
exterior boundaries of these two placers, were part of the
realty and belonged to the owner of the placer location.
‘This is not necessarity so. The Corkills did not attempt. so
far as anything in the record shows, W remove any of the
tailings. The owner of the tailings could well have been
justified in concluding that these placer locations were
made subject o its rights to remove its tailings. Conway
v. Fabian, 108 Mont. 287, 8% P.2d 1022; O'Keiffe v.
Cunningham, ¢ Cal. 589. The mill company might, as
suggested by Judge Hawley in Ritter v. Lynch, C.C., 123
F. 830, have desired to pursue the safer course in actually
acquiring the possessory right to the placers and for such
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reason have purchased or otherwise acquired the Corkill
locations.®

It is irnportant to note the following paragraph of the *281
leamed district judge’s opinion (emphasis supplied}: ‘In
connection with this mill and its operation it should be
noted that as originally there was in Candelaria no reliable
or sufficient source of water, it was necessary in order to
provide water for the operation of the mill and for the
camp to bring water some 27 miles by means of a
pipe-line from the White Mountains where certain water
*#83] rights had been acquired previously. The testimony
and other proof indicate that the ttle to the water *282
works which as above stated included a pipe-line, a
reservoir, and water tights, was in the operators of the
miil. As the mining activities at Candelaria began 10 drop
off, the water works remained a valuable property and it
was necessary t0 employ men to keep it in a condition of
repair. The plaintff finally succeeded to the ownership of
the water works in 1929 from the Esmeralda Water and
Milling Company and kept the water works operating
until 1942 when its agent Mr. A. R. Nelson ceased living
in Candelaria. In 1944, 12 miles of the pipe-line was sold
to the State of Nevada together with water rights, with the
right reserved in the vendor to re-purchase the same on
specified terms at any time within 10 years from the sale.’

As noted by the district judge, the Esmeralda Water and
Milling Company owned the water rights. It also owned
the mill, under the deed from Bonbright and others in
1947. But the deed from the trustees of Esmeralda Water
and Milling Company to the Esmeralda Water Company,
the plaintiff herein, also included the water rights and the
mill ‘and also the pile or bed of tailings located on the
Lake and Dorris placer mining claims.” When Esmeralda
Water and Milling Company leased the property 10
Jarmouth in 1918, including the mill, mill site, buildings
ete., it expressly reserved the tailings. Other instruments
in the record likewise weated the tailings as personal
property segregated from the real estate. It is also
significant that plaintff still is the owner of am option,
running into the year 1954, to buy back from the state the
water rights and twelve miles of pipeline sold to it in
1944,

¥ Respondents at some length attack the deraigament of
plaintiff’s title, not only with reference to ownership of
the ground in question but aiso with reference 0
ownership of the tailings, even if the same are considered
personal property., We think it clear from the opinion of
the trial judge that appellant’s claim to the tailings traces
back to the original mill, but even a break *283 in that
chain of ttle would not destroy appellant’s possessory
right under color of title for some twenty years. Such
possession, unless abandoned, affords it sufficient warrant

1o maintain this action. Risch v. Wiseman, 36 Or. 484, 59
P. 1111, 78 Am.St.Rep. 783; Schuman v. Venard, 110
Colo, 487, 136 P.2d 289; Stanley v. Sierra Nevada Silver
Mining Co., C.C., 118 F. 931.

Respondents contend that “the lower court did not accept
plaintiff*s proof which sought to establish that it and its
predecessors impounded the tailings upon the ground or
preserved them against being lost * * ¥ the proof on the
part of defendant and plaintiff in this respect was
conflicting and the court chose i¢c adopt the proof
submitted by defendants as carrying the greater weight in
this respect.” A careful examination of the record however
shows that this is not the case. The trial court made
findings only as to the forfeiture of the plaintifi’s Dorris
and Lake claims and the lawful relocation of these claims
by the defendants as the Victory and the Victory Fraction.
In made no findings or conclusions whatsoever as 1o the
preservation by the plainiiff and its predecessors of the
tailings as personal property. In its opinion however the
court definitely stated that the tailings came from the mill,
that the retaining wall had been conswucted for the
purpose of containing the tailings, that overflow and
driftings over the retaining wall were checked by the
lower retaining wall and that the tailings, except for some
that were lost by wind, erosion and storm waters, are still
concentrated in the tailings pond. It was largely in view of
this situation that we were moved to state that the court’s
general finding No. 7 ‘that plaintiff failed to subsiantiate
by proof the allegations of its complaint and defendants
have shown by proof the relocaton of valid and
subsisting mining claims * * * was of meager help. In
view of findings one o six, having to do entirely with the
location, forfeiture and relocation of the claims, this
finding must be considered as attaching only to that *284
feature of the case. The court did not find that the plaintiff
had not maintained its possession of the tailings pond. It
did not find that the plaintiff had abandoned its possession
or ownership of the tailings pond. It refised to find an
abandonment *#*832 of the tailings as personal property,
and confined iiself entirely to the question of forfeiture of
the Domris and Lake claims, and respondents, in seeking
to uphold the judgment in their favor, under the trial
court’s theory, still insist that the question of
abandonment is not in the case. There being no
abandonment of the tailings by plaindff and its
predecessors, plaintiff is still the owaer and entitled to the
possession thereof.

The final disposition of the case on appeal involves some
difficulty, as it is not the province of this court to make
original findings. On the other hand no purpose could be
served by directing a new irial for the purpose of
permitting the trial court to make findings which it has
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already clearly indicated. It is clear that the judgment
must be reversed on account of the trial court’s erroneous
decision that plaintiff’s title to the tailings fails because
the tailings were owned by the producers of the ores from
the mines and not by the mill. It is our understanding from
the record however that the trial court did not find, in fact
refused 1o find, that plaintiff and its predecessors ever
abandoned the tailings or abandoned their claim of
ownership of the tailings, other than through the court’s
erroneous conclusion that the tailings lost their character
of personal property and became real estate, by reason of
the so-called recognition by plaintiff of the Corkill
locations. Wiith our conclusion that the tailings were
personal propesty belonging to Candelaria Water Works
and Milling Company, and that plaintiff’s title, or at least
its possessory rights, attached thereto prior to the Corkill
locations, and that such possessory rights were not
destroyed by the Corkill locations in 1896, and in the
absence of a *285 finding by the trdal court, as a result of
clear and convincing proof, that the tailings and plaintiff’s
possessory rights thereto had been abandoned, the case
ends.

The trial court’s findings to the effect that the Dorris
placer mining claim and the Lake placer mining claim

1o relocation, and that the defendants Martin P. Mackley
and Charles R, Hammock validly located the Victory
placer mining claim and the Victory Fracton placer
mining claim aod that the same were at the time of the
filing of the complaint herein valid and subsisting
relocations of portions of the forfeited Dorris and Lake
placer mining claims, are hereby approved. The judgment
insofar as it adjudges that said defendants are the owners
of the said Victory and Victory Fraction mining claims
and that the same are valid and subsisting placer mining
claims, is hereby affirmed. The judgment insofar as it
fails to adjudge that the defendants’ ownership of the
Victory and Victory Fraction placer mining claims is
subject to plaintiff’s ownership and right to the possession
of the tailings pond described in the complaint, is
reversed. The case is remanded to the district court with
instructions to modify and add to its findings and to enter
judgment accordingly. Appeliant will be allowed its costs
in this cowt.

HORSEY, C. 1, and EATHER, J., concur,

became forfeited by reason of failure of the owners 1o Paraliel Citations
perform the annual assessment work thereon or to file 208 P.2d 821
notice of intention to hold said placer mining claims
under the provisions of the acts of congress, for the years
1926-1945, and that said claims thereby became subject
Footnotes
i ‘§ 9026. N.C.L. An aciion may be brought by one or more persons against any other person or persons for the purpose of

L

detenmining an adverse claim which the latter makes against the former. for money or property, upon an alleged obligation or
liability of any nature or kind, or upon any claim for an accounting, or for any other legal or equitable relief.”

The learned district judge further stated: “For a case on this point see Stanley v. Sierra Nevada Silver Mining Company, {C.C.], 118
F. 931." The reference is apparently in error. That action was one for the conversion of a deposit of tailings of the value of $5,000.
and the opinion refemred to held the complaint good as against a demurrer which attacked the sufficiency of the allegation of
ownership of the tailings. Judge Hawley, citing a number of cases, held that the allegation that plaintiff was lawfully possessed of
the property was sufficient. Citing Rogers v. Cooney. 7 Nev. 213, as a similar case, the federal court quoted the holding of this
court that it was only necessary ‘for the plaintiff to prove a rightful possession in himself. It is not incumbent on him fo establish
any title beyond that.” The authority is not even remotely in point on the proposition of law stated, and it is the only authority cited
in support of such point.

Respondents say further: ‘Abandonment plays no part in this case except insofar as the action of the miners who delivered the cre
to the mill and did not claim the tailings therefrom after they were discharged through the mafl.’

In holding that the district conrt properly found that there was no abandonment this court said: ‘Tt conserved the tailings by having
a man on hand to keep a dam built up so as to prevent their being washed away, which it is not likely it would have done had it
intended abandoning them. The testimony was to the effect that respondent did not intend to 2bandon the tajlings.” The testimony
against the theory of abandonment is stronger in the instant case than in the Goldfieid Consolidated case. In re Waters of Manse
Spring, 60 Nev. 280, 108 P.2d 311.

The Georgene and Holmes properties were later operated under the management of Argenta Mining Co.. or combined to own the
Argenta. From prior o 1922 to 1946, a watchman and caretaker looked after these properties as well as the waterworks. tailings

et
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pond, ete. of Esmeralda Water and Milling Co., and later, Esmeralda Water Co.

& The Corkills’ possessory rights growing out of their location of the Dorris and Lake claims in 1826 lasted only till they conveved
to Sutherland in 1899, who, the following year, conveyed to Bonbnght. (Sutherland was the treasurer and geseral manager of
Georgene Mining Company, all of whose ores were processed at the mill under the contract of 1886, and was president of the
Holmes Mining Company, all of whose ores were processed through the miil under the contract of 1891, The mill on those dates
operated as the Candelaria Water Works and Milling Corapany, Lid., whose registered office was at Drapers Garden, Throgmorton
Street, London.) Although the Georgene Mining Company, the Holmes Mining Company and the Candelania Water Works and
Milling Company, Lid, wers separate corporations. their stock was owned by the same people. Though Bonbright and Corapany {a
partnership, comprising some ten pariners, residing respectively in London., New York and Colorade) did not guitclaim to
Esmeralda Water and Mithing Company tiil 1907, proofs of labor were filed every vear from 130} to 1910, and later. In 1902 one
A, G, Draper, when filing proof of labor for the Lake and Dorns, did so as agent of the Calendaria Water Works and Milling
Company, Ltd., whose ownership of the mill, as we have seen, long antedated any title attaching by reason of the acquisition of the
Corkill Iocations. Again in 1903, in filing proof on the Lake claim, he did so as agent for the same Calendaria Water Works and
Milting Company. F. G. Grube, in filing proof of assessment work for 1904, likewise did so as agent for the same company. For
the assessment work for 1903 Grube acted as the agent for both the Calendaria Water Works and Milhieg Company and Boubright
and Co., and the same the following year. His proof in Decernber. 1907 for the work that year was as agent only for Bonbright and
Ca., but his proof in 1908 was as agent for Esmeralda Water and Milling Co., likewise vepeated in January, 1910 for the
assessment work of 1909, During the 1920’s proofs seem to have been filed indiscriminately for Esmeralda Water and Milling
Company and for Candelana Mines Company. In 1912, when abouwt 2000 tons of ore were run through the mill i a six months’
period, the tailings from which were discharged into the same tailings pond, Grube wag in charge as ‘general manager of the
Argenta Mining Cornpany and the Esmeralda Water Company.’ In this capacity he actually lived in Calendaria from 1903 10 1922,
and made monthly trips from his new residence in California to Calendaria from 1923 to 1942, The two corporations were under
one managerment, and the mill and taihings pond of Esmeralda Water and Milling Company was the same that had been operated
before his tme by the old Calendaria Mining Company. We see in the derivation of plaintiff's title from the Corlill placer
locations nothusg inconsistent with the claim to, and possession of, the water works, water rights and tailings pond {which covered
a peried prior to and at the time of and continuing beyond the Corkill locations) independently thereof or in addition thereto, and
deriving, whether directly or indirectly, from Calendaria Water Works and Milling Co. in 1886, The official Mineral county tax list
for 1947 assessed to the appeliant herein improvements, pipelines ete. still identifiable with the original properties woned by
Calendaria Water Works and Milling Company.

o of Document & 2013 Themsen Reuters. No claim to original U S, Government Waorks.
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Botsford v, Van Riper, 33 Nev, 188 (1910}

110 P 708

.: KeyCite Yellow Flag - Negative Treatment
Distinguished by Las Vegas Mach. & Engineering Works v. Roemisch,
Nev., January 3, 1950

33 Nev. 156
Supreme Court of Nevada.

BOTSFORD
V.
VAN RIPER et al.
No. 1,828.

Sept. 2, 1910,

Appeal from District Court, Esmeralda County,

Action by L. C. Van Riper and another agaiast Charles H.
Botsford and others. From a judgment for plaintiffs and
from an order refusing a new trial, defendant Bowford
appeals. Affirmed.

West Headnotes (16)

11 Action
wwEquitable and Legal Relief in Same Action

Under the Code of Civil Procedure, the district
courts in proper cases may administer both legal
and equitable relief,

1 Cases that cite this headnote

[2]  Appeal and Error
sw«<Findings Supported by Evidence

A finding on conflicting evidence and sustained
by evidence will not be disturbed on appeal.

4 Cases that cite this headnote

{3} Joint Adventures
wepature of Relation in General

Legal principies applicable to joint adventure so
far as affecting principals are same as if

(4]

{5}

(6}

{7

agresment were copartnership.

2 Cases that cite this headnote

Joint Adventures
< Form, Requisites and Validity of Contract

Plaintiffs’ suggestion to defendant of a scheme
for merging properties and advice and counsel to
him, and the mutual promise of assistance in
promoting the venture, were sufficient
consideration to sustain an agreement for an
equal division of the profits of the venture,
though defendant agreed to do all the other
work.

1 Cases that cite this headnote

Joint Adventures
“Form, Requisites and Validity of Contract

The furnishing of capital by the parties 10 a joint
adventure is not essential to the validity of the
contract if the original agreement is carded out.

1 Cases that cite this headnote

Joint Adventures
s==]n Profits and Losses

The profits of a joint adventure may consist of
the unsold portion of the property which was the
subject of the venture, or property received as
compensation for services rendered in
connection with the venture, as well as money.

Joint Adventures

Parties
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110 P. 708

joint efforts 1o secure an option on certain
property and to sell the same, defendant to be
the active agent of the venture, that plaindffs
assisted in furthering the venture by counsel,
introductions, and personal efforts, that it was
agreed that the parties should share equally in
the profits, that the venture was successful and
defendant was to receive stock of a specified
value as compensation, that he was attemnpting

call upon his associates for the aid they agreed
to give does not affect their right o share in the
profits,

to get possession of ali the stock and refused to f11] !oint Aldventures )
recognize plaintiffs’ rights to any interest in the w~Services and Compensation
proceeds of the venture, and that he was outside ] ]
the state and insolvent, shows plaintiffs’ right 1o In the absence of an express agreement to the
recover equal interests in the proceeds under the contrary, equal division of the profits of a joint
doctrine of joint adveniute. adventure is implied, regardless of inequality of
. contribution.
4 (Cases that cite this headnote o
1 Cases that cite this headnote
(81  Joint Adventures .
%=Mutual Rights, Duties, and Liabilities of (12} Joint Adventures _
Parties #«§ervices and Compensation
Where property or profits are acquired under a A party to a joint adventure holding the profits
joint adventure, a party holding title to the same may be compelled to account to his associates
is a trusiee for his associates as to their for their share of the property representing such
proportionate shares. profits in kind.
9} Joint Adventures {13} qoint’Adventum
s=Mutual Rights, Duties, and Liabilities of s=Reimbursement of Advances and Expenses
Parties -
Advances by one party 1o a joint adventure are
The relation between the parties to a joint loans to the venture for which he is entitled o
adventure is fiduciary, and the utmost good faith reimbursement from the proceeds of the venture,
is required of the trustee to whom matters may but they give him no other superior rights
be intrusted; he not being entitled to any against bis associates.
advantage over his associate on account of I
possession of property ot profits. 1 Cases that cite this headnote
9 Cases that cite this headnote
[14]  Joini Advestures
= Actions Between Parties
{310} Joint Adventures i R L
¢=Services and Compensation Associates of the trustee of a joint adventure can
recover frora him for any breach of bis frust.
That the active agent of a joint adventure did not .
- 8 ] 1 Cases that cite this headnote
WavtimafNaRy @ 23 Thon A HHE
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[15] Joint Adventures
#«Actions Between Parties

While a party to a joint adventure may sue his
associate at law for breach of the contract or a
share of the profits or losses, or contribution for
advances in excess of his share, such remedies
do not preclude a suit in eguity for an
accounting.

2 Cases that cite this headnote

[16] Joint Adventures

w=Actions Between Parties

One party to a joint adventure may set off
against the demand of another advances or
payments in behalf of claimant, and hence, in an
action to recover an interest in the proceeds of a
veniure, expenditures by defendant were
properly deducted from recovery awarded
against him,

706 See, also, 106 Pac. 440.

Attorneys and Law Firms

Rufus C. Thayer, C. L. Harwood, James F. Peck, Solinsky
& Wehe, and Paul C Morf, for appeilant. Deich &
Carney, Thomas, Bryant & Malbum, and R, G, Withers
{(Mack & Oreen and Horatio Alling, of counsel), for
respondents.

Opinion

SWEENEY, 1.

This action is brought by the plaintiffs L. C. Van Riper
and Joseph Hutchinson to recover from the defendant
Charles H. Botsford two-thirds of the profits of a deal
whereby the Goldfield Mobawk Mining Company and
other mining interests paid as a commission to the

defendant, Botsford, 100,000 shares of the Goldfield
Consolidated Mining stock then valued at $1,000,000, in
consideration of his turning over a *787 certain option
which he held on the Combination Mines Company,
which made it possible 0 merge the properties now
constituting the Goldfield Consolidated Mines Company,
and do away with certain threatened apex litigation then
pending and other suits about to be started. This
commission of $1,000,000 was earned during a period not
in excess of 45 days from the time the parties conceived
and agreed to carry out their agreement along the lines of
merging the properties to avoid litigation, and is but
illustrative of the opportunities which are ever present in
mining excitements in great mining camps to those who
may be quick, able, and fortunate enough to grasp an
opportunity and successfully put it through to a
termination. Though this action was commenced by the
respondents L. C. Van Riper and Joseph Hutchinson as
plaintiffs against Chailes H. Botsford and other
above-named appellanis  as  defendanis, the real
controversy is between the respondents L. C. Van Riper
and Joseph Hutchinson and the appellant, Charles H.
Botsford. All the other appellants joined with Botsford are
in the case nominally, and so far ag this case is concerned
do not seemn to have any real interest in the dispute.

The complaint is one based on the doctrine of joint
adventure, a doctrine of modern origin, and in effect
alleges, in our judgment, the necessary allegations which,
if proved, entitle the plaintiifs to the judgment accorded
them. The complaint in effect alleges: “First. That the
plaintiffs and defendant Botsford entered into an
agreement to use their joint efforts for the purpose of
securing a certain option and selling the same. Second.
That it was agreed that defendant Botsford should be the
active agent of the venture in the securing of the option
and the sale of the same. Third. That the plaintiffs assisted
in the furtherance of the venture in divers and sundry
ways by counsel, introductions, and personal efforts.
Fourth. That it was agreed in the event of the
consummation of the venture the plaintiffs and the
defendant Botsford should share equally in the profits
realized. Fifth, That the venture was successfully
terminated under said agreement. and that the defendant
Botsford was 1o receive 100,000 shares of stock of the
value of 31,000,000 as compensation. Sixth. That
defendant Boisford was attempting to get possession and
confrol of all of said shares of stock, and refused to
recognize the plaintiffs as being entitled to any portion of
the same as compensation for the securing and sale of said
option. Seventh. That the defendant was without this state
and insolvent. Eighth. Follows then the prayer that the
plaintiffs be declared 0 be the owners of and entitled t0 a
one-third each of any and all compensation either in stock
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or otherwise, which the defendant was entitled to by
virtue of the consummation of the venture, and for an
injunction restraining, and so forth.” To this complaint a
demurrer was filed, and thereafier an answer, which was
thereafier amended. The answer denies all of the
allegations of the complaint which would in any way
connect the plaintiffs with the said defendant Botsford as
a co-adventurer in putting through the deal, and denies
that there was ever any agreement or coniract entered into
at any tme between the three parties concerning the
subject-tatter in the suit. The answer squarely raises the
issue as to whether such an agreement, as alleged in the
cornplaint, was made, and upon this substantial issue the
case went to trial,

It appears from the testimony adduced, a record of some
3,000 pages, that Charles H. Botsford, the appellant, a
New York promoter, an educated gentleman, and a
mining expert of some reputation; and a business man of
large affairs, during the fall of 1906 came to Goldfield,
Nev., when that camp was at the height of its mining
excitement and prosperity. He came there for the purpose
of investigating the conditions of a lease controlled by the
plaintiff Van Riper, whom he had met in New York. Mr.
Botsford had invested $15,000 in this lease, and, more
money being required to work said lease, the purpose of
his visit to Goldfield was to determine the advisability of
saving the investment, which would bhave been lost
providing further capital was not forthcoming. While in
Goldfield on this mission. Mr. Botsford met the plaintiff
Joseph Hutchinson, a mining engincer and promoter of
wide experience and reputation and commendable ability,
and leamed that litigation had been or was about to be
commenced by the Combination Mines Company against
the Mohawk properties, claiming that the Mobawk veins
apexed in the Combination ground. At this time this
threatened  litigation, which, wunless averted by
compromise or otherwise determined, would paralyze the
prosperity of the district, then in the throes of the wildest
kind of a mining boom, caused the people of the camp of
Goldfield the most tense feeling of excitement,
apprehension, and anxiety, awaiting and hoping for a
peaceful compromise or determination of this gigantic
legal battle which seemed imminent, and which litigation
would, for some time at least, tie up some of the richest
mines in the very heart of the Geldfield mining district.

It is contended by Hutchinson, and so alleged in the
complaint, and found in the findings of the lower court,
which, after a most careful review, owing to the great
conflict of testimony on all the material issues, we have
concluded not to disturb: That he conceived the idea of
having the Combination Mines Company and the
Goldfield Mohawk Company merge their interests for the

purpose of avoiding threatened litigation over the
extralateral and other rights of said companies and the
mining ground claimed and *708 owned by them,
respectively, and dudng the month of September, 1906,
he called the attention of his coplaintiff, L. C. Van Riper,
and of the defendant Charles H. Botsford thereto, and
submitted to them the idea of securing an option upon the
control of the capital stock of said companies or either of
them, and also submitted to them his scheme of
consolidating or merging the interests of said companies.
That the plaintff L. C. Van Riper and the defendant
Charles H. Botsford immediately became interested in
such suggestions and in the scheme of consolidation or
merger proposed by the plaintiff Huichinson, and
thercafter and during the months of September and
October, 1906, they, in conjunction with the plaintff
Joseph E. Hutchinson, made investigations and consulied
with each other as to the most feasible plan of securing an
option upon the control of the capital stock of said
companies, or either of them, and also the most feasible
plan of consolidating and merging the interests of said
companies. During all of said tme the plaintiffs and the
defendant Charles H. Botsford were jointly interested in
other promotions and in other business enterprises. On or
about the 27th day of October. 1906, in Goldfield, Nev.,
an agreement was made and entered into by and between
the defendant Charles H. Botsford and the plaintiffs L. C.
Van Riper and Joseph Huichinson, wherein and whereby
they agreed to adopt the ideas and suggestions made by
the plainiiff Joseph Hutchinson, and to use their joint
efforts to secure an option upon the control of the capital
stock of the Combination Mines Company for the purpose
of effecting a sale thereof, and they also agreed to use
their joint efforts to bring about a consolidation or merger
of the interest of the Combination Mines Company with
other corporations then existing, or thereafter to be
organized. It was also agreed by and between said parties
in and by the terms of said agreement that any and all
profits, commissions, or compensation that might be
realized or made from such enterprise or from their or
either of their efforts in the premises should be divided
equally between them: that is 10 say, that the defendant,
Botsford, should receive one-third thereof, and the
plaintiffs Hutchinson and Van Riper should each receive
one-third thereof. It was also agreed by and between the
parties in and by the terms of said agreement that the
defendant Botsford should have the exclusive charge and
control of all negotiations relative to the obtaining of said
option and the sale thereof and the effectuating of such
merger, but that in conducting such negotiations the
defendant Botsford should act for and represent the
plaintiffs as well as himself. It was also agreed that each
of the plaintiffs should render such services in the
premises as might be required of him by the defendant
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Botsford and under his direction. Pursuant to the terms of
the agreement, and on or about the 14th day of November,
1906, the plaintiffs and the defendant Botsford secured an
option upon the controlling interest in the capital stock of
the Combination Mines Company, said option being taken
in the name of the defendant Botsford o enable him to
more effectually conduct the negotiations necessary for
the sale thereof and the consummation of said merger, but
that said option was taken in his name and held by him for
the joint benefit of himself and each of the plaintiffs.
Thereafter, on or about the 5th day of December, 1906,
the defendant Botsford sold and assigned said option to
the defendant Goldfield Consoclidated Mines Company.
That by securing the said option and the sale and
assignment thereof {0 the defendant Goldfield
Consolidated Mines Company a merger was brought
about and effected between the Combination Mines
Company and the Goldfield Mobawk Mining Company.
That during all of the negotiations which resulted in the
obtaining of said option and the sale and assignment
thereof to the defendant Goldfield Consolidated Mines
Company, the plaintiffs rendered such services as were
required of them. That at all of said times the defendant
Botsford acted under and in accordance with the terms of
the agreement aforesaid, and during all of such
negotiations the defendant Botsford acted for and
represented the plainiiffs as well as himself. That, in
consideration of the obtaining of said option and the sale
and assignment thereof to the defendant Goldfield
Consolidated Mines Company, the defendant Botsford
was 1o receive, and did receive, for the joint benefit of
himself and the plaintiffs, 100,000 shares of the capital
stock of the Goldfield Consolidated Mines Company,
which said stock was worth at the time of the
commencement of this action $1,000,000 or 310 per
share. That out of said 100,000 shares g0 received by the
defendant Botsford 53,000 shares thereof were issued and
delivered to parties other than the plaintiffs, who
advanced moneys to cnable the plaintiffs and the
defendant Botsford to make the initial payments upon said
option. The defendant Botsford received from the
defendant Goldfield Consolidated Mines Company
45,000 shares of its capital stock as net profit,
commission, and compensation for securing the option
aforesaid and for the sale and assignment thereof to the
said defendant Goldficld Consolidated Mines Company.
That said stock was received by the defendant Botsford
under and in accordance with the terms of the agreement
made and entered into between himself and the plaintiffs
L. C. Van Riper and Joseph Hutchinson, and said stock
was received by him for the joint benefit of himself and
the plaintiffs Van Riper and Hutchinson. That at the time
of the commencement of this action an injunction was
issued out of the lower court resiraining the defendant

Goldfield Consolidated Mines Company from issuing or
delivering *789 said swck to any person or persons,
company or companies, unti] the final determination of
this action; but that, notwithstanding such injunction, the
defendant Goldficid Consolidated Mines Company did, at
the request of the defendant Botsford, issue to and in the
name of John 8. Cook as trusiee certificaies representing
said 45,000 shares of the capital stock of said company.
During the time said certificates were issued and held by
said John 8. Cook as trustee, dividends amounting to the
sum of $9,000 were declared upon said 45,000 shares of
stock, and that all of said sum of $9,000 was paid to and
received by the defendant Botsford, and by him
appropriated to his own use, and that no part thereof was
paid to the plaintffs, or either of them. On or about the
5th day of December, 1907, the injunction heretofore
issued in this action was by order of the lower court
dissoived, and immediately thereafter the certificates
representing the said 45,000 shares of the capital stock of
the Goldfield Consolidated Mines Company which had
been issued to, and in the name of John S. Cock, as
trustee, were indorsed by him and delivered w0 the
defendant Botsford, and thereafter the defendant Botsford
surrendered said certificates to the defendant Goldfield
Consolidated Mines Company, and caused new
certificates in leu thereof to be issued as follows, to wit:
A centificate or certificates representing 2,000 shares
thereof in the name of George S. Nixon and a certificate
or certificates representing 43,000 shares thereof in the
name of M. Toping. That no consideration whatever was
paid by said M. Toping or received by the defendant
Botsford for the certificates so issued in the name of M,
Toping, and no part of said stock was ever delivered
the said M. Toping, but the certificates representing all of
said 43,000 shares of stock were delivered to the
defendant Botsford, and said certificates were issued in
the name of M. Toping at the request of the said
defendant Botsford, and to subserve his own purposes,
and the defendant Botsford thereafter procured and
caused the said M. Toping to indorse the same, and the
defendant Botsford has at all the times since the issuance
of said certificates had the same in his possession and
under his control. That certificates representing 30.000
shares of the capital stock of the Goldfield Consolidated
Mines Company s0 issued in the name of M. Toping, and
delivered to the defendant Botsford, stll remain in the
possession and under the control of said defendant
Botsford, During the trial of the above-entitled cause in
the lower court and on or about the 29th day of January,
1908, an injunction was issued out of said court,
restraining the defendant Botsford from transferring or in
any manner disposing of 30,000 shares of the capital
stock of the Goldfield Consclidated Mines Company so
held by him for which certificates were issued in the name
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12/29/2010 | Complaint 1 JA000001-
JA000006
01/14/2011 | Amended Complaint 1 JA000007-
JA000012
02/11/2011 | Amended Summons 1 JA000013-
JA000016
03/02/2011 | Answer to Amended Complaint 1 JA000017-
JA000023
10/25/2011 | Transcript re Discovery Conference 1 JA000024-
JA000027
11/08/2011 | Scheduling Order 1 JA000028-
JA000030
11/29/2011 | Order Setting Civil Non-Jury Trial 1 JA000031-
JA000032
12/15/2011 | Stipulated Confidentiality Agreement and 1 JA000033-
Protective Order JA000039
12/16/2011 | Notice of Entry of Stipulated 1 JA000040-
Confidentiality Agreement and Protective JA000048
Order
08/27/2012 | Transcript re Hearing 1 JA000049-
JA000050
08/29/2012 | Stipulation and Order to Extend Discovery 1 JA000051-
Deadlines (First Request) JA000054
08/30/2012 | Notice of Entry of Stipulation and Order to 1 JA000055-
Extend Discovery Deadlines (First JA000060
Request)
09/21/2012 | Amended Order Setting Civil Non-Jury 1 JA000061-
Trial JA000062
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10/24/2012 | Defendant's Motion for Summary 1 JA000063-
Judgment JA000082

10/24/2012 | Appendix of Exhibits in Support of 1 JA000083-
Defendant's Motion for Summary JA000206
Judgment

10/24/2012 | Declaration of Aaron D. Shipley in 1 JA000207-
Support of Defendant's Motion for JA000211
Summary Judgment

10/25/2012 | Appendix of Exhibits in Support of 2 JA000212-
Defendant's Motion for Summary JA000321
Judgment — filed under seal

11/07/2012 | Opposition to Defendant's Motion for 2 JA000322-
Summary Judgment and Plaintiffs' Counter JA000351
Motion for Partial Summary Judgment

11/09/2012 | Appendix of Exhibits to Plaintiffs' 3-6 JA000352-
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in JA001332
Opposition to Defendant's Motion for
Summary Judgment and in Support of
Plaintiffs' Counter Motion for Summary
Judgment — sections filed under seal

11/13/2012 | Appendix of Exhibits to Plaintiffs' 7-12 JA001333-
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in JA002053
Opposition to Defendant's Motion for
Summary Judgment and in Support of
Plaintiffs' Counter Motion for Summary
Judgment

11/29/2012 | Defendant's Opposition to Plaintiff's 13 JA002054-
Counter Motion for Partial Summary JA002065
Judgment Re: Real Parties in Interest

12/06/2012 | Transcript re Status Check 13 JA002066-

JA002080

01/07/2013 | Reply Brief in Support of Defendant's 13 JA002081-

Motion for Summary Judgment JA002101
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01/17/2013 | Plaintiffs' Reply in Further Support of 13 JA002102-
Their Counter Motion for Partial Summary JA002144
Judgment

03/01/2013 | Defendant's Motion in Limine to Exclude 13 JA002145-
Plaintiffs' Claim for Attorneys' Fees as an JA002175
Element of Damages (MIL #1)

03/01/2013 | Defendant's Motion in Limine to Exclude 13 JA002176-
Plaintiffs' Claim for Damages in the Form JA002210
of Compensation for Time (MIL #2)

03/05/2013 | Transcript of Proceedings - March 5, 2013 14 JA002211-

JA002350

03/14/2013 | Order re Order Granting Plaintiffs 14 JA002351-
Countermotion for Summary Judgment JA002353

03/15/2013 | Notice of Entry of Order re Order Granting 14 JA002354-
Plaintiffs Countermotion for Summary JA002358
Judgment

03/20/2013 | Plaintiffs Opposition to Defendant's 15 JA002359-
Motion in Limine to Exclude Plaintiffs JA002408
Claim for Attorney’s Fees as an Element
of Damages MIL 1

03/20/2013 | Plaintiffs Opposition to Defendants 15 JA002409-
Motion in Limine to Plaintiffs Claim for JA002433
Damages in the form of compensation for
time MIL 2

03/21/2013 | Motion to File Second Amended 15 JA002434-
Complaint JA002461

04/02/2013 | Order re Order Denying Defendants 16 JA002462-
Motion for Summary Judgment JA002464

04/03/2013 | Notice of Entry of Order re Order Denying 16 JA002465-
Defendants Motion for Summary JA002470

Judgment
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04/08/2013 | Defendant's Opposition to Plaintiffs' 16 JA002471-
Motion for Leave to File a Second JA002500
Amended Complaint
04/17/2013 | Second Amended Order Setting Civil Non- 16 JA002501-
Jury Trial JA002502
04/23/2013 | Plaintiffs Reply in Further Support of 16 JA002503-
Motion for Leave to File Second Amended JA002526
Complaint
04/26/2013 | Transcript re Hearing 16 JA002527-
JA002626
05/10/2013 | Plaintiffs Supplement to Motion for Leave 16 JA002627-
to File a Second Amended Complaint JA002651
Pursuant to the Courts order on Hearing on
April 26, 2013
05/10/2013 | Defendant's Supplemental Brief in Support 16 JA002652-
of Its Opposition to Plaintiffs' Motion for JA002658
Leave to File a Second Amended
Complaint
05/30/2013 | Order Granting Plaintiffs Motion for 16 JA002659-
Leave to File a Second Amended JA002661
Complaint
06/05/2013 | Order Granting Plaintiffs Motion for 16 JA002662-
Leave to File a Second Amended JA002664
Complaint
06/05/2013 | Notice of Entry of Order Granting 16 JA002665-
Plaintiffs Motion for Leave to File a JA002669
Second Amended Complaint
06/06/2013 | Second Amended Complaint 16 JA002670-
JA002677
07/03/2013 | Answer to Second Amended Complaint 16 JA002678-
and Counterclaim JA002687
07/09/2013 | Transcript re Hearing 17 JA002688-
JA002723
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07/15/2013 | Plaintiffs Reply to Defendants 17 JA002724-
Counterclaim JA002731

07/18/2013 | Plaintiffs' Motion in Limine To Permit 17 JA002732-
James J. Jimmerson, Esg. To Testify JA002771
Concerning Plaintiffs' Attorney's Fees and
Costs (MIL #25)

07/22/2013 | Defendant's Motion for Partial Summary 17 JA002772-
Judgment JA002786

07/22/2013 | Plaintiffs Supplemental Opposition to 17 JA002787-
Defendants Motion in Limine to Plaintiffs JA002808
Claim for Damages in the Form of
Compensation for Time MIL 2

07/23/2013 | Transcript re Status Check 17 JA002809-

JA002814

08/05/2013 | Defendant Pardee Homes of Nevada's 17 JA002815-
Response to Plaintiffs’ Motions in Limine JA002829
#1-5; And #20-25

08/06/2013 | Plaintiffs Opposition to Defendants 17 JA002830-
Motion for Partial Summary Judgment JA002857

09/16/2013 | Reply in Support of Defendant's Motion 17 JA002858-
for Partial Summary Judgment JA002864

09/16/2013 | Reply in Support of Defendant's Motion in 17 JA002865-
Limine to Exclude Plaintiff's Claim for JA002869
Attorney's Fees As An Element of
Damages

09/16/2013 | Reply in Support of Defendant's Motion in 17 JA002870-
Limine to Exclude Plaintiffs' Claim For JA002874
Damages in the Form of Compensation for
Time

09/23/2013 | Transcript re Hearing 18 JA002875-

JA002987
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09/27/2013 | Plaintiffs Supplement to Their Opposition 19-21 | JA002988-
to Defendants Motion for Partial Summary JA003203

Judgment
09/27/2013 | Supplemental Brief in Support of 21 JA003204-
Defendant's Motion for Partial Summary JA003209

Judgment
10/23/2013 | Order Denying Motion for Partial 21 JA003210-
Summary Judgment JA003212
10/23/2013 | Transcript re Trial 22 JA003213-
JA003403
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit A 23 JA003404-
JA003544
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit B — filed under seal 23 JA003545-
JA003625
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit C 23 JA003626-
JA003628
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit D 23 JA003629-
JA003631
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit E — filed under seal 23 JA003632-
JA003634
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit F 23 JA003635-
JA003637
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit G 23 JA003638
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit H 23 JA003639-
JA003640
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit | 23 JA003641-
JA003643




Date Document Description Volume | Labeled
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit J — filed under seal 24 JA003644-
JA003669

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit K 24 JA003670-
JA003674

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit L 24 JA003675-
JA003678

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit M 24 JA003679-
JA003680

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit N 24 JA003681-
JA003683

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit O — filed under seal 25-26 | JA003684-
JA004083

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit P 27 JA004084
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit Q 27 JA004085
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit R 27 JA004086-
JA004089

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit S 27 JA004090
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit T 27 JA004091-
JA004092

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit U 27 JA004093
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit V 27 JA004094
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit W 27 JA004095-
JA004096




Date Document Description Volume | Labeled
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit X 27 JA004097
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit Y 27 JA004098
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit Z 27 JA004099-

JA004100
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit AA 27 JA004101-
JA004102
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit BB 27 JA004103
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit CC 27 JA004104
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit DD 27 JA004105
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit EE 27 JA004106-
JA004113
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit FF 27 JA004114-
JA004118
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit GG 27 JA004119-
JA004122
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit HH 27 JA004123
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit Il 27 JA004124
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit JJ 27 JA004125
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit KK 27 JA004126-
JA004167




Date Document Description Volume | Labeled
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit LL 27 JA004168
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit MM 27 JA004169
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit NN 27 JA004170-

JA004174
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit OO 27 JA004175-
JA004183
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit PP 27 JA004184-
JA004240
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit QQ 27 JA004241-
JA004243
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit RR 27 JA004244-
JA004248
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit SS 27 JA004249-
JA004255
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit TT 27 JA004256-
JA004262
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit UU 27 JA004263-
JA004288
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit 1 27 JA004289-
JA004292
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit 6 — filed under seal 27 JA004293-
JA004307
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit 7 — filed under seal 27 JA004308-
JA004310
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit 8 — filed under seal 27 JA004311-
JA004312
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10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit 9 — filed under seal 27 JA004313-
JA004319
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit 10 — filed under seal 27 JA004320-
JA004329
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit 11 — filed under seal 28 JA004330-
JA004340
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit 12 — filed under seal 28 JA004341-
JA004360
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit 13 — filed under seal 28 JA004361-
JA004453
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit 21 28 JA004454
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit 25 28 JA004455-
JA004462
10/24/2013 | Transcript re Trial 29-30 | JA004463-
JA004790
10/24/2013 | Trial Exhibit VV 31 JA004791
10/24/2013 | Trial Exhibit 26 31 JA004792-
JA004804
10/24/2013 | Trial Exhibit 30 31 JA004805-
JA004811
10/25/2013 | Notice of Entry of Order Denying Motion 31 JA004812-
for Partial Summary Judgment JA004817
10/25/2013 | Plaintiffs Trial Brief Pursuant to EDCR 31 JA004818-
7.27 JA004847
10/28/2013 | Transcript re Trial — filed under seal 32-33 | JA004848-
JA005227
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10/28/2013 | Trial Exhibit 15 34 JA005228-
JA005232
10/28/2013 | Trial Exhibit 18 34 JA005233-
JA005235
10/28/2013 | Trial Exhibit 19 34 JA005236-
JA005237
10/28/2013 | Trial Exhibit 20 34 JA005238-
JA005254
10/28/2013 | Trial Exhibit 23 34 JA005255-
JA005260
10/28/2013 | Trial Exhibit 24 34 JA005261-
JA005263
10/29/2013 | Transcript re Trial — filed under seal 35 JA005264-
JA005493
10/29/2013 | Trial Exhibit 28 36 JA005494-
JA005497
10/29/2013 | Trial Exhibit 29 36 JA005498-
JA005511
10/30/2013 | Transcript re Trial 37-38 | JAOO5512-
JA005815
10/30/2013 | Trial Exhibit 23a 39 JA005816-
JA005817
10/30/2013 | Trial Exhibit 27 39 JA005818-
JA005820
12/09/2013 | Transcript re Trial — filed under seal 40-41 | JA005821-
JA006192
12/10/2013 | Transcript re Trial 42-43 | JA006193-
JA006530
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12/10/2013 | Trial Exhibit WW 43 JA006531-
JA006532

12/12/2013 | Transcript re Trial — filed under seal 44-45 | JAO06533-
JA006878

12/12/2013 | Trial Exhibit XX 46 JA006879-
JA006935

12/12/2013 | Trial Exhibit 39 46 JA006936-
JA006948

12/12/2013 | Trial Exhibit 40 46 JA006949-
JA006950

12/12/2013 | Trial Exhibit 41 46 JA006951-
JA006952

12/13/2013 | Transcript re Trial - Part 1 46 JA006953-
JA007107

12/13/2013 | Transcript re Trial - Part 2 47-48 | JA007108-
JA007384

12/13/2013 | Trial Exhibit 31a 48 JA007385-
JA007410

06/24/2014 | Pardee's Motion to Expunge Lis Pendens — 48 JA007411-
section filed under seal JA007456

06/25/2014 | Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and 48 JA007457-
Order JA007474

06/27/2014 | Notice of Entry of Findings of Fact, 48 JA007475-
Conclusions of Law and Order JA007494

07/14/2014 | Opposition to Pardee's Motion to Expunge 48 JA007495-
Lis Pendens JA007559

07/15/2014 | Reply in Support of Pardee's Motion to 48 JA007560-
Expunge Lis Pendens JA007570
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07/24/2014 | Order Granting Motion to Expunge Lis 48 JA007571-
Pendens JA007573
07/25/2014 | Notice of Entry of Order Granting Motion 48 JA007574-
to Expunge Lis Pendens JA007578
07/17/2014 | Transcript re Hearing 49 JA007579-
JA007629
07/31/2014 | Transcript re Hearing 49 JA007630-
JA007646
08/25/2014 | Plaintiff's Accounting Brief Pursuant to the 49 JA007647-
court's Order Entered on June 25, 2014 JA007698
08/25/2014 | Pardee Homes of Nevada's Supplemental 49 JA007699-
Brief Regarding Future Accounting JA007707
05/13/2015 | Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law 49 JA007708-
and Supplemental Briefing re Future JA007711
Accounting
05/13/2015 | Notice of Entry of Order on Findings of 49 JA007712-
Fact and Conclusions of Law and JA0Q7717
Supplemental Briefing re Future
Accounting
05/28/2015 | Pardee's Motion for Attorney's Fees and 49 JA007718-
Costs JA007734
05/28/2015 | Appendix of Exhibits to Pardee's Motion 50-51 | JAOO7735-
for Attorney's Fees and Costs JA008150
06/15/2015 | Judgment 52 JA008151-
JA008153
06/15/2015 | Notice of Entry of Judgment 52 JA008154-
JA008158
06/19/2015 | Plaintiffs, James Wolfram and Walt 52 JA008159-
Wilkes' Memorandum of Costs and JA008191

Disbursements
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06/24/2015

Pardee's Motion to Retax Plaintiffs'
Memorandum of Costs Filed June 19,
2015

52

JA008192-
JA008215

06/29/2015

Plaintiffs' Motion for Attorney's Fees and
Costs

52-53

JA008216-
JA008327

06/29/2015

Motion to Strike "Judgment"”, Entered June
15, 2015 Pursuant To NRCP. 52 (B) And
N.R.C.P. 59, As Unnecessary and
Duplicative Orders Of Final Orders
Entered on June 25, 2014 and May 13,
2015, and as Such, is a Fugitive Document

53

JA008328-
JA008394

06/29/2015

Plaintiffs' Motion Pursuant to NRCP 52(b)
and 59 to Amend The Court's Judgment
Entered on June 15, 2015, to Amend the
Findings of Fact/conclusions of Law and
Judgment Contained Therein, Specifically
Referred to in the Language Included in
the Judgment at Page 2, Lines 8 Through
13 and the Judgment At Page 2, Lines 18
Through 23 to Delete the Same or Amend
The Same to Reflect the True Fact That
Plaintiff Prevailed On Their Entitlement to
the First Claim for Relief For an
Accounting, and Damages for Their
Second Claim for Relief of Breach of
Contract, and Their Third Claim for Relief
for Breach of the Implied Covenant for
Good Faith and Fair Dealing and That
Defendant Never Received a Judgment in
its Form and Against Plaintiffs
Whatsoever as Mistakenly Stated Within
the Court's Latest "Judgment — sections
filed under seal

54-56

JA008395-
JA008922

06/30/2015

Plaintiffs' Opposition to Pardee's Motion
for Attorney's Fees and Costs

57-58

JA008923-
JA009109
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06/30/2015 | Supplement to Plaintiffs' Pending Motion 59 JA009110-
for Attorney's Fees and Costs, Motion to JA009206
Strike Judgment, Motion Pursuant to
NRCP 52(b) and NRCP 59 to Amend the
Court's Judgment, and Plaintiffs'
Opposition to Pardee's Motion for
Attorney's Fees and Costs
07/02/2015 | Pardee Homes of Nevada's Motion to 59 JA009207-
Amend Judgment JA009283
07/08/2015 | Plaintiffs' Opposition to Pardee's Motionto | 60-61 | JA009284-
Retax Costs JA009644
07/08/2015 | Errata to Motion to Strike "Judgment”, 62 JA009645-
Entered June 15, 2015 Pursuant to NRCP JA009652

52(b) and NRCP 59, as Unnecessary and
Duplicative Orders of Final Orders
Entered on June 25, 2014 and May 13,
2015, and as such, is a Fugitive Document
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07/08/2015

Errata to Plaintiffs' Motion Pursuant to
NRCP 52(b) and 59 to Amend the Court's
Judgment Entered on June 15, 2015, to
Amend the Findings of Fact/Conclusions
of Law and Judgment Contained Therein,
Specifically Referred to in the Language
Included in the Judgment at Page, 2, Lines
8 through 13 and the Judgment at Page 2,
Lines 18 through 23 to Delete the Same or
Amend the Same to Reflect the True Fact
that Plaintiff Prevailed on their Entitlement
to the First Claim for Relief for an
Accounting, and Damages for their Second
Claim for Relief of Breach of Contract,
and Their Third Claim for Relief for
Breach of the Implied Covenant for Good
Faith and Fair Dealing and that Defendant
Never Received a Judgment in its form
and Against Plaintiffs Whatsoever as
Mistakenly Stated Within the Court's
Latest "Judgment”

62

JA009653-
JA009662

07/08/2015

Pardee's Emergency Motion to Stay
Execution of Judgment: and Ex Parte
Order Shortening Time

62

JA009663-
JA009710

07/08/2015

Pardee's Supplemental Briefing in Support
of its Emergency Motion to Stay
Execution of Judgment

62

JA009711-
JA009733

07/10/2015

Transcript re Hearing

62

JA009734-
JA009752

07/10/2015

Order on Pardee's Emergency Motion to
Stay Execution of Judgment; and Ex Parte
Order Shortening Time

62

JA009753-
JA009754
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07/10/2015 | Notice of Entry of Order on Pardee's 62 JA009755-
Emergency Motion to Stay Execution of JA009758
Judgment; and Ex Parte Order Shortening
Time

07/15/2015 | Pardee Homes of Nevada's Opposition to 62 JA009759-
Plaintiff's Motion for Attorney's Fees and JA009771
Costs

07/15/2015 | Appendix of Exhibits to Pardee Homes of 63 JA009772-
Nevada's Opposition to Plaintiffs' Motion JA009918
for Attorney's Fees and Costs

07/15/2015 | Pardee Homes of Nevada's Consolidated 63 JA009919-
Opposition To: (1) Plaintiff's Motion to JA009943
Strike Judgment Entered on June 15, 2015
Pursuant to NRCP 52(b) and NRCP 59;
and (2) Plaintiffs' Motion Pursuant to
NRCP 52(b) and 59 to Amend the Court's
Judgment Entered on June 15, 2015

07/15/2015 | Appendix of Exhibits to Pardee Homes of 64 JA009944-
Nevada's Consolidated Opposition to: (1) JA010185
Plaintiff's Motion to Strike Judgment
Entered on June 15, 2015 Pursuant to
NRCP 52(b) and NRCP 59; and Plaintiffs'
Motion Pursuant to NRCP 52(b) and 59 to
Amend the Court's Judgment Entered on
June 15, 2015

07/16/2015 | Errata to Pardee Homes of Nevada's 65 JA010186-
Opposition to Plaintiffs' Motion for JA010202
Attorney's Fees and Costs

07/17/2015 | Plaintiffs' Opposition to Pardee Homes of 65-67 | JA010203-
Nevada's Motion to Amend Judgment and JA010481

Countermotion for Attorney's Fees
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Date Document Description Volume | Labeled

07/24/2015 | Plaintiffs' Motion for Reconsideration, Ex 67 JA010482-
Parte (With Notice) of Application for JA010522
Order Shortening Time Regarding Stay of
Execution and Order Shortening Time
Regarding Stay of Execution

07/24/2015 | Declaration of John W. Muije, Esq. In 67 JA010523-
Support of Motion for Reconsideration JA010581

08/10/2015 | Pardee Homes of Nevada's Opposition to 67 JA010582-
Plaintiffs' Motion for Reconsideration of JA010669
the Order on Pardee's Emergency Motion
to Stay Execution of Judgment

08/17/2015 | Reply Points and Authorities in Support of 67 JA010670-
Motion for Reconsideration JA010678

08/24/2015 | Minute Order Denying Plaintiff's Motion 67 JA010679
for Reconsideration, Ex Parte (With
Notice) of Application for Order
Shortening Time Regarding Stay of
Execution and Order Shortening Time
Regarding Stay of Execution

09/11/2015 | Plaintiffs' Reply to Defendant's Opposition 68 JA010680-
to Plaintiff's Motion for Attorney's Fees JA010722
and Costs

09/11/2015 | Plaintiffs' Reply to Defendant's Opposition 68 JA010723-
to Plaintiff's Motion to Strike "Judgment" JA010767
Entered June 15, 2015 Pursuant to NRCP
52(b) and NRCP 59

09/11/2015 | Plaintiffs' Reply to Defendant's Opposition 68 JA010768-
to Plaintiff's Motion Pursuant to NRCP JA010811

52(b) and NRCP 59 to Amend the Court's
Judgment Entered on June 15, 2015
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Date

Document Description

Volume

Labeled

09/12/2015

Pardee Homes of Nevada's Consolidated
Reply in Support of (1) Motion to Retax
Plaintiffs' Memorandum of Costs Filed
June 19, 2015; and (2) Motion for
Attorney's Fees and Costs

68

JA010812-
JA010865

12/08/2015

Plaintiffs' Supplement to Plaintiffs'
Opposition to Pardee's Motion for
Attorney's Fees and Costs

68

JA010866-
JA010895

12/08/2015

Notice of Defendant Pardee Homes of
Nevada's Non-Reply and Non-Opposition
to "Plaintiff's Opposition to Pardee Homes
of Nevada's Motion to Amend Judgment
and Countermotion for Attorney's Fees"

69

JA010896-
JA010945

12/30/2015

Pardee Homes of Nevada's Consolidated
Response to: (1) Plaintiffs' Notice of Non-
Reply and Non-Opposition to Plaintiffs'
Opposition to Pardee's Motion to Amend
Judgment and Countermotion for
Attorney's Fees; and (2) Plaintiffs’
Supplement to Plaintiffs' Opposition to
Pardee's Motion for Attorney's Fees and
Costs

69

JA010946-
JA010953

01/11/2016

Plaintiffs' Reply to Defendants
Consolidated Response to (1) Plaintiffs'
Notice of Non-Reply and Non-Opposition
to Plaintiff's Opposition to Pardee's Motion
to Amend Judgment and Countermotion
for Attorney's Fees And (2) Plaintiffs'
Supplement to Plaintiffs' Opposition to
Pardee's Motion for Attorney's Fees and
Costs

69

JA010954-
JA010961

01/15/2016

Transcript re Hearing

70

JA010962-
JAO11167
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Date Document Description Volume | Labeled
03/14/2016 | Plaintiffs' Motion to Settle Two (2) 70 JA011168-
Competing Judgments and Orders JA011210
03/16/2016 | Release of Judgment 71 JA011211-
JA011213
03/23/2016 | Pardee Homes of Nevada's Response to 71 JA011214-
Plaintiffs' Motion to Settle Two (2) Sets of JA011270
Competing Judgments and Orders
04/20/2016 | Plaintiffs' Reply to Defendant's Response 71 JA011271-
and Supplement to Plaintiffs' Motion to JA011384
Settle Two (2) Sets of Competing
Judgments and Orders
04/26/2016 | Order from January 15, 2016 Hearings 71 JA011385-
JA011388
05/16/2016 | Judgment 71 JA011389-
JA011391
05/17/2016 | Notice of Entry of Judgment 71 JA011392-
JA011396
05/23/2016 | Plaintiffs' Memorandum of Costs and 71 JA011397-
Disbursements JA011441
05/31/2016 | Pardee's Motion to Retax Plaintiffs' 71 JA011442-
Memorandum of Costs Filed May 23, JA011454
2016
06/01/2016 | Pardee Homes of Nevada's Motion to 72 JA011455-
Amend Judgment JA011589
06/06/2016 | Pardee's Motion for Attorney's Fees and 72 JA011590-
Costs JA011614
06/06/2016 | Appendix of Exhibits to Pardee Homes 73-74 | JA011615-
Motion for Attorney Fees and Costs - JA011866

Volume 1
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Date Document Description Volume | Labeled

06/06/2016 | Appendix of Exhibits to Pardee Homes 75-76 | JA011867-
Motion for Attorney Fees and Costs - JA012114
Volume 2

06/08/2016 | Plaintiffs' Motion for Attorney's Fees and 77 JA012115-
Costs JA012182

06/20/2016 | Plaintiffs' Opposition to Pardee's Motionto | 77-79 | JA012183-
Retax Plaintiffs' Memorandum of Costs JA012624
Filed May 23, 2016

06/21/2016 | Plaintiffs' Opposition to Pardee's Motion 80 JA012625-
for Attorney's Fees and Costs JA012812

06/21/2016 | Plaintiffs' Opposition to Defendant, Pardee 81 JA012813-
Homes of Nevada's, Motion to Amend JA013024
Judgment and Plaintiffs' Countermotion
for Attorneys' Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRS 18.010 and EDCR 7.60

06/27/2016 | Pardee Homes of Nevada's Opposition to 82 JA013025-
Plaintiffs' Motion for Attorney's Fees and JA013170
Costs

06/30/2016 | Pardee Homes of Nevada's Reply in 82 JA013171-
Support of Motion for Attorney's Fees and JA013182
Costs

06/30/2016 | Pardee Homes of Nevada's Reply in 82 JA013183-
Support of Motion to Amend Judgment; JA013196
and Opposition to Plaintiffs'
Countermotion for Attorney's Fees

07/01/2016 | Pardee Homes of Nevada's Reply in 82 JA013197-
Support of Motion to Retax Plaintiffs' JA013204
Memorandum of Costs Filed May 23,
2016

08/02/2016 | Plaintiffs' Reply in Support of Motion for 83-84 | JA013205-
Attorney's Fees and Costs JA013357
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Date Document Description Volume | Labeled

08/02/2016 | Plaintiffs' Reply in Support of 84-85 | JA013358-
Countermotion for Attorney's Fees and JA013444
Costs

08/15/2016 | Transcript re Hearing - August 15, 2016 86 JA013445-

JA013565

09/12/2016 | Plaintiffs' Brief on Interest Pursuant to the 86 JA013566-
Court's Order Entered on August 15, 2016 JA013590

10/17/2016 | Pardee's Supplemental Brief Regarding 86 JA013591-
Pre- and Post-Judgment Interest Pursuant JA013602
to the Court's Order

11/04/2016 | Plaintiffs' Reply Brief in Support of Brief 86 JA013603-
on Interest Pursuant to the Court's Order JA013612
Entered on August 15, 2016

01/09/2017 | Order and Judgment from August 15, 2016 86 JA013613-
Hearings Regarding Defendants Motion to JA013615
Amend Judgment

01/09/2017 | Order and Judgment from August 15, 2016 86 JA013616-
Hearings Regarding Plaintiff's Motion for JA013618
Attorney's Fees and Costs

01/09/2017 | Order and Judgment from August 15, 2016 86 JA013619-
Hearings Regarding Defendant's Motion JA013621
for Attorney's Fees and Costs

01/10/2017 | Notice of Entry of Order and Judgment 86 JA013622-
from August 15, 2016 Hearings Regarding JA013628
Plaintiff's Motion for Attorney's Fees and
Costs

01/10/2017 | Notice of Entry of Order and Judgment 86 JA013629-
from August 15, 2016 Hearings Regarding JA013635

Defendant's Motion for Attorney's Fees
and Costs
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Date Document Description Volume | Labeled

01/10/2017 | Notice of Entry of Order and Judgment 86 JA013636-
from August 15, 2016 Hearings Regarding JA016342
Defendant's Motion to Amend Judgment

01/12/2017 | Order on Plaintiffs' Countermotion for 86 JA013643-
Attorney's Fees and Costs Pursuant to JA013644
NRS 18.010 and EDCR 7.60

01/12/2017 | Notice of Entry of Order on Plaintiffs' 86 JA013645-
Countermotion for Attorney's Fees and JA013648
Costs Pursuant to NRS 18.010 and EDCR
7.60

01/12/2017 | Order on Defendant's Motion to Retax 86 JA013649-
Plaintiffs' Memorandum of Costs Filed JA013651
May 23, 2016

01/13/2017 | Notice of Entry of Order on Defendant's 86 JA013652-
Motion to Retax Plaintiffs' Memorandum JA013656
of Costs Filed May 23, 2016

02/08/2017 | Pardee Notice of Appeal 86 JA013657-

JA013659

04/07/2017 | Pardee's Motion to Stay Execution of 86 JA013660-
Judgment and Post-Judgment Orders JA013668

04/07/2017 | Appendix of Exhibits in Support of 87 JA013669-
Pardee's Motion to Stay Execution of JA013914
Judgment and Post-Judgment Orders,
[Volume I]

04/07/2017 | Appendix of Exhibits in Support of 88 JA013915-
Pardee's Motion to Stay Execution of JA014065
Judgment and Post-Judgment Orders,
[Volume 1]

04/27/2017 | Plaintiffs' Response to Pardee's Motion to 88 JA014066-
Stay Execution of Judgment and Post- JA014068

Judgment Orders
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Date Document Description Volume | Labeled
05/10/2017 | Pardee's Reply in Support of Motion to 88 JA014069-
Stay Execution of Judgment and Post- JA014071
Judgment Orders
05/12/2017 | Plaintiffs' Opposition to Pardee's Motion 88 JA014072-
Stay Execution of Judgment and Post- JA014105
Judgment Orders
07/12/2007 | Supplemental Order Regarding Plaintiffs' 88 JA014106-
Entitlement to, and Calculation of, JA014110
Prejudgment Interest
07/14/2017 | Notice of Entry of Supplemental Order 88 JA014111-
Regarding Plaintiffs' Entitlement to, and JA014117
Calculation of, Prejudgment Interest
10/12/2017 | Amended Judgment 88 JA014118-
JA014129
10/13/2017 | Notice of Entry of Amended Judgment 88 JA014130-
JA014143
10/12/2017 | Order Re: Defendant Pardee Homes of 88 JA014144-
Nevada's Motion to Stay Execution of JA014146
Judgment and Post-Judgment Orders
10/13/2017 | Notice of Entry of Order Re: Defendant 88 JA014147-
Pardee Homes of Nevada's Motion to Stay JA014151
Execution of Judgment and Post-Judgment
Orders
11/02/2017 | Pardee Amended Notice of Appeal 88 JA014152-
JA014154
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Alphabetical Index to Joint Appendix

Date Document Description Volume Labeled
01/14/2011 | Amended Complaint 1 JA000007-
JA000012
10/12/2017 | Amended Judgment 88 JA014118-
JA014129
09/21/2012 | Amended Order Setting Civil Non-Jury 1 JA000061-
Trial JA000062
02/11/2011 | Amended Summons 1 JA000013-
JA000016
03/02/2011 | Answer to Amended Complaint 1 JA000017-
JA000023
07/03/2013 | Answer to Second Amended Complaint 16 JA002678-
and Counterclaim JA002687
10/24/2012 | Appendix of Exhibits in Support of 1 JA000083-
Defendant's Motion for Summary JA000206
Judgment
10/25/2012 | Appendix of Exhibits in Support of 2 JA000212-
Defendant's Motion for Summary JA000321
Judgment — filed under seal
04/07/2017 | Appendix of Exhibits in Support of 87 JA013669-
Pardee's Motion to Stay Execution of JA013914
Judgment and Post-Judgment Orders,
[Volume 1]
04/07/2017 | Appendix of Exhibits in Support of 88 JA013915-
Pardee's Motion to Stay Execution of JA014065
Judgment and Post-Judgment Orders,
[Volume I11]
06/06/2016 | Appendix of Exhibits to Pardee Homes 73-74 | JA011615-
Motion for Attorney Fees and Costs - JA011866

Volume 1
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Date Document Description Volume Labeled
06/06/2016 | Appendix of Exhibits to Pardee Homes 75-76 | JA011867-
Motion for Attorney Fees and Costs - JA012114
Volume 2
07/15/2015 | Appendix of Exhibits to Pardee Homes of 64 JA009944-
Nevada's Consolidated Opposition to: (1) JA010185
Plaintiff's Motion to Strike Judgment
Entered on June 15, 2015 Pursuant to
NRCP 52(b) and NRCP 59; and Plaintiffs'
Motion Pursuant to NRCP 52(b) and 59 to
Amend the Court's Judgment Entered on
June 15, 2015
07/15/2015 | Appendix of Exhibits to Pardee Homes of 63 JA009772-
Nevada's Opposition to Plaintiffs' Motion JA009918
for Attorney's Fees and Costs
05/28/2015 | Appendix of Exhibits to Pardee's Motion 50-51 | JAOO7735-
for Attorney's Fees and Costs JA008150
11/09/2012 | Appendix of Exhibits to Plaintiffs' 3-6 JA000352-
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in JA001332
Opposition to Defendant's Motion for
Summary Judgment and in Support of
Plaintiffs' Counter Motion for Summary
Judgment — sections filed under seal
11/13/2012 | Appendix of Exhibits to Plaintiffs' 7-12 JA001333-
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in JA002053
Opposition to Defendant's Motion for
Summary Judgment and in Support of
Plaintiffs' Counter Motion for Summary
Judgment
12/29/2010 | Complaint 1 JA000001-
JA000006
10/24/2012 | Declaration of Aaron D. Shipley in 1 JA000207-
Support of Defendant's Motion for JA000211

Summary Judgment
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Date Document Description Volume Labeled

07/24/2015 | Declaration of John W. Muije, Esg. In 67 JA010523-
Support of Motion for Reconsideration JA010581

08/05/2013 | Defendant Pardee Homes of Nevada's 17 JA002815-
Response to Plaintiffs’ Motions in Limine JA002829
#1-5; And #20-25

07/22/2013 | Defendant's Motion for Partial Summary 17 JA002772-
Judgment JA002786

10/24/2012 | Defendant's Motion for Summary 1 JA000063-
Judgment JA000082

03/01/2013 | Defendant's Motion in Limine to Exclude 13 JA002145-
Plaintiffs' Claim for Attorneys' Fees as an JA002175
Element of Damages (MIL #1)

03/01/2013 | Defendant's Motion in Limine to Exclude 13 JA002176-
Plaintiffs' Claim for Damages in the Form JA002210
of Compensation for Time (MIL #2)

11/29/2012 | Defendant's Opposition to Plaintiff's 13 JA002054-
Counter Motion for Partial Summary JA002065
Judgment Re: Real Parties in Interest

04/08/2013 | Defendant's Opposition to Plaintiffs' 16 JA002471-
Motion for Leave to File a Second JA002500
Amended Complaint

05/10/2013 | Defendant's Supplemental Brief in 16 JA002652-
Support of Its Opposition to Plaintiffs' JA002658
Motion for Leave to File a Second
Amended Complaint

07/08/2015 | Errata to Motion to Strike "Judgment”, 62 JA009645-
Entered June 15, 2015 Pursuant to NRCP JA009652

52(b) and NRCP 59, as Unnecessary and
Duplicative Orders of Final Orders
Entered on June 25, 2014 and May 13,
2015, and as such, is a Fugitive Document

27




Date

Document Description

Volume

Labeled

07/16/2015

Errata to Pardee Homes of Nevada's
Opposition to Plaintiffs' Motion for
Attorney's Fees and Costs

65

JA010186-
JA010202

07/08/2015

Errata to Plaintiffs' Motion Pursuant to
NRCP 52(b) and 59 to Amend the Court's
Judgment Entered on June 15, 2015, to
Amend the Findings of Fact/Conclusions
of Law and Judgment Contained Therein,
Specifically Referred to in the Language
Included in the Judgment at Page, 2, Lines
8 through 13 and the Judgment at Page 2,
Lines 18 through 23 to Delete the Same or
Amend the Same to Reflect the True Fact
that Plaintiff Prevailed on their
Entitlement to the First Claim for Relief
for an Accounting, and Damages for their
Second Claim for Relief of Breach of
Contract, and Their Third Claim for Relief
for Breach of the Implied Covenant for
Good Faith and Fair Dealing and that
Defendant Never Received a Judgment in
its form and Against Plaintiffs Whatsoever
as Mistakenly Stated Within the Court's
Latest "Judgment"

62

JA009653-
JA009662

05/13/2015

Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law
and Supplemental Briefing re Future
Accounting

49

JA0Q7708-
JAO007711

06/25/2014

Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and
Order

48

JA007457-
JA007474

06/15/2015

Judgment

52

JA008151-
JA008153

05/16/2016

Judgment

71

JA011389-
JA011391
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Date Document Description Volume Labeled
08/24/2015 | Minute Order Denying Plaintiff's Motion 67 JA010679
for Reconsideration, Ex Parte (With
Notice) of Application for Order
Shortening Time Regarding Stay of
Execution and Order Shortening Time
Regarding Stay of Execution
03/21/2013 | Motion to File Second Amended 15 JA002434-
Complaint JA002461
06/29/2015 | Motion to Strike "Judgment", Entered 53 JA008328-
June 15, 2015 Pursuant to N.R.C.P. 52 (B) JA008394
And N.R.C.P. 59, As Unnecessary and
Duplicative Orders of Final Orders
Entered on June 25, 2014 And May 13,
2015, And as Such, Is A Fugitive
Document
12/08/2015 | Notice of Defendant Pardee Homes of 69 JA010896-
Nevada's Non-Reply and Non-Opposition JA010945
to "Plaintiff's Opposition to Pardee Homes
of Nevada's Motion to Amend Judgment
and Countermotion for Attorney's Fees"
10/13/2017 | Notice of Entry of Amended Judgment 88 JA014130-
JA014143
06/27/2014 | Notice of Entry of Findings of Fact, 48 JA0Q7475-
Conclusions of Law and Order JA007494
06/15/2015 | Notice of Entry of Judgment 52 JA008154-
JA008158
05/17/2016 | Notice of Entry of Judgment 71 JA011392-
JA011396
01/10/2017 | Notice of Entry of Order and Judgment 86 JA013629-
from August 15, 2016 Hearings Regarding JA013635

Defendant's Motion for Attorney's Fees
and Costs
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Date Document Description Volume Labeled

01/10/2017 | Notice of Entry of Order and Judgment 86 JA013636-
from August 15, 2016 Hearings Regarding JA016342
Defendant's Motion to Amend Judgment

01/10/2017 | Notice of Entry of Order and Judgment 86 JA013622-
from August 15, 2016 Hearings Regarding JA013628
Plaintiff's Motion for Attorney's Fees and
Costs

10/25/2013 | Notice of Entry of Order Denying Motion 31 JA004812-
for Partial Summary Judgment JA004817

07/25/2014 | Notice of Entry of Order Granting Motion 48 JAO007574-
to Expunge Lis Pendens JAO007578

06/05/2013 | Notice of Entry of Order Granting 16 JA002665-
Plaintiffs Motion for Leave to File a JA002669
Second Amended Complaint

01/13/2017 | Notice of Entry of Order on Defendant's 86 JA013652-
Motion to Retax Plaintiffs' Memorandum JA013656
of Costs Filed May 23, 2016

05/13/2015 | Notice of Entry of Order on Findings of 49 JA007712-
Fact and Conclusions of Law and JAOO7717
Supplemental Briefing re Future
Accounting

07/10/2015 | Notice of Entry of Order on Pardee's 62 JA009755-
Emergency Motion to Stay Execution of JA009758
Judgment; and Ex Parte Order Shortening
Time

01/12/2017 | Notice of Entry of Order on Plaintiffs’ 86 JA013645-
Countermotion for Attorney's Fees and JA013648
Costs Pursuant to NRS 18.010 and EDCR
7.60

04/03/2013 | Notice of Entry of Order re Order 16 JA002465-
Denying Defendants Motion for Summary JA002470

Judgment
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Date Document Description Volume Labeled

03/15/2013 | Notice of Entry of Order re Order 14 JA002354-
Granting Plaintiffs Countermotion for JA002358
Summary Judgment

10/13/2017 | Notice of Entry of Order Re: Defendant 88 JA014147-
Pardee Homes of Nevada's Motion to Stay JA014151
Execution of Judgment and Post-Judgment
Orders

12/16/2011 | Notice of Entry of Stipulated 1 JA000040-
Confidentiality Agreement and Protective JA000048
Order

08/30/2012 | Notice of Entry of Stipulation and Order 1 JA000055-
to Extend Discovery Deadlines (First JA000060
Request)

07/14/2017 | Notice of Entry of Supplemental Order 88 JA014111-
Regarding Plaintiffs' Entitlement to, and JA014117
Calculation of, Prejudgment Interest

11/07/2012 | Opposition to Defendant's Motion for 2 JA000322-
Summary Judgment and Plaintiffs' JA000351
Counter Motion for Partial Summary
Judgment

07/14/2014 | Opposition to Pardee's Motion to Expunge 48 JA007495-
Lis Pendens JA007559

01/09/2017 | Order and Judgment from August 15, 86 JA013619-
2016 Hearings Regarding Defendant's JA013621
Motion for Attorney's Fees and Costs

01/09/2017 | Order and Judgment from August 15, 86 JA013613-
2016 Hearings Regarding Defendants JA013615
Motion to Amend Judgment

01/09/2017 | Order and Judgment from August 15, 86 JA013616-
2016 Hearings Regarding Plaintiff's JA013618
Motion for Attorney's Fees and Costs

10/23/2013 | Order Denying Motion for Partial 21 JA003210-
Summary Judgment JA003212
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Date Document Description Volume Labeled
04/26/2016 | Order from January 15, 2016 Hearings 71 JA011385-
JA011388
07/24/2014 | Order Granting Motion to Expunge Lis 48 JA007571-
Pendens JA007573
05/30/2013 | Order Granting Plaintiffs Motion for 16 JA002659-
Leave to File a Second Amended JA002661
Complaint
06/05/2013 | Order Granting Plaintiffs Motion for 16 JA002662-
Leave to File a Second Amended JA002664
Complaint
01/12/2017 | Order on Defendant's Motion to Retax 86 JA013649-
Plaintiffs' Memorandum of Costs Filed JA013651
May 23, 2016
07/10/2015 | Order on Pardee's Emergency Motion to 62 JA009753-
Stay Execution of Judgment; and Ex Parte JA009754
Order Shortening Time
01/12/2017 | Order on Plaintiffs' Countermotion for 86 JA013643-
Attorney's Fees and Costs Pursuant to JA013644
NRS 18.010 and EDCR 7.60
04/02/2013 | Order re Order Denying Defendants 16 JA002462-
Motion for Summary Judgment JA002464
03/14/2013 | Order re Order Granting Plaintiffs 14 JA002351-
Countermotion for Summary Judgment JA002353
10/12/2017 | Order Re: Defendant Pardee Homes of 88 JA014144-
Nevada's Motion to Stay Execution of JA014146
Judgment and Post-Judgment Orders
11/29/2011 | Order Setting Civil Non-Jury Trial 1 JA000031-
JA000032
11/02/2017 | Pardee Amended Notice of Appeal 88 JA014152-
JA014154

32




Date Document Description Volume Labeled
07/15/2015 | Pardee Homes of Nevada's Consolidated 63 JA009919-
Opposition To: (1) Plaintiff's Motion to JA009943
Strike Judgment Entered on June 15, 2015
Pursuant to NRCP 52(b) and NRCP 59;
and (2) Plaintiffs' Motion Pursuant to
NRCP 52(b) and 59 to Amend the Court's
Judgment Entered on June 15, 2015
09/12/2015 | Pardee Homes of Nevada's Consolidated 68 JA010812-
Reply in Support of (1) Motion to Retax JA010865
Plaintiffs' Memorandum of Costs Filed
June 19, 2015; and (2) Motion for
Attorney's Fees and Costs
12/30/2015 | Pardee Homes of Nevada's Consolidated 69 JA010946-
Response to: (1) Plaintiffs' Notice of Non- JA010953
Reply and Non-Opposition to Plaintiffs'
Opposition to Pardee's Motion to Amend
Judgment and Countermotion for
Attorney's Fees; and (2) Plaintiffs’
Supplement to Plaintiffs' Opposition to
Pardee's Motion for Attorney's Fees and
Costs
06/01/2016 | Pardee Homes of Nevada's Motion to 72 JA011455-
Amend Judgment JA011589
07/02/2015 | Pardee Homes of Nevada's Motion to 59 JA009207-
Amend Judgment JA009283
06/27/2016 | Pardee Homes of Nevada's Opposition to 82 JA013025-
Plaintiffs' Motion for Attorney's Fees and JA013170
Costs
07/15/2015 | Pardee Homes of Nevada's Opposition to 62 JA009759-
Plaintiff's Motion for Attorney's Fees and JA009771

Costs
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Date Document Description Volume Labeled

08/10/2015 | Pardee Homes of Nevada's Opposition to 67 JA010582-
Plaintiffs' Motion for Reconsideration of JA010669
the Order on Pardee's Emergency Motion
to Stay Execution of Judgment

06/30/2016 | Pardee Homes of Nevada's Reply in 82 JA013171-
Support of Motion for Attorney's Fees and JA013182
Costs

06/30/2016 | Pardee Homes of Nevada's Reply in 82 JA013183-
Support of Motion to Amend Judgment; JA013196
and Opposition to Plaintiffs'
Countermotion for Attorney's Fees

07/01/2016 | Pardee Homes of Nevada's Reply in 82 JA013197-
Support of Motion to Retax Plaintiffs' JA013204
Memorandum of Costs Filed May 23,
2016

03/23/2016 | Pardee Homes of Nevada's Response to 71 JA011214-
Plaintiffs' Motion to Settle Two (2) Sets of JA011270
Competing Judgments and Orders

08/25/2014 | Pardee Homes of Nevada's Supplemental 49 JA007699-
Brief Regarding Future Accounting JAO007707

02/08/2017 | Pardee Notice of Appeal 86 JA013657-

JA013659

07/08/2015 | Pardee's Emergency Motion to Stay 62 JA009663-
Execution of Judgment: and Ex Parte JA009710
Order Shortening Time

06/06/2016 | Pardee's Motion for Attorney's Fees and 72 JA011590-
Costs JA011614

05/28/2015 | Pardee's Motion for Attorney's Fees and 49 JA007718-
Costs JA007734

06/24/2014 | Pardee's Motion to Expunge Lis Pendens 48 JA007411-
— section filed under seal JA007456
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Date Document Description Volume Labeled

06/24/2015 | Pardee's Motion to Retax Plaintiffs' 52 JA008192-
Memorandum of Costs Filed June 19, JA008215
2015

05/31/2016 | Pardee's Motion to Retax Plaintiffs' 71 JA011442-
Memorandum of Costs Filed May 23, JA011454
2016

04/07/2017 | Pardee's Motion to Stay Execution of 86 JA013660-
Judgment and Post-Judgment Orders JA013668

05/10/2017 | Pardee's Reply in Support of Motion to 88 JA014069-
Stay Execution of Judgment and Post- JA014071
Judgment Orders

10/17/2016 | Pardee's Supplemental Brief Regarding 86 JA013591-
Pre- and Post-Judgment Interest Pursuant JA013602
to the Court's Order

07/08/2015 | Pardee's Supplemental Briefing in Support 62 JA009711-
of its Emergency Motion to Stay JA009733
Execution of Judgment

08/25/2014 | Plaintiff's Accounting Brief Pursuant to 49 JA007647-
the court's Order Entered on June 25, 2014 JA007698

09/12/2016 | Plaintiffs' Brief on Interest Pursuant to the 86 JA013566-
Court's Order Entered on August 15, 2016 JA013590

05/23/2016 | Plaintiffs' Memorandum of Costs and 71 JA011397-
Disbursements JA011441

06/08/2016 | Plaintiffs' Motion for Attorney's Fees and 77 JA012115-
Costs JA012182

06/29/2015 | Plaintiffs' Motion for Attorney's Fees and 52-53 | JA008216-
Costs JA008327

07/24/2015 | Plaintiffs' Motion for Reconsideration, Ex 67 JA010482-
Parte (With Notice) of Application for JA010522

Order Shortening Time Regarding Stay of
Execution and Order Shortening Time
Regarding Stay of Execution
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Volume

Labeled

07/18/2013

Plaintiffs' Motion in Limine To Permit
James J. Jimmerson, Esg. To Testify
Concerning Plaintiffs' Attorney's Fees and
Costs (MIL #25)

17

JA002732-
JA002771

06/29/2015

Plaintiffs' Motion Pursuant to NRCP 52(b)
and 59 to Amend The Court's Judgment
Entered on June 15, 2015, to Amend the
Findings of Fact/conclusions of Law and
Judgment Contained Therein, Specifically
Referred to in the Language Included in
the Judgment at Page 2, Lines 8 Through
13 and the Judgment At Page 2, Lines 18
Through 23 to Delete the Same or Amend
The Same to Reflect the True Fact That
Plaintiff Prevailed On Their Entitlement to
the First Claim for Relief For an
Accounting, and Damages for Their
Second Claim for Relief of Breach of
Contract, and Their Third Claim for Relief
for Breach of the Implied Covenant for
Good Faith and Fair Dealing and That
Defendant Never Received a Judgment in
its Form and Against Plaintiffs
Whatsoever as Mistakenly Stated Within
the Court's Latest "Judgment — sections
filed under seal

54-56

JA008395-
JA008922

03/14/2016

Plaintiffs' Motion to Settle Two (2)
Competing Judgments and Orders

70

JA011168-
JA011210

06/21/2016

Plaintiffs' Opposition to Defendant,
Pardee Homes of Nevada's, Motion to
Amend Judgment and Plaintiffs'
Countermotion for Attorneys' Fees and
Costs Pursuant to NRS 18.010 and EDCR
7.60

81

JA012813-
JA013024

08/06/2013

Plaintiffs Opposition to Defendants
Motion for Partial Summary Judgment

17

JA002830-
JA002857
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Date Document Description Volume Labeled

03/20/2013 | Plaintiffs Opposition to Defendant's 15 JA002359-
Motion in Limine to Exclude Plaintiffs JA002408
Claim for Attorney’s Fees as an Element
of Damages MIL 1

03/20/2013 | Plaintiffs Opposition to Defendants 15 JA002409-
Motion in Limine to Plaintiffs Claim for JA002433
Damages in the form of compensation for
time MIL 2

07/17/2015 | Plaintiffs' Opposition to Pardee Homes of 65-67 | JA010203-
Nevada's Motion to Amend Judgment and JA010481
Countermotion for Attorney's Fees

06/30/2015 | Plaintiffs' Opposition to Pardee's Motion 57-58 | JA008923-
for Attorney's Fees and Costs JA009109

06/21/2016 | Plaintiffs' Opposition to Pardee’s Motion 80 JA012625-
for Attorney's Fees and Costs JA012812

05/12/2017 | Plaintiffs' Opposition to Pardee's Motion 88 JA014072-
Stay Execution of Judgment and Post- JA014105
Judgment Orders

07/08/2015 | Plaintiffs' Opposition to Pardee's Motion 60-61 | JA009284-
to Retax Costs JA009644

06/20/2016 | Plaintiffs' Opposition to Pardee's Motion 77-79 | JA012183-
to Retax Plaintiffs' Memorandum of Costs JA012624
Filed May 23, 2016

11/04/2016 | Plaintiffs' Reply Brief in Support of Brief 86 JA013603-
on Interest Pursuant to the Court's Order JA013612
Entered on August 15, 2016

04/23/2013 | Plaintiffs Reply in Further Support of 16 JA002503-
Motion for Leave to File Second JA002526

Amended Complaint
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Date Document Description Volume Labeled

01/17/2013 | Plaintiffs' Reply in Further Support of 13 JA002102-
Their Counter Motion for Partial JA002144
Summary Judgment

08/02/2016 | Plaintiffs' Reply in Support of 84-85 | JA013358-
Countermotion for Attorney's Fees and JA013444
Costs

08/02/2016 | Plaintiffs' Reply in Support of Motion for 83-84 | JA013205-
Attorney's Fees and Costs JA013357

01/11/2016 | Plaintiffs' Reply to Defendants 69 JA010954-
Consolidated Response to (1) Plaintiffs' JA010961
Notice of Non-Reply and Non-Opposition
to Plaintiff's Opposition to Pardee's
Motion to Amend Judgment and
Countermotion for Attorney's Fees And
(2) Plaintiffs' Supplement to Plaintiffs'
Opposition to Pardee's Motion for
Attorney's Fees and Costs

07/15/2013 | Plaintiffs Reply to Defendants 17 JA002724-
Counterclaim JA002731

09/11/2015 | Plaintiffs' Reply to Defendant's 68 JA010680-
Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion for JA010722
Attorney's Fees and Costs

09/11/2015 | Plaintiffs' Reply to Defendant's 68 JA010768-
Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion Pursuant JA010811
to NRCP 52(b) and NRCP 59 to Amend
the Court's Judgment Entered on June 15,
2015

09/11/2015 | Plaintiffs' Reply to Defendant's 68 JA010723-
Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion to Strike JA010767
"Judgment" Entered June 15, 2015
Pursuant to NRCP 52(b) and NRCP 59

04/20/2016 | Plaintiffs' Reply to Defendant's Response 71 JA011271-
and Supplement to Plaintiffs' Motion to JA011384

Settle Two (2) Sets of Competing
Judgments and Orders
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Date Document Description Volume Labeled
04/27/2017 | Plaintiffs' Response to Pardee's Motion to 88 JA014066-
Stay Execution of Judgment and Post- JA014068
Judgment Orders
05/10/2013 | Plaintiffs Supplement to Motion for Leave 16 JA002627-
to File a Second Amended Complaint JA002651
Pursuant to the Courts order on Hearing
on April 26, 2013
12/08/2015 | Plaintiffs' Supplement to Plaintiffs' 68 JA010866-
Opposition to Pardee's Motion for JA010895
Attorney's Fees and Costs
09/27/2013 | Plaintiffs Supplement to Their Opposition 19-21 | JA002988-
to Defendants Motion for Partial JA003203
Summary Judgment
07/22/2013 | Plaintiffs Supplemental Opposition to 17 JA002787-
Defendants Motion in Limine to Plaintiffs JA002808
Claim for Damages in the Form of
Compensation for Time MIL 2
10/25/2013 | Plaintiffs Trial Brief Pursuant to EDCR 31 JA004818-
7.27 JA004847
06/19/2015 | Plaintiffs, James Wolfram and Walt 52 JA008159-
Wilkes' Memorandum of Costs and JA008191
Disbursements
03/16/2016 | Release of Judgment 71 JA011211-
JA011213
01/07/2013 | Reply Brief in Support of Defendant's 13 JA002081-
Motion for Summary Judgment JA002101
09/16/2013 | Reply in Support of Defendant's Motion 17 JA002858-
for Partial Summary Judgment JA002864
09/16/2013 | Reply in Support of Defendant's Motion in 17 JA002865-
Limine to Exclude Plaintiff's Claim for JA002869

Attorney's Fees as An Element of
Damages
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Date Document Description Volume Labeled
09/16/2013 | Reply in Support of Defendant's Motion in 17 JA002870-
Limine to Exclude Plaintiffs' Claim for JA002874
Damages in the Form of Compensation for
Time
07/15/2014 | Reply in Support of Pardee's Motion to 48 JA007560-
Expunge Lis Pendens JA007570
08/17/2015 | Reply Points and Authorities in Support of 67 JA010670-
Motion for Reconsideration JA010678
11/08/2011 | Scheduling Order 1 JA000028-
JA000030
06/06/2013 | Second Amended Complaint 16 JA002670-
JA002677
04/17/2013 | Second Amended Order Setting Civil 16 JA002501-
Non-Jury Trial JA002502
12/15/2011 | Stipulated Confidentiality Agreement and 1 JA000033-
Protective Order JA000039
08/29/2012 | Stipulation and Order to Extend Discovery 1 JA000051-
Deadlines (First Request) JA000054
06/30/2015 | Supplement to Plaintiffs' Pending Motion 59 JA009110-
for Attorney's Fees and Costs, Motion to JA009206
Strike Judgment, Motion Pursuant to
NRCP 52(b) and NRCP 59 to Amend the
Court's Judgment, and Plaintiffs'
Opposition to Pardee's Motion for
Attorney's Fees and Costs
09/27/2013 | Supplemental Brief in Support of 21 JA003204-
Defendant's Motion for Partial Summary JA003209
Judgment
07/12/2007 | Supplemental Order Regarding Plaintiffs' 88 JA014106-
Entitlement to, and Calculation of, JA014110

Prejudgment Interest
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Date Document Description Volume Labeled
03/05/2013 | Transcript of Proceedings - March 5, 2013 14 JA002211-
JA002350
10/25/2011 | Transcript re Discovery Conference 1 JA000024-
JA000027
08/27/2012 | Transcript re Hearing 1 JA000049-
JA000050
04/26/2013 | Transcript re Hearing 16 JA002527-
JA002626
07/09/2013 | Transcript re Hearing 17 JA002688-
JA002723
09/23/2013 | Transcript re Hearing 18 JA002875-
JA002987
07/17/2014 | Transcript re Hearing 49 JA007579-
JA007629
07/31/2014 | Transcript re Hearing 49 JA007630-
JA007646
07/10/2015 | Transcript re Hearing 62 JA009734-
JA009752
01/15/2016 | Transcript re Hearing 70 JA010962-
JA011167
08/15/2016 | Transcript re Hearing - August 15, 2016 86 JA013445-
JA013565
12/06/2012 | Transcript re Status Check 13 JA002066-
JA002080
07/23/2013 | Transcript re Status Check 17 JA002809-
JA002814
10/23/2013 | Transcript re Trial 22 JA003213-
JA003403
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Date Document Description Volume Labeled
10/24/2013 | Transcript re Trial 29-30 | JA004463-
JA004790
10/28/2013 | Transcript re Trial — filed under seal 32-33 | JA004848-
JA005227
10/29/2013 | Transcript re Trial — filed under seal 35 JA005264-
JA005493
10/30/2013 | Transcript re Trial 37-38 | JAOO5512-
JA005815
12/09/2013 | Transcript re Trial — filed under seal 40-41 JA005821-
JA006192
12/10/2013 | Transcript re Trial 42-43 | JA006193-
JA006530
12/12/2013 | Transcript re Trial — filed under seal 44-45 | JA006533-
JA006878
12/13/2013 | Transcript re Trial - Part 1 46 JA006953-
JA007107
12/13/2013 | Transcript re Trial - Part 2 47-48 | JAOO7108-
JA007384
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit A 23 JA003404-
JA003544
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit B — filed under seal 23 JA003545-
JA003625
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit C 23 JA003626-
JA003628
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit D 23 JA003629-
JA003631
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit E — filed under seal 23 JA003632-
JA003634
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Date Document Description Volume Labeled
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit F 23 JA003635-
JA003637

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit G 23 JA003638
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit H 23 JA003639-
JA003640

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit | 23 JA003641-
JA003643

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit J — filed under seal 24 JA003644-
JA003669

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit K 24 JA003670-
JA003674

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit L 24 JA003675-
JA003678

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit M 24 JA003679-
JA003680

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit N 24 JA003681-
JA003683

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit O — filed under seal 25-26 | JA003684-
JA004083

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit P 27 JA004084
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit Q 27 JA004085
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit R 27 JA004086-
JA004089

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit S 27 JA004090
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Date Document Description Volume Labeled
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit T 27 JA004091-
JA004092

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit U 27 JA004093
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit V 27 JA004094
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit W 27 JA004095-
JA004096

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit X 27 JA004097
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit Y 27 JA004098
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit Z 27 JA004099-
JA004100

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit 1 27 JA004289-
JA004292

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit 10 — filed under seal 27 JA004320-
JA004329

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit 11 — filed under seal 28 JA004330-
JA004340

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit 12 — filed under seal 28 JA004341-
JA004360

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit 13 — filed under seal 28 JA004361-
JA004453

10/28/2013 | Trial Exhibit 15 34 JA005228-
JA005232

10/28/2013 | Trial Exhibit 18 34 JA005233-
JA005235
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Date Document Description Volume Labeled
10/28/2013 | Trial Exhibit 19 34 JA005236-
JA005237

10/28/2013 | Trial Exhibit 20 34 JA005238-
JA005254

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit 21 28 JA004454
10/28/2013 | Trial Exhibit 23 34 JA005255-
JA005260

10/30/2013 | Trial Exhibit 23a 39 JA005816-
JA005817

10/28/2013 | Trial Exhibit 24 34 JA005261-
JA005263

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit 25 28 JA004455-
JA004462

10/24/2013 | Trial Exhibit 26 31 JA004792-
JA004804

10/30/2013 | Trial Exhibit 27 39 JA005818-
JA005820

10/29/2013 | Trial Exhibit 28 36 JA005494-
JA005497

10/29/2013 | Trial Exhibit 29 36 JA005498-
JA005511

10/24/2013 | Trial Exhibit 30 31 JA004805-
JA004811

12/13/2013 | Trial Exhibit 31a 48 JA007385-
JA007410

12/12/2013 | Trial Exhibit 39 46 JA006936-
JA006948
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Date Document Description Volume Labeled
12/12/2013 | Trial Exhibit 40 46 JA006949-
JA006950

12/12/2013 | Trial Exhibit 41 46 JA006951-
JA006952

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit 6 — filed under seal 27 JA004293-
JA004307

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit 7 — filed under seal 27 JA004308-
JA004310

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit 8 — filed under seal 27 JA004311-
JA004312

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit 9 — filed under seal 27 JA004313-
JA004319

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit AA 27 JA004101-
JA004102

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit BB 27 JA004103
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit CC 27 JA004104
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit DD 27 JA004105
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit EE 27 JA004106-
JA004113

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit FF 27 JA004114-
JA004118

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit GG 27 JA004119-
JA004122

10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit HH 27 JA004123
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Date Document Description Volume Labeled
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit 11 27 JA004124
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit JJ 27 JA004125
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit KK 27 JA004126-

JA004167
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit LL 27 JA004168
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit MM 27 JA004169
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit NN 27 JA004170-
JA004174
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit OO 27 JA004175-
JA004183
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit PP 27 JA004184-
JA004240
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit QQ 27 JA004241-
JA004243
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit RR 27 JA004244-
JA004248
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit SS 27 JA004249-
JA004255
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit TT 27 JA004256-
JA004262
10/23/2013 | Trial Exhibit UU 27 JA004263-
JA004288
10/24/2013 | Trial Exhibit VV 31 JA004791
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Date Document Description Volume Labeled
12/10/2013 | Trial Exhibit WW 43 JA006531-
JA006532

12/12/2013 | Trial Exhibit XX 46 JA006879-
JA006935

Dated this 28" day of February, 2018.

McDONALD CARANO LLP

By: /s/ Rory T. Kay

Pat Lundvall (NSBN 3761)

Rory T. Kay (NSBN 12416)

2300 W. Sahara Ave., 12th Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102

Telephone: (702) 873-4100

Facsimile: (702) 873-9966
lundvall@mcdonaldcarano.com

rkay@mcdonaldcarano.com

Attorneys for Appellant
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
| hereby certify that I am an employee of McDonald Carano LLP, and on the
28" day of February, 2018, a true and correct copy of the foregoing document was
e-filed and e-served on all registered parties to the Supreme Court's electronic
filing system:

/s/ Beau Nelson
An Employee of McDonald Carano LLP
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A15 South Sixth Strest, Suite 100, Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Tatephong {702} 388-T174
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supp i 2
SJAMES J JIMMERSON, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. D02864 CLERK OF THE COURT
LYNN M. HANSEN, ESG.

Nevads Bar Noo Q0244

JAMES M. JIMMERSON, ESQ.

Novada Bar No. 12588

JIMMERSON HANSEN, P.C.

415 South 67 Street, Suite 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 88103

Tel No.: {(702) 3887171,

Fax Noo (702) 388-6406

imh@limmersonhanssn.com

imi@jimmersonhanssen. com

Attornays for Plaintiifs

James Wolfram and Wall Wilkes

DISTRICY COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

JAMES WOLFRAM and

WALT WILKES, CASE NO.: A-10-832338-C

DEPT. NO.WV
Plaintiffs,

Vs,

PARDEE HOMES OF NEVADA,

Defendant.

Anl related claims,

st s Trnd mas s s N s Wnns” ans e Tappd Sops”

EOR PARTIAL SUMMARY JUDGMENT
COME NOW, Piaintiffs, JAMES WOLFRAM and WALT WILKES, by and through

their counsel of record, James J. Jimmaerson, £sq., Lynn M. Hansen, Esq., and James M.
Jimmerson, Esq., of the law firm of JIMMERSON HANGEN, P.C., and hersby file Plaintiffg’
Supptement o their Opposition to Defendant’s Motion for Partial Summary Judgment, This

Supplement is based upon the papers and pleadings on file in this action, the sxhibits

JA002988




LA T~ N ¢ B A

w m o~

~11E7

- Encsintie (707) 357

JIMMERSON HANSEN, P.C.

415 South Stk Sireat, Suits 100, Las Vegas, Nevata R9101

Telephone {702) 388.7171

attached hereto and the original moving briefs, the Memorandum of Points and Authorities
attached hereto, and any argument adduced at the time of any hearing on this matier.
DATED this 27th day of September, 2013.
JIMMERSON HANSEN, P.C.

/s James J. Jimmerson, Es0.
JAMES J. JIMMERSON, E8Q.
Nevada State Bar No. 000284
LYNN M. HANSEN, ESQ.
Nevada State Bar No. 000244
JAMES M. JIMMERSON, ESQ.
Nevada Siate Bar No. 12588
415 South Sixth Sireet, Suite 100
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attornsys for Plaintiffs

James Wolfram and Walt Wilkes

wife
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MOTION FOR PARTIAL SUMMARY JUDG
L INTRODUCTION

As the Court will remember, the parlies have been invited to submit addifional
briefing concerming Defendant's Motion for Partial Summary Judgment on the cause of
action for an accounting. Specifically, the Count inguired {1) as 1o whether a cause of
action for an accounting was recognized in Nevada, and {2) if Nevads recognizes the
cause of action, whether the relationship between the parties give rise {0 an accounting
claim. Plaintitls’ position at the hearing was that (1} Nevada did recognize an accounting
cause of action; and (2} Plaintiffs have the necessary reiationship with Defendant o
warrant a claim for accounting and thersfore, there is a genuine issus of material fact

rohibiting summary judgment.

Counsel for Defendant responded to Plaintifis by arguing that an accounting was a
remnedy, not an independent cause of action, and that even if if were a cause of action, no
fiduciary or special relationship exisis bstwesn the parties eniiliing Plaintifils {0 an
accounting.  After hearing the collogquy bstween counssl on these matlters, the Count
ordersd further briefing on the cause of action for an accounting.

As will ba detailed below, Plaintiffs’ position is that thay are properly maintaining a
valid and meritorious cause of action. Nevada has consistently recognized a cause of
action for an accouniing, distinct from the mers accounting remedy. The Legisiature, in
passing NRS 1668A.320, codilied the cause of action for an accounting and piaced it on the
same level as a claim for breach of fiduciary duly. Further, muitiple Nevada Supreme
Court cases have recognized the cause of action for an accounting. Without any Nevads
Supreme Court caselaw directly supporting Defendant, the Court cannot take the leap that
Nevada has extinguished the common law cause of action for an accounting.

The common law cause of action for an accounting is available when a parly has a
duty to account to another for its conduct. This duty arises when there exists a special
reiationship belween the parties whersby onse parly is duty-bound {o disclose information io

-1~

JA002990




« Facsimils (T02) 287-1167

ith Btreet, Suite 100, Las Vegas, Nevada 88101

Telaphone (702} 388-717%

2
o

JMMERSON HANSEN, P.C.

415 South

LI OO T
[& 7 Bl {22

27
28

the other. The clearest sxample of one of these special relationships is a fiduciary
relationship. Howaevar, the law does not restrict the duty to account {o just fiduciaries. In
fact, the commaon law is quils expansive in the typas of relationships Wiggering a duly fo
account. For example, Nevada reguires the disclosure of material facts when one side to &
fransaction has exclusive control over the material facts. As will be expanded upon below,
Plaintiffs had the requisite special relationship giving rise fo Defendant’s duty 1o account 1o
Plaintiffs.

As applied to this action, Defendant had a duly o account to Plaintiffs for two
reasons: {1) becauss the Commission Lefter Agreement requires Pardees o produce
certain documents and information upon the ccourrence of certain evenis and to generally
keep Plaintiffs reasonably informed as o all matters related to the amount and dus daies
of their commissions; and {2} because Plaintiffs had no indspendent access 10 the material
facts conceming the ongoing business relationship with Defendant, In short, the duty ©
account and disclose the required information arese from the parties’ contract, as well as
comman faw.

Defendant makes much of the fact that in order 10 succeed on thelr claim for
accounting Flaintiffs must first establish that Defendant breachad #ts contraciual duties o
produce certain information.| Defendant would have the Court believe that since a breach
of contract or the covenant of good faith and fair dealing is a prerequisite to esiabiishing
their accounting ciaim, Plaintiffs’ claim for an accounting is truly just a request for a remedy
upon demonsirating breach of contract. This is incorrect. The two claims are separate
causes of action governed by different legsl standards. The Court found as much in its
March 22, 2013 Order Denying Delendant's Motion for Summary Judgment when it stated,

“The Couwrt further finds the Plainits’ Compiaint alieges three different causes of

" The reason why Plaintiffs must establish a breach of contract or impliad covenant in order
fo succesd on a claim for accounting is because the contract requires the production of
certain information to Plaintiffs. if the Court finds no breach of contractiimplisd covenant,
there would be no duly to further account 1o Plaintifls since they have received all of the
required information undsr the Commission Letier Agreement.

e
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action...” /d (emphasis supplied), The Court knows that Plaintiffs are the masters of their
own complaint and—so iong as the svidence can establish the slements for each claim—
Plaintifis are entitied to pursus sach claim to the full, no matter how much Defendant seeks
o repackags the complaint.

indead, Plaintiffs can establish each element of thelr claim for accounting.
Thersfore, the Court must deny Defendamt's Motion for Partial Summary Judgment as
thers are genuine issuss of materal fact concerming the rsiationship between the parties
giving rise to the duty to account. Further, the axistence of a fiduciary relationship is a fact
issue and is not dispensable at the summary judgment stage. See in re Dalsy Systems
Corp.,, 87 F.3d 1171, 1178 {(9th Cir. 1888). As such, the Courl must deny Defendant’s
motion.

i LEGAL ARGUMENT

A, Nevada Recognizes the Equitable Cause of Action for an Accounting

1. The Cause of Action for an Accounting Has Been Long Affirmed in
Nevada Statutes

Befors considering the Nevada Supremea Couwrt's opinions on the causs of action for
an accourting, the Court should first take notice that Nevada hag long recognized this
cause of action in ifs statutes. For sxample, before our state codified the Nevada Revised
Staiuies, the Nevada Compiled Laws specifically provided an action for an accouniing. As
quoted in Esmeraida Water Co. v. Mackiey, 68 Nev. 261, 268 n. 1, 208 P.2d 821, B24
(1948),° NCL § 8026—the statuie establishing the right to engage in a civil action—siated
as follows:

An action may be brought by one of more persons against any
other person of persons for the purpose of delermining an
adverse claim which the lafler makes against the former, for
maoney or property, upon an alleged obligation or flability of any
nature or kind, or upon any claim for an accounting, or for
any other legal or equitable relief.

“ A copy of which is attached hersto as Exhibit 1.
wRa
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id. {emphasis supplied). This statute makes clear that an accounting is a type of action
and not mersly an equitable remedy in Nevada,

Furthermore, this stalutory right to file sull for an accounting survives ioday.
indesd, NRS 168A.320 specifically recognizes the indspendent cause of action for an
accounting and serves as s statute of Hmilations in aclions against a trustes. NRS
166A.320(1) slales:

1. Except as otherwise provided in subssction 3, unless
previously barred by adjudication, consent or limitation, a ¢laim
for refief against a custodial trustee for accounting or
breach of duty is barred as {o a beneficiary, a person 1o whom
custodial trust property s to be paid or delivered or the legal
represantative of an incapacitated or deceassd beneficiary or
payee:

{a) Who has received a final account or statement fully
disclosing the matier unless an action or procseding o gesert
the claim iz commenced within 2 years after receipt of the final
account or statement; or

{b} Who has not received a final account or statement fully

. disclosing the malter unless an action or proceeding t© assent
the claim is commenced within 3 years afier the termination of
the custodial rust,

i, (emphaisis supplied). Just as the former NCL § 80268 confirmed that an accounting is &
type of action, so too does the current NRS 266A.320. By placing a claim for accounting
immediately alongside a clalm for breach of duly in the statute, the Legisiature is
uneguivocal that an accounting clalm is just as much a cause of action as a claim for
breach of duty.

2. The Nevada Supreme Court Has Papestediy Affirmed The Cause of
Action for an Accounting

As the Court read in Plaintiifs’ Opposition to the Motion for Partial Summary
Judgment, the Nevada Supreme Court has recognized the cause of action for an
accounting. Without retreading the analysis or guthority in thelr Oppaosition, Plaintiffs would
remind the Court of the holding in Botsford v. Van Hiper, 33 Nev. 158, 110 P. 705, 712

(1910):° “i is also well settied in law that one party to & joint adventure may sue the other

® A copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit 2.
wdle
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at law for the breach of contract, or share of the profits or losses, or a contribution for
advances made in excess of his share, but the remedy at law doss not preciude a sult
in equity for an accounting.” jd {emphasis supplied). Defendant tried 10 explain away
these words in its Reply brief slating, “The Nevada Supreme Court in Solsford confinmed
that there are multiple remadiss for breach of contract.” Re;;éy’* at 3 (amphasis in original).
Defendant’s interpretation of Botsford is mistaken, however,

The court in Botsford is not listing remedies for breach of contract, To the contrary,
it is listing causes of action for partner misconduct. That is why the court staled “g party to
a joint adventure may sue the other for [1] the breach of contract, [2] or share of profits or
fosses, [3] or a contribution for advances...” Clearly, this is a list of possibie causes of
action, not remedies.’ Further confirming that the Supreme Court was identifying causes
of action is the dichotomy between "a remedy” and “a suit” as the quolation continues, “the
remedy al law does not preciude a sult in equity for an accounting.” /4 {emphasis
supplied). If an accounting was only a remedy, presumably the court would use the same
nomencliature. However, the Nevada Supreme Court does not do 80 and instead chooses
o call an accounting "a sult in equity’—thereby suggesting that a sult in equity could
survive solely on a freestanding claim for an accounting.

Further supporting Plaintifs is the decision in Milchell v. O'Neale, 4 Nev. 504, 522
{(1868).° There, the Nevada Suprsme Court explained that the relationship between the
parties was the key factor in delermining whether a cause of action for an accounting was
propar. As staled by the cowrl

But notwithstanding the lestinony does not estabiish the
coniract of partnership which forms the foundation of the
plaintiff's cause of action, yet the evidence, very
satisfactorily to our mind, makes out 8 case entitling him

| * Dsfendant's Reply in Support of Defendant’s Motion for Partial Summary Judgment is

=

cited herein as, “Replv at .
® Just as breach of contract is a cause of action, 50 too are indemnity and contribution in
Nevada. See Asfna Cas. And Sur. Co. v. Aztec Flumbing Corp., 106 Nev. 474, 476, 796
P.2d 227, 228 (1980) ("A cause of action for indemnity or contribulion accrues when
payment hag been made.”).
® & copy of which is attached herato as Exhibit 3.

-5
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o an sccounting, not by reason of any partnership, for that
could only be created 83 betwsen the parties themselves by an
agreement or understanding to that effect, (and that we
conciude is not sufficiently shown here) but by reason of their
refations as tenanis in common. ..

id. {emphasis supplisd). Not only does this decigion provide additonal proof that Nevada
racognizes an independent cause of action for an accounting, but alse, as will be further
expiained below, the reasoning contained In Michel is consistent with the universal
understanding of the requirsments to susiain a claim for an accounting.

8. Every Stale Bordering Nevada Also Recognizes a Cause of Action for an
Accounting

Further bolstering Plaintifis’ position that an accounting is an independent cause of
action is the fact that every state bordering Nevada recognizes such a cause of aclion. As
the Court is well aware, California recognizes a causs of action for an accounting. See
Howard v. Babcock, € Cal. 4th 409, 428, BE3, P.2d 150, 1681 {Cal. 1983} Teselle v.
McLoughiin, 173 Cal. App. 4th 156, 179, 82 Cal. Rplr. 3d 696, 715 (Cal App. Ct. 2009).

So does Utah, In Stewart v. K&S Co, Inc,, 581 P.2d 433, 434 {Utah 1879), the
Utah Suprems Court affirmed judgment in favor of plaintiff on a single cause of action for
an accounting {(“Plaintiff Audrey |, Stewart sued defendants K&8 Company, and its officers,
for an accounting to her as a stockholder. From a judgment awarding her $23,000 plus
$12,182.44 infersst, the defendants appeal.”).

ldaho also considers an accouniting o be an independent cause of aclion. In
Ramssyer v. Ramseyer, 88 idaho 47, 52, 558 P.2d 76, 81 (idaho 1876}, the idaho
Supreme Court not only recognized the cause of action for an accounting, but also
axplained its limilations period. As the court held, “The time whan a cause of action for a
parinership accounting accrues is specified by statute.” fd

Just like idaho, Arizona recognizes the cause of action for an accounting and has

fixed its limitations period. The Arizona Court of Appeals explained, “The applicable

” A copy of which is aitached hereto as Exhibit 4,
-6
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statute of limitations is four years for an accounting” Esigle of Kirschenbaum v.
Kirschenbaurmn, 164 Ariz. 435, 437, 783 P.2d 1102, 1104 {Ariz. 1988),

Likewise, Oregon also treats an accounting as an independent cause of action. In
Duniway v. Barton, 193 Or. 69, 71, 78, 237 P.2d 830, 831, 934 {Or. 1851), the court
explained the basis for a claim for an gecounting, stating:

This & a suit for an accounting of the proceeds of assets
belonging o plaintiff, Kathering S. Duniway, and entrusted
defendants, E.R. Errion and J.R. Bariton. ..t was [Bartor's] duty
1o not only not misrapresent to [Duniway] the value of the lands
ha and Erion sold her, but to disciose io her fully all the

material facls with reference o thelr valus within his
knowledgs.

i, Not only did the Oregon high court confirm the propriety of a cause of action for
accounting in this decision, it also explained the basis for it—the defendanis’ duty to
disclose the material facts t© the plaintifi. As will be ssen below, the Nevada Supreme
Court has also codified a duty to disclose using almost identical language as the Oregon
Supremse Court in Duniway.

Finally, Washington recognizes a cause of action for an accounting.” In Knatvoid v,
Rydman, 28 Wash, 2d 178, 183, 182 P.2d 8, 12 (Wash. 1847), the Washington Supreme
Court, sitting en banc, affirmed the denial of a demurrer of an accounting claim and further
sxplained that the plaintiff had satisfied the requirement thal “in an action for an
accounting, a plaintff must allege a prior demand for an accounting and the refusal of the
defandant to account” id

Examining the law of the states bordering Navada and the opinions confirming that
a cause of action for gcocounting sxists, the Court can make a few observations, First, itis
nonsensical that Nevada would not recognize the cause of action for an accounting when i
is surrounded by states that do so.  Nevada has adopted the common law and 0 the

extent the Nevada Supremea Court decisions concerning actions for sccounting are

® While not a state bordering Nevada, like Nevada, it is a state within the Ninth Cirouit and
it publishes is Supreme Courl's opinions in the Pacific Reporler, and #is hoidings
concerning this issue can further assist the Court in rendsring its decision.

iy
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unclear, reference 1o the states sumounding Nevada for guidance is appropriate.  See
Hamm v. Carson City Nugget, inc., 85 Nev. 88, 100, 450 P.2d 358, 350 {1868} ("The
cormmon law is the rule of decision in our couris unless in conflict with constitutional or
statutory commands.”). Second, the cases citad above do more than just establish that a
causs of action for accounting exists—they aiso aliude to slements of such a claim. For
example, {1} a demand for an accounting and a refusal thersto are required {0 susiain the
action {see Knaghwold), and {2} the claim for an accounting survives only when there s a
duty to disclose information to the plaintiff (see Duniway). Finally, the cause of action is
subject to a limitations period. Theses are characteristics of causes of action and not mere
remadias.

¢. The Cause of Action for an Accounting Centers on the Duty to Account

The key distinction between a cause of action for accounting and the remedy of
accounting is that the cause of action reguires that the defendant have a duty 10 account in
the first instance. No cause of action or bill in equity could be stated if the defendant had
no duty to account. Conversely, when a defendant has a duty 10 account and breaches
that duty, a cause of action arises. Just ke many causes of action, it is the breach of a
duty that triggers the availabiiity of a claim.

The duty to account arises from the relationship between the parties. The American
Law Reports sxplains:

With respect (0 the nature of an action of account, it was said in
Daniberg v. Fisse (1831) 328 Mo 213, 40 SW2d 806 "Thisis a
common-taw action by means of which persons who weare
under a legal duty to account for property or money of another
ware compslied to render such account. ... The petition In an
action of account is required 1o set cut a relationship of
the parties and a siate of facts ihat would entitie the
claimant to an accounting; allege that no accounting had
tesn made; and pray for & money judgment, but nead not ask
that an account be taken. The judgments which are incideni to
such an action are two; judgment that defendant do account
and judgment after the account for the balance found due.”

JA002997
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143 ALK § 1211, indesd, "To maintain an action at law of account, thers must usually be
privity betwesn the parties, either by deed or possession, or as a result of a legal
relationship, such as with a guardian.” 1A C.J.8. Accounting § 2.

it is the existence of a special relationship that establishes a duty 1o account, and by
extension, establishes the gvaillability of a causs of action for an accounting if that duty is
breached. The mere remedy of acoounting, however, is avallable to pariles who do not
have the reguisite special relationship, but who have stll engaged in such complex
transactions that relief can only be afforded affer the transactions havs besn appropriately
"sorted out” Judge Larry Hicks sifting in the U.S. District Court in the District of Nevada
gxplained the distinction between the cause of action for accounting and the mere remaedy
in Oracle USA, Inc. v. Rimini Strest, Inc., Case No. 2:10-CV-00106-LRH-PAL, 2010 WL
3287933, at *5 {D. Nev. Aug. 13, 2010).° There he helid:

“An action for accounting ... is a proceading in equity for the
purpose of obtalning a judicial setilament of the accounts of the
partias in which proceeding the court will adiudicate the amount
dus, administer full relisf and render complsie justice.” Vardier
v. Superior Court, 88 Cail.App.2d 527, 530, 189 P.2d 325 (Cal.
1948). “An sccounting cause of action is equitable in nature,
and may be sought ‘where ... the accounis are s¢ complicated
that an ordinary legal action demanding a fixed sum is
impracticable.’ « Civic Western Corp. v. Zila Industiss, Inc., 66
Cal App.3d 1, 14, 135 Cal, Fptr. 815 {Cal. 1877} (citation and
quotes omifted). Although courts typically grant an accounting
where a fiduciary relationship exists between the parties, courts
have axtended the remedy of accounting to nonfiduciaries
vhare “dealings betwsen the parties are 8¢ complex that an
equitable master, and not a jury, I8 required o sort out the
various dealings betwesen the parties” Leonard v. Optimal
FPayments Lid. {In re Naii Audit Def. Network), 332 B.R. 8388,
31819 {Bankr. D. Nev. 2005).

id. This requirement that the parties have a special relationship in order to trigger the duty
o account was reaffirmed by Judge Navarre in Tavior v. Merscom, inc., Case No. 2:11-
CV-01516-GMN-VOF, 2012 WL 4361028, at *6 (D. Nev. Sept. 21, 2012}, In Tayior, the

court held, “An action for inspection and accounting will prevail only where the plaintiff can

® A copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit 5.
-
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ssiablish that there exists g relationship of spscial trust betwsen the plainiiff and
defendant.”

As this caselaw makes clear, 8o long as the duly 1o account has been established,
a cause of gction for an accourting wiil be sustained. While Defendant would have the
Court simply ook fo Plaintiffs’ requesiad relief in the form of an accounting and argue that
the remedy is ail thal is necessary, such a position is a self-gsening misstatement of the
law. As the Court well knows, Plaintiffs are the masters of thelr own complaint and so long
as they satisty the slements of a claim for accounting, the claim will be sustained.

2. The Suprems Cowt's Decision in Dalry Queen v, Wood Doss Not Eradicate
the Accournting Cause of Action

Before examining the reiationships giving rise to a duty 10 account and confirming
that Plaintifis’ have such a relationship with Defendant, Plaintifis would tum the Court's
attention {0 the Supreme Court decision in Dalry Quesn v. Wood, 368 U.S. 469, 82 8. Ct.
894 (1962)."" Defendant's Motion for Partial Summary Judgment relies heavily on the
hotding in Dairy Qusen and as the Court rightly pointed out, betwesn the two cases cited
by Defendant in its original moving papers, only Dafry (ueen provided any analysis
explaining the basis of iis holding. However, Dalry Quesen does not assist Defendant in
this action and should not alter the Courl's analysis of this issus.

Dairy Gueen is not a case centersd on the availability of accounting claims or the
slements of such a cause of action. Far from . Dairy Queen is a case concaming the
right to a jury trial when the relief raquested is "wholly legal in its nature.” Jd 388 U.S. at
477, Indsed, the Supreme Court spent the vast majority of the opinion explalning the right
10 a jury trial when issues of law (a5 opposed 10 equity} were in dispute. Conversely, the
Court only spent one paragraph discussing the plaintiff's claim for an accounting. As this
Court will remember, Dairy Queen explained that because Federal Rule of Chil Procedurs

33 permitied a couwrt 10 appoint a special masier to seitle complicated matters for a jury,

"% A copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit 8.
-10-
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accounting claims based on complicated transactions alone generaily couid be resolved by
the special masier without having to resort 1o the accounting. The Court stated:

The respondsnts’ contention that this money claim is ‘pursly
squitable’ is based primarily upon the fact thal their compiaint is
cast in terms of an ‘sccounting,” rather than In terms of an
action for ‘debt’ or 'damages.” But the constitutional right to triad
by jury cannot be mads 1o depend upon the choice of words
used In the pleadings. The necessary prerequisite fo the right
io maintain a suil for an egquilable accounting, like all other
aguitable remedies, is, as we poinled out in Beacon Thealres,
the absence of an adequats remady at law. Consequently, in
order to mainiain such & suit on a cause of action cognizable at
law, as this one is, the plaintiff must be abls 1o show that the
‘accounis bstween the parties’ are of such a ‘complicated
nature’ that only a court of sguily can satisfactorily unravel
thern, In view of the powers given to District Courts by Federal
Rule of Civil Procedurs 53(b) to appoint masiers to assist the
jury in those exceptional ¢ases where the legal issues are oo
complicated for the jury adequalely 10 handle alone, the burden
of such a showing is considerably increased and it will indeed
be a rare case in which it can be met. Byl be that as it may,
this is certainly not such a cass.

id 360 LL8. at 477-478.

This decision is largely inapposite o this action. Dafry Quesn only addressed a
speciiic type of accouniing claim and held that in that situation there would be an adequat
remedy at law rendering the accounting unnecessary. it did not make a global
pronouncement that a cause of action for accounting like Plaintiffs’ was no longer
available, and it surely did not declare that the entire squitable cause of action for
accounting had been exiinguished. Indeed, # is talling that Dairy Queen is over 50 years
oid and Defendant did not cite any caselaw {either in the original moving brief or in is
reply) examining how Dairy (ueen would traal Plaintifis’ type of accounting colaim. The
reason for this is that Dairy Queen is not as far-reaching as Defendant would have the
Court believe and doss nol serve 1o prohibil Plaintiffs from pursuing their cause of action
for an accounting. Ultimately the Couwrt will have 1 perform the same analysis as  Daky
Quean was never decided-—that is determine if Plaintiffs’ relationship with Defendant gives

rise to a duty 1o account and, if so, whether Defendant breached that duty.

41
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E. Plaintiffs Have a Special Relationship of Trust with Defendant Giving Rise
to Defendant’'s Duty to Account to Plaintiffs

1. inder Novads Law Defendant has a Duly 1o Account o Plaintiifs

Under Nevada law, Defendant had a duly to disclose o Plaintiffs the material facts
conceming the land transactions belween Pardes and CSi, which affected their
commission payments. As the Courl is now well aware, the Seplember 1, 2004
Commission Letter Agreement executsd by Plaintiffs and Defendant provided that Pardee
would, “keap [Plaintifis] reasonably informed as {o all matiers related 1o the amount and
due date of [their] commission payments.” See Commission Lefter Agreement al 2,
attachad hersto as Exhibit 7. This contract established Defendant’s affirmative duty o
disclose the material facts concerming Plaintiffs’ commissions. Further, because Plaintiffs
were not included in any of the meetings or decisions concerning further purchasas of fand
at Coyote Springs, the information necessary 1o keep Plaintiffs’ reasonably informed was
peculiarly within Defendant’s control.  Under Nevada law, these facts establish a duty to
account.

in Mitchell v. O'Neale, the Nevada Supreme Cowt ariculated the type of
relationship that creates a duty to account. The Mitched Court explained:

On the whole, it may be laid down as the general rule,
deducible from what has bsen said, thal equily entertains a
general jurisdiction in matters of account growing out of privity
of coniract. Whers there are mulual accounts; where the
accounts are all on one side, and a discovery or a will ne sxeal
is prayed and grantad; where the taking of an account of
several estates is necessary; where multiplicity of sulls renders
the tial difficult, expensive and unsatisfaciory at law. H is
svident, then, that the existence of a parinership was nol
essential to the plaintiff's right 1o an accounting.

i 4 Nev. at 522-523 (citations omitted). in other words, while there is no particular
relationship that triggers a duty to account, a party will generally have a duty o account

hen, as here, there is privily between the parties, one party controls the accounts of both
parties, and the other parly has no manner of discovering the accounts on iis own, Reocent
Nevada caselaw has reaffirmed these principies and has further enuncizted which

relationships give rise o a duty to disclose information.
-2
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The Nevada Suprems Court in Parry v, Jordan, 111 Nev. 043, 847, 800 P.2d 335,
337 {1985)"" re-examined the duly to discluse. There, the court held, “The duty to speak
doss not necessarily depend on the existence of a fiduciary relationship, it may arise in
any situation where one party imposes confidence in the other because of that person's
position, and the other party knows of this confidence.” fd.

The court further expanded on this duty o speak in Dow Chemical v. Mahium, 114
Nev. 1468, 1486, 870 P.2d 88, 110 {1898).% in Dow Chemizal, the court sialed that the
duty to discliose extended beyond those in traditional fiduciary relationships:

A fiduciary relationship, for instance, gives rise o a duly of
disclosure. See, e.g., Foley v. Morse & Mowbray, 108 New.
116, 125-26, 848 P.2d 519, 525 {1803). A duly to disclose
may also arise where the parties snjoy a “special reigtionship,”
that is, where a parly reasonably imparts special confidence in
the defendant and the defendant would reasonably know of this
confidencs. See Mackiniosh v. Jack Matthews & Co., 109 Nev.
828, 634-35, 855 P.2d 548, 553 (1883) {ciiing Mancini v.
Gorick, 41 Ohic App3d 373, 538 NEZ2d 8 10 (Ohio
CLApp 1887}, A party's superior knowladge thus imposes
z duty to speak in cerlain transactions, depending on the
parties’ relationship... Even when the parties are desling &t
armt's length, a duty o disclose may arise from “the
existence of malerial facts peculiarly within the knowledge
of the party socught to be charged and not within the fair
and reasonabie reach of the other party.” Villalon v. Bowen,
70 Nev, 458, 48768, 273 P.2d 408, 415 (1854) (faiure of
purporied widow to tell the execulor of her purported husband's
astate thal her prior marriage had not been terminated).

id. (emphasis supplied).

This last porlion of the opinion in Dow Chemical is particularly germane 1o the
instant action. As the Couwrt knows, Plaintiffs were entirely sxciuded from the process of
the development of Coyote Springs after the initial mesting. Further, their only source of
information was Defendant—the parly charged with keeping them reasonably informed as
to ali matters related o the amount and due date of their commission payments.

Defendant ensured that it was the only source of material information for Plaintiffs by

' A copy of which is attached hersto as Exhibit 8.
¥ A copy of which is attached herelo as Exhibit 8.
13-
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instructing an individual al Chicago Title not 10 provide copies of the sals documernts 10
Plaintiffs. Jee Exhibit 10, & true and corract copy of a note from Frances Dunlap dated
January 15, 2008, As such, even In this am's length transaction, Defendant had a duty to
account to Plaintifis as the exisience of the material facts was peouliarly within Defendant's
knowlsdgs and not within the fair and reasonable reach of Plaintiffs. #F ssg also Epperson
v. Foloff, 102 Nev. 208, 213, 719 p.2d 789, 804 (1986)" ([Wihere the defendant alons
has knowledge of material facts which are now accessible fo the plaintiff. Under such
clreumstances, there is a duty of disclosure.”). Al a minimum, these facts establish that
thare are material facts in dispute prohibiting the grant of partial summasy judgment,
2. Under Maryiand Law Defendant has 2 Duly 1o Accourt 1o Plaintifis

Nevada law concerning the duly 1o disclose or account is consistent with law
elsawhare, particularly on the point that the parly with the exclusive access fo the relevant
information possasses the duty fo account. For example, the U.S. District Court in the
District of Maryland, in Goldstein v. F.DLC., Civil Action No. ELF-11-1804, 2012 WL
1819284, at 14 (D. Md. May 18, 2012)"° sxplained Marviand's faw on claims for

accounting as follows:

PV Froperiies provides an example under Marvland law of
wihen a freestanding claim for accounting Is appropriate. in thal
case, a commercial tenant in a shopping center sought "an
Remized fisting of common area maintenance expsanses where
the lsase [wasl silent in that respect and the landiord fwas]
unwitling io provide the desired information.” 77 Md. App. at 80,
549 A2d at 404, The Marvland Couri of Specigl Appeals
explained the “general rule” that "a suit i eguity for an
accounting may be maintained when the remadies al law are
nadaequats,” and saih "An accounting may be had. whare
thers is a confidential or fiduciary relation between the parties,
and a duty rests upon the defendant o render an account.” id
at 89, 548 A.2d at 408 {ciling, infer glig, Nagel v. Todd, 185 Md.
12, 45 A.2d 326 (1848}

According to the P V. Properiiss Court, there was a “limiled
fiduciary reiationship” betwesn the landiord and tenant,
because the landlord “maintainjed] and exclusively
controifisd] the records which document s sxpenses,”

"% A copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit 11,
" & copy of which is atiached hersto as Exhibit 12,
“14-
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and the tenant was “forced to rely on the good faith and
fair dealing of the landiord in assessing the charges.” id at
91, 549 A.2d 403, 540 A.2d at 410,

id, (emphasis suppiied). Two observations must be made conceming this decision.  First,
its analysis is identical 0 the reasoning In JDow Chemical, Ferry, and Epperson, and
explicitly sguates the duly to disclose with the duty {o account. Second, and perhaps mors
importantly, the decision connects the duty o account o the covenant of good faith and falr
dealing. As the Court heard at the September 23 hearing, the covenant of good {aith and
falr dealing can estabiish the duly fo account in cerigin circumstances as Goldsfein
articulates.
3. Under Washington Law Defendant has a Dutly to Accpunt io Plaintiffs

in addition {o Marviand and Nevada, Washingion jurisprudence has hsid that a duty
to account exists when one party has exclusive knowledge of the subject matier. In Neis v.
Farquharson, 3 Wash. 608, 514, 37 P. 697, 698 (Wash. 1884)'° (overnied in part on other
grounds in Ward v. Magaha, 128 P. 385 (Wash. 10838)), Washington's Supreme Court
held, “In this case the guantity of hops purchased and the price paid, as well as the amount
received for them by Wagner & Co., were pecullarly within thelr own knowlgdge; and,
under such circumstances, the jurisdiction of equity altaches” [ Again, bscause
Plaintiffs were in the dark conceming the material facts surrounding thelr commissions and
because Pardes was the only one capable of properly informing Plaintiffs, Defendant owed
Plaintiffs a duly 10 account.

4. Under New York Law Defendant has a Duty 1o Accourt 10 Plaintiffs

Taking a slightly different approach from Nevada, Maryland and Washington, New
York tethers a duty 1o account 1o ong parly's provigion of property, money, or services for
which another party is responsible to disclose its actions in connection therewith.  As

discussed by Judge Shira Scheindlin®® of the U.S. District Court sitting in the Southem

** A copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit 13,

* Judge Scheindlin is particularly experienced in matters relating to duties to disclose and

her opinions concarning the preservation of records and disclosure of information during

discovery in Zubulake v. UBS Warburg were the subject of widespread acclaim. Ses
a5

JA003004




Py

L o T - TR % | - N o

- Facsimiie (702) 387-1167

JIMMERSON HANSEN, P.C.

415 South Sikth Street, Sulte 100, Las Vegas, Mevada 89101

Telephone {702) 3887171

District of New York, New Yok in Norwest Financial, Ine. v. Femandsz, 86 F. Supp. 2d
212, 234-35 (8.D.N.Y. 2000)," when such a relationship arises, the obligation 1o account is

established. Judge Scheindiin held:

“The right to an accounting rests upon a trust or fiduciary
relgtionship and a duty upon the part of the defendant o
accouni, or, under a joint venlure agresment whereby the
seller is io participate in losses as wall as profits, o, where
spacial circumstances are presant warranting equitable rellef in
the interest of justice.” Grossman v. Laurence Handprinis—N.J.,
inc., 90 AD.2d 95, 455 N.Y.S.2d 852, 858 (2d Dep't 1982}
{citations omitted). New York courts have mads clear that "[aln
atisgation of wrongdoing is not an indispensable element of a
damand for an accounting where the complaint indicates &
fiduciary relationship between the parties or some other special
circumstances warranting equitable reliel” Morgulas v, J
Yudslf Reafty, 161 AD.2d 211, 554 N.Y.8.2d 597, 600 (ist
Dept 1980); Adam v. Culner & Rathkopof, 238 AD.2d 234, 656
N.Y.8.2d 753, 758 (st Dep't 1887} {citing Morguias ).

gfendanis have demonstraied that they are entitied to an
accounting of the Contingent Portion of the Purchass Price and
the Reserve Holdback for Noncredit Losses, because Norwest
has a fiduciary duty to maintain those reserve funds for
defendanis. Ses Sievens v. 51 Jossph's Hospital, 52 AD.2d
722, 381 N.Y.S5.2d 827, 820 (4th Dep' 1878} {"The fiduciary
relationship necessary 1o obtain an accounting is created by
the plaintiff entrusting to the defendant some money or properly
with respact ¢ which the delendant is bound 1o reveal his
dealings.”); ses also Chipman v. Steinberg, 108 AD.2d 343,
483 N.Y.8.2d 258, 258 {ist Dep't 1084} {“[Tihers must be
somsthing—property, ocash, even services—which has
been glven over and smployed by another befors that
other can be liable as a fiduciary {fo provide an
accountingl”). The Purchase Agrsement defailis when
Norwsst must retum both reserve funds to defendanis and
provides both for interest and for deductions. See Pl Ex. 1, at
88 2.2, 2.5. Norwsest should account for the status of those
funds.

id. {emphasis suppliad),
When svaluated through the lens of Norwesd, Plaintiffs have a special relationship

of trust with Defendant. Just as describad in this decision, Plaintifts provided thelr services

Zubulake v. UBS Warburg, 216 F.R.D. 280 (SIDNY. 2003); 217 FRD. 308 (S.DNY.
2003); 220 F.R.D. 212 (S.D.N.Y. 2003); 228 F.R.D. 422 (S.D.ALY. 2004).
" A copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit 14.
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o Defendant and entrusted Defendant o appropriately inform and compsensate them as
required by the Commission Letier Agreement. Under New York law, this would impose a
duty o account on Defendant Pardse.
8. Under California Law Defendant has a Duty o Account {o Plaintiffs
Last, but sursly not least, under Califomia faw, Defendant s obligated 10 account 1o
Plaintiffs.  Just as the Court heard on Monday, Callfornia law concerning accounting

actions is as follows:

A cause of action for an accounting requires a showing that a
refafionship exists belween the plainift and defendant that
requires an accounting, and that some balance 8 dus ihe
plaintiff that can only be ascertained by an accounting..a
fiduciary refationship between the parties is not required o state
a cause of action for accounting.

Teselie, 173 Cal. App. 4th at 178,

The last sentence i consistent with Nevada’s law on the subject of accounting
claims as Nevada imposes a duly 1o disciose aven on parties {o anw's length transactions
when there i8 g imbalance of information. A sampiing of California cases demonstrates the
braadth of the types of relationships establishing an obligation o account,

For example, individuals with an interest in property subject 1o a lien (but not parties
o the underlving loan) were sntitied to seek an gecounting on the amount of the lien. See
Fostiewaite v. Wells Fargo N.A., Case No., 12-CV-04465, 2013 WL 2443287, at "5 (N.D.
Cal, June 4, 2013} ("While Plaintifis may not be the parties t© the Loan, they purport to
have an interest in a Property in which Wells Fargo has a lien, and Plaintiffs seek an
accounting to determine the amount of the llen. The Court disagrees that Plaintifis fail to
aliege that a relationship exists thai requiras an accounting.”).

Likewise, cotenants of real property are subject to a relationship where gach owes
the other a duly to account. In Moon v. Rush, No. 2:11-CV-03102-GEB-CKD, 2013 WL
4012828, at "1 (E.D. Cal Aug. 8, 2013), the court denied a motion to dismiss the
plaintiff's accounting claim, hoiding:

Rush alleges that he and Moon are “co-tenants,” “Maon has not
provided [him] with an accounting of her alleged expenses,”
ot T
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and "al balance is owad by Moon 1o [him], which can only be
propetiy deiermined by an accounting.” (FACC 9§ 32, 38, 38.}
This is enough 1o state a claim for an accounting.

.

Furthermore, an insurancs company may propearly sesk an accounting of a third-
party insured's altorney’s fees and costs. Sse Travelers Froperty Cas. Co. of America v,
Centex Homes, Case No. 13-0088-8C, 2013 WL 2388887, at *7 (N.D. Cal. May 30, 2013)
{“Travelers alleges that ali of the defendants took steps to overbill Travelers for Centex's
defense costs. An accounting of Centex’ third-party administralor might be necessary to
determine Travelers’ damages. Accordingly, RGL’s motion {o dismiss Travelers’ claim for
an accouniing is denied.”.

Even when an individual is not receiving timely information from his morigage
holder, a sufficient reiglionship between the partiss exisis ¢ state a ciaim for an
accounting. See Lesier v. JP. Morgan Chase Bank, 826 F. Supp. 2d 1081, 1088-88 (N.D.
Cal. 2013) ("With respect to Mr. Lester's tenth cause of action for ‘accounting’... given the
difficutias Mr. Lester has had in receiving timely and clear information from Chase, the
court finds Mr. Lesier's allegations o be sufficient. His tenth cause of aclion survives.”).

These four cases demonsirate the flexibility of California’s relationship requiremeant
o astablish a duly to account and o siale a cause of action therefor. Under California law
an action for an accounting will procesed 8o iong as thers I8 a relationahip betwesn the
pariies whera one party’s accounting could clarify the amounts in dispute. Applisd 10 the
present action, it is clear that the parties arg in a relationship whereby an accounting would
resolve the question of what amount, if any, Plaintiffs arg owed in commissions due fo
Pardee’s faiiure 10 apply the appropriate formula to commission payments. Thus Plaintiffs’
claim for an accounting shouid proceed 1o frial.

Finally, as alluded to above, Caiifornia recognizes that the implied covenant of good
faith and fair dealing permits a parly to a profit-sharing agreement o sesk an accounting
that the other party has exclusive control over the financial records. The court in MoClain
v. Octogon Plaza, LLC, 158 Cal. App. 4" 784, 806-808, 71 Cal. Rptr. 3d 885, 803-804 {Cal.

18-
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App. Ct. 2008)"™ traced California’s history of applying the covenant of good faith and fair
dealing to accounting claims to allow the “ignorant” party the right {o seek an accounting,

stating:

Cailfornia courts bave long recognized that when two
parties enter into an agreement for the sharing of profits
that accords one party exciusive sccess and control over
financisl records bearing on the profits, the implisd
covenant accords the other parly the right fto an
accounting of the profits. In Nefson v. Abraham (1847) 28
Cal.2d 745, 747, 177 P.2d 931 {Nelson), the defendant, who
8 manufactured ice, entered info a profit-sharing agresment with

the plaintiff. Under the terms of the agreement, the plaintiif was
g to seli ice for the defendant in San Francisco in exchange for

one third of the nat profils from his sales operation; the plaintiff
g otherwise acquired no interest in the defendant's business.
{{bid.} When the defendant soid his business, including the San

[T & S S > I (%

f

a Francisco operalion, 1o a third parly, the plaintifi filed an action
{2 for an accounting and division of profits. (i al p. 748, 177 P.2d
931.) The trial court determinad that the parties had not formed
13 a partnership or joint venture and rsiected the plainiiif's claim
for an accounting. (id. at p. 747, 177 P.2d 831))
14 In reversing, our Supreme Court concluded that under
15 the circumnsiances, the implied covenant obilged the defendant
o provide an accounting, even i the agreemaernt did not creats
16 a partnership or oiher form of fiduciary relationship. (Neison,
supra, 28 Cal.2d af p. 780, 177 P.2d 831.}) it reasoned: “[Uinder
17 an agreement calling for a division of profits, whether the
contract is one of copartnership, joint veniure, or employmeni,
18 good faith and fair dealing require that neither party may be
permitted {o take an unfair advantage or enjoy greater rights
13 than called for by the terms of the agreement. One may not
20 obtain a secret profit or undue benefit. The one who is
sntrusted with the rights of anocther is charged with the
21 duty of guarding those rights with the utmost good faith.
{Citations.]" (id. at p. 781, 177 P.2d 831}
22 in a igter cass, Waverly Productions, Inc. v. RKO
o General, inc. {1983y 217 CslApp2d 721, 724-725, 32
o3 Cal.Rptr. 73 (Waverly), two corporations entered into a motion
24 picture distribution agreement ihat obliged them o share
profits, but granted one of the corporations exclusive rights {o
95 sell the rertal rights io the motion picture In other countries.
Without mentioning Nelson, the court in Waverly concluded that
28 although the agreement did not creale 3 fiduciary reiationship,
- the trial court had properly required the corporation in exclusive
@8 1 % A copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit 15,

45-

JA003008




- Fassimile {702} 357-1167

JIMMERSON HANSEN, P.C.

415 Songh Shath Street, Suite 100, Las Yegas, Nevada 89101

Telephona (702) 388717

e D PO

(8]}

i

11
12
13
i4
15
16
17
18
19
20

22
23
24
25
26

28

control of the rental rights 1o provide an accounting. (Waverly,
at p. 731, 32 Cal.Rpir. 73.)

in Wolf v. Superior Court (2003) 107 Cal.App.dih 25,
3133, 130 Cal.Rplr.2d 8680 (Wolh, the court endorsed and
sxplained the holding In Nelson. There, the author of a novel
gnferad Inio agreements with an entertainment corporation o
share the profits from a movie and related merchandise bassd
on the novel, (Wolf, at pp. 27-28, 130 Cal .Rptr.2d 860.) The
agreements expressly accorded the author the right 1o an
accounting. {ibid) After a dispute arose, the author initiated an
action against the entertainment corporation, asserting, inter
alia, & claim for breach of fidudiary duty. {{bid) When the trial
cowrt sustained & demurrer 1o this claim withoul leave 10
amend, the author scught relief by petition for writ of mandate.
{fd atp. 29, 130 Cal.Rptr.2d 860.)

in rejecting the author's contention that the partisg’
agresments created g fiduciary relationship, the court in Wolf
acknowledged the continuing vitality of Nelsom: "The duty fo
provide an accourting of profits under the profit-sharing
agraement in Wawvery is appropriately premised on the
principle, also exprassed in Nefson, that a party to a profit
sharing agreament may have a right 0 an accounting, even
absent a fiduciary relationship, when such a right is inherent in
the nature of the confract Hself. As the court in Nefson
ohserved, the right to oblain equitable relief in the form of an
accounting I8 not confined to parinerships but can exist in
contractual relationships requiring payment by one party 1o
another of profits received. That right can be derived not from a
fiduciary duty, but simply from the implied covenant of good
faith and falr dealing inherent in every contract, because
without an accounting, there may be no way “ * “by which such
[a] party [entitied 10 3 share in profits] could determine whether
there were any profifs..." 7 " {Wolf, supra, 107 CalApp.4th at
p. 34, 130 Cal.Rplr.2d 860, quoting Nefson, supra, 28 Cal.2d at
p. 751, 177 P.2d @31

in our view, the principle asserted in Nelson also
gncompasses the cost-sharing wrovisions of the lease. Like the
couris in Nefson, Waverly and Wolf, we sss no basis In thess
provisions for concluding thal the lease imposss fiduciary
duties upon Qctagon regarding the common expenses. (See
alse Korens v. RW. Zukin Corp. (1888) 212 Cal.App.3d 10584,
1088-1059, 281 CalRptr. 137 [lease term requiring tenant to
make securily deposit does not imposs fiduciary duly on
landiord].} The lease obliges the parties {o share the commaon
expenses of the shopping mall, as snumerated in the leass, but
accords Octagon exclusive management and control over
those expenses while reguiring i to provide McClain with a
reasonably detalled statement of the expenses. Bacause
MoClain's share of the common expenses under the lease s

w3
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determined by the aciual expenses incurred by Octagon, sha is
entitied to verify that such expenses werg, in fact, incurred and
that the listed amounts are accuraie. Accordingly, #
requested, Oclagon must provide MeClain with the
documents it ussd in preparing the “reasonably delailed
statement”; to hold otherwise would necessarily ©
‘frustrate [ ] [MoGlain's] righis fo the benefils of the
contract.” " (Racine & Laramis, Ltd. v. Department of Farks &
Recreafion, supra, 11 CalApp.dih at pp. 10311032, 14
Cal.Bpir.2d 335, quoting Love v. Firg ins. Exchange, supra,
221 CalApp.3d at p. 1153, 271 Cal Rptr. 246.) Octagon may
discharge this obligation in any reasonable manner if sslects,
including providing McClain with copies of the pertinent
documents or giving her an opportunity to view the original
documenis,

id. {emphasis supplisd).

While McCain discusses the apglication of the covenant of good faith and fair
dealing to profit and cost-sharing arrangsments, the Court need only replace the word
“profit” with the word "information”™ in the opinion o confimm the principle’s application
Plaintiffs’ action. As the Court is well aware, the parties entered into an information sharing
arrangement whersby Plaintiff infroduced Defendant to C51 and in return Defendant, inter
alia, promised 10 keep Plaintiffs reascnably informed as to all matliers reiated {o the amount
and due date of thelr commission payments. And just as the defendant in MeCain had
sxclusive access o determine whether the profils were being shared appropriately, thus
giving rise to the duly to account, Defendant in this aclion has exclusive access to
determine if the monies and information provided o Pleintiffs complies with the
Commission Lelter Agreement and, thersfore, Defendamt has a duty o account o
Plaintiffa.

F. Summary Judgment is inappropriate on the Record Before the Count

As the Court knows, summary judgment can only be granted when there is no
genuine Issue of material fact warranting judgment in one party's favor. Competent
evidence must be submitted to the Court {o establish the absence of a genuine issue of
maierial fact. Sse N.R.C.P. 88{c). However, no competent evidence has been provided fo

the Court on this Motion. The reason no compstent evidence has been submited is

2%
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because the original moving brief argued that the cause of action for an accounting does
not exist. However, now the motion has evolved into an analysis of whether the parties
have a relationship whereby a duty 1o gccount may anise, and thus competent evidencs is
necessary for the Court to render a decision. Without such competent evidence the Court
must deny the motion.

Furthermors, even if the Court iakes nofice of the material submitted to the Court on
the previous round of summary judgment motions, the Court stilf cannot grant summary
judagment since the existence of a fiduciary relationship is a guestion of fact for the irier of
fact. As stated by the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals in In re Daisy Systems Corp., 97 F.3d
1171, 1178 (Gth Cir. 1088}, “the existence of a fiduciary relation is a question of fact which
properly should be resolved by looking o the particular facts and circumstances of the
relationship at issua.” fd As such, the Court cannaot properly decide such & fact question
at this juncture. The only appropriate result of the motion is its denial.
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CONCLUSION

it Iz clear that Nevada recognizes the cause of action for an accounting. Mumercus

staiutes and Supreme Court decisions codify the State’s accepiance of such a claim.

Further, Plaintifis have demonstrated that there exists a genuine issue of material fact as to

whether the relationship beiween the parties gives rise 10 a duty 10 accouni, and by

gxtension, the avaliability of an accounting claim. Az such, Plaintiffs respsctiully request

that the Court deny Defendant’s Motion for Partial Summary Judgmaent.

DATED this 27th day of September, 2013,
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